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China CITIC Bank International Limited —

“Grow Together Trust Forever”
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China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") is 75%-owned by CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited.

CNCBI’s footprint in Greater China includes 24 branches and two business
banking centres in Hong Kong, as well as presence in Beijing, Shanghai,
Shenzhen and Macau. CNCBI also has overseas branches in New York,
Los Angeles and Singapore. By providing value-creating financial solutions
to define and exceed both wealth management and international business
objectives of Greater China and overseas customers, CNCBI aspires to be
the best integrated financial services provider”, with the highest
international standards and capabilities.

"

“Grow Together Trust Forever” — China CITIC Bank International Limited

has grown together with its employees, customers and partners through
100 glorious years since 1922. Your trust strengthens our perpetual belief,
gives us confidence and continues to be our infinite pursuit. With that,
we will walk with you and move further into the future together.

More information about CNCBI can be found on its website at
www.cncbinternational.com.
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Our Mission
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To be the China Financial Solutions Provider highly regarded by
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise the growth
potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core to our offering is
our intimate knowledge of and our network capability in China, coupled
with our customer-centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership and success are
a key competitive advantage of ours.

BOMEE

Our Core Values

BFHEE  Integrity
UEAE  Customer-centric
BIE#E  Value Creating
Hi=ZEH  Progressive
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Building People, Building Team
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BTt Financial Performance

2021 FIBRHE 2021 Financial Highlights
2F (BEERT) For the year (HK$ million) 2021 2020 % change
F A B A Net interest income 5,805 5,186 11.9%
FEFBUA Non-interest income 2,390 2,170 10.1%
S Operating expenses (3,930) (3,662) 7.3%
TREEEHEEELAR Expected credit losses on financial assets

HmmEERERX and impairment losses on other assets (1,769) (2,352) —24.8%
5% A g A Profit before taxation 2,500 1,306 91.4%
Fr 5 Income tax (372) (150) 148.0%
A% 5 FE 15 4 T Profit attributable to shareholders 2,128 1,156 84.1%
REFB (BEBET) At year end (HK$ million) 2021 2020 % change
BRREBR Loans and advances 242,667 220,096 10.3%
BERE Total assets 417,472 392,899 6.3%
TR B Total deposits 329,249 309,877 6.3%
fi% B = Shareholders' equity 41,232 39,797 3.6%
B # tb = Financial ratios 2021 2020 % change
BEART R & Capital adequacy ratio 17.1% 17.2% -0.1%
TR HEEEL X Average liquidity coverage ratio 249% 239% 10.0%
B = Loans to deposits 73.7% 71.0% 2.7%
DN PN = S Cost to income 47.9% 49.8% -1.8%
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MRERFEMER (BE&BT)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

Financial Performance

BEERE (B88RT)

Total assets (HKS million)

RRER (BEER)

Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

21 21 21
20 1,156 20 392,899 20 39,797
19 2,810 19 361,222 19 38,680
18 3,008 18 362,945 18 35,900

17 2,808 17 344,309 17 37,384

5 Bt R 5 Year Financial Summary

2EHE(AEBRT) For the year (HK$ million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
F A B A Net interest income 5,805 5,186 6,343 6,400 5,395
FEF B A Non-interest income 2,390 2,170 2,008 2,010 2,478
REH Operating expenses (3,930) (3,662) (3,696) (3,385) (3,174)
TREEEHEEELAR Expected credit losses on financial assets

HEMEEREERKX and impairment losses on other assets (1,769) (2,352) (1,268) (1,403) (1,422)
753 Al e A Profit before taxation 2,500 1,306 3,334 3,624 3,287
P15 %t Income tax (372) (150) (524) (616) (479)
% 3R 18 g A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,128 1,156 2,810 3,008 2,808
RELZB(BEBT) At year end (HK$ million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
BERRER Loans and advances 242,667 220,096 189,377 201,820 196,287
BHEEE®EX Expected credit losses/

B ZE impairment allowances 1,872 2,440 3,597 2,659 1,523
BERE Total assets 417,472 392,899 361,222 362945 344,309
FHMBEKEEERE Average interest earnings assets 403,345 353458 342264 350,917 320,779
R EsE Total deposits 329,249 309,877 279,986 288,626 274,894
% 4 &= Shareholders’ equity 41,232 39,797 38,680 35,900 37,384
Bf # tb = Financial ratios 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
BARFT R X Capital adequacy ratio 17.1% 17.2% 20.0% 19.3% 20.3%
FHREMEFE X Average liquidity maintenance ratio n/a n/a n/a n/a 59.6%*
TR HEEBEL X Average liquidity coverage ratio 249% 239% 227% 228% 178%*
Bt X Loans to deposits 73.7% 71.0% 67.6% 69.9% 71.4%
ERUEERFELE Loans to total assets 58.1% 56.0% 52.4% 55.6% 57.0%
B AR S A B 2 Cost to income 47.9% 49.8% 44.3% 40.2% 40.3%
15 & EE E W) & Return on average total assets 0.50% 0.30% 0.79% 0.84% 0.85%
15 iR 3R 25 [B] R R Return on average shareholders’ equity 5.21% 2.91% 7.44% 8.37% 10.11%
* IAEHE (FHE) K201 7F12A31BEER *  Weight amount (average value) at quarter ended 31 December 2017
OEZE2017F9A308 IEHR TR AR R *  Average LMR for the period ended 30 September 2017
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Financial Performance

T Deposits*
1. RERE S By type 2021 2020
2k Current 14.6% 12.7%
EE Savings 24.2% 19.8%
7E 8 Fixed 61.2% 67.5%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. ZEHAEES By maturity 2021 2020
BB 858 On demand 38.8% 32.5%
LR 3E A Less than 3 months 43.9% 58.7%
HwiE3MEAETEF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 16.5% 8.6%
BRI FERMRSF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 0.8% 0.2%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. RE®E S By currency 2021 2020
T HKD 54.7% 56.3%
ETT usb 30.9% 31.7%
H A Others 14.4% 12.0%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, GEREE®AE Number of deposit accounts 2021 2020
587,576 579,763

* LEFPERAER

46.2%
51.4%

BIERD M
Total Deposits
Breakdown

1.9% 0.5%
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*  Based on customer deposits only

64.4%

B EANEERTER

Personal & Business Banking Group

m FHE
Certificates of deposit

H OHf
Others

NA M BHEEIGED

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group

HWERD M
Total Loans
Breakdown

31.3%

4.3%
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Financial Performance

BX Loan Portfolio
1. RIT¥ESED By industry sectors 2021 2020
BREBHEXK Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
ITEkemf : Industrial, commercial and financial:
Y EE Property development 3.7% 5.1%
ES g Property investment 6.2% 6.1%
Ea T Financial concerns 6.1% 5.8%
fRELL 4 Stockbrokers 1.9% 1.8%
HERTEES Wholesale and retail trade 3.6% 4.4%
BUE Manufacturing 2.5% 4.4%
E 2 EHRE Transport and transport equipment 0.9% 1.5%
IR TR B Recreational activities 0.6% 0.9%
AR Information technology 1.7% 3.1%
HAh, Others 5.0% 5.7%
fEA - Individuals:
BEIEEEHEE] Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[LABRBL2EEE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
FERIEEEEERE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
FEIEFINER Scheme 0.0% 0.0%
BEHMETEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 9.4% 9.6%
EAREE Credit card advances 0.3% 0.2%
HAh Others 8.0% 7.3%
B omE Trade finance 2.7% 2.5%
RARBEEAIMETHEF LK Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 47.4% 41.6%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. RibES HES By geographical spread 2021 2020
B Hong Kong 67.7% 61.0%
A Mainland China 21.0% 22.6%
EH United States 3.9% 4.2%
s Singapore 2.2% 2.1%
HAh, Others 5.2% 10.1%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REWE D By maturity 2021 2020
BPEFER Repayable on demand 0.6% 0.5%
DT Less than 1 year 48.1% 50.7%
i1 FIEDRS F Over 1 year but less than 5 years 37.7% 35.3%
BiAs F Over 5 years 12.6% 11.8%
BT HH Undated 1.0% 1.7%
CEl Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, REME D By currency 2021 2020
BT HKD 50.4% 51.3%
ET usb 41.0% 39.6%
HAt Others 8.6% 9.1%
CEl Total 100.0% 100.0%
5. BEXERBEEE Number of loan accounts 2021 2020
486,850 472,913
S
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Report of the Chairman

During 2021, the volatile nature of the COVID-19 pandemic continued
to prevent the normalization of economic activities. Although economic
growth of Hong Kong was restored during the year, operating conditions
remained challenging. China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI" or
“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) remained committed
to achieve its long-term strategic vision of becoming “the best integrated
financial services provider” via the implementation of its 4C strategic
framework (culture, customer, collaboration, cyberspace) and proactively
responded to the severe macro-economic environment and challenging
market conditions. The Group steadily pressed ahead with various major
work focuses, while core businesses delivered solid performances. Key
financial indicators remained stable, while risk management, internal control
and compliance capabilities were further enhanced, so that the Group can
build up a solid foundation for healthy and sustainable development.

As of end-2021, the Group's total assets steadily increased and reached
HK$417.47 billion, up 6.3% versus end-2020. Total deposits and customer
loans rose 6.3% and 10.3% respectively versus end-2020 and reached
HK$329.25 billion and HK$242.67 billion. Total income as of the full year
of 2021 was HK$8.20 billion, while net profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$2.13 billion, up 11.4% and 84.2% year on year respectively. All
efficiency indicators improved. ROA for the full year was 0.50%, while ROE
was 5.21%, representing increases of 20 basis points and 2.3 percentage
points respectively versus the full year of 2020. The Bank successfully issued
US$600 million of Basel Il compliant undated non-cumulative subordinated
additional Tier 1 capital ("AT1") securities at a pricing yield of 3.25%. This
pricing was the lowest yield amongst all Greater China bank AT1 capital
issuances in history and enabled the Bank to strengthen its capital base via
relatively low financing cost. | would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to everyone within the Board of Directors for their outstanding
contribution, all of the Group’s staff for their concerted efforts as well as our
customers and shareholders for their long-term trust and support!

During 2021, the market shares of the Group’s core businesses such as
syndicated lending, US dollar bond issuances for Chinese corporates,
offshore RMB trading, wealth management and bancassurance continued
to increase. As of end-2021, the Bank’s ranking in syndicated loans rose
to number three, while its RMB FX spot trading volume was ranked fifth
amongst all Chinese banks in Asia. The Bank has for the second year running
earned the award from the Bond Connect company as “Outstanding
commercial bank”for 2020-2021. The Bank was also ranked fifth amongst all
Chinese financial institutions in offshore China USD bond issuances and first
amongst all Chinese financial institutions in offshore China high yield bond
issuances. The Group's professional investment management capabilities
have been well-recognized in the market and it was ranked number two as
Top Investment House in Asian bonds by “The Asset Benchmark Research”in
2021. The Bank is also one of the 13 financial institutions designated by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority as market-maker for Southbound trading
under Bond Connect and is also one of the first batch of banks to be able to
offer services under the “GBA Wealth Management Connect”initiative.
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Report of the Chairman

The Group proactively pressed ahead with Fintech transformation and
Agile Culture Transformation. Via efficiency enhancements arising from
Fintech adoption and the increase in automation, the Group was able to
enhance customer experience, build up core competitiveness and ensure
a leading position amongst Hong Kong banks in the adoption of financial
technologies. As of end-2021, the overall number of digital customers of
the Bank increased by 29% year on year. The Group continued to fine-tune
the product and service offering via its inMotion mobile banking flagship
platform and successfully launched products and services under the "GBA
Wealth Management Connect” initiative via inMotion. Customer experience
on inMotion continued to be enhanced, while the total number of inMotion
customers increased by 63% year on year.

We are committed to bottom-line thinking, building up a strong defense
against risks and proactive management in order to ensure that risks
can be manageable. The Group continued to step up efforts in the
collection of non-performing loans and strictly control the increase in new
non-performing loans. As of end-2021, impaired loan ratio was 0.93%,
representing a decrease of 72 basis points versus end-2020. The Group's
overall loan quality was more stable than before. Moreover, the Group
proactively pressed ahead with Basel lll reform, strengthened capabilities
in mitigating against climate risks and promoted risk culture in relation to
green and sustainable banking.

In face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group treats staff health and safety
as its top priority, and has strengthened staff caring measures to ensure
that business activities can remain on track and that financial services can
continue uninterrupted. At the same time, the Group proactively exerted
its financial power, launched a series of relief measures and provided
strong support to vaccination reward programs in order to fight against the
pandemic and weather the storm together with the community.

Looking ahead into 2022, the economy of Hong Kong will yet again be
negatively affected by the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic. We
will continue to face many difficulties and challenges, yet difficulties will
eventually pass, while challenges and opportunities shall co-exist. The
greater the storm, the more we have to remain firm in our beliefs and
maintain strategic focus. We shall remain committed to “value creation”and
strive for sustainable development. The Group will continue to press forward
steadily, enhance business structure, expand its customer base, deepen
collaboration with CNCB, steadfastly spearhead Fintech transformation,
proactively resolve large-size non-performing loans and strengthen risk
management and compliance capabilities via the implementation of the
4C strategic framework to establish a harmonious and unified corporate
culture.

“Grow Together, Trust Forever”. The year of 2022 is an important milestone
for the Bank as it celebrates its centennial birthday. It is also a new beginning
for the Bank. Over the past 100 years, the Bank has built up its business
based on trust and has served Hong Kong and given back to Mainland
China. Going forward, we shall remain committed in the enhancement of
our integrated servicing capabilities to ensure high-quality development.
We will create even more value for our shareholders, customers, staff and
community!
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer
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During 2021, in face of a very challenging operating
environment, China CITIC Bank International strived hard
to press forward with the implementation of its 4C strategy
(culture, customers, collaboration, cyberspace) and maintained
high-quality business development. Income and profitability
improved considerably, while net profit after tax increased
significantly versus a year ago. The Bank continued to enhance
risk management, internal control and compliance capabilities
and maintained leading market positions for signature
products. Agile culture transformation was fully launched and is
starting to become effective, while the Bank also strengthened
implementation of business continuity plans and carried out
pandemic prevention measures in an orderly manner. In 2022,
China CITIC Bank International shall celebrate its centennial
birthday. | believe that the next 100 years will be even better
for China CITIC Bank International as long as we continue to
spearhead the implementation of our strategic plans, leverage
on the power of advanced financial technologies and fully
immerse ourselves into the CITIC Group ecosystem !

2021 was full of challenges as the COVID-19 pandemic continued to disrupt normal
business activities. Mainland China was able to effectively manage and control the
pandemic, so that production and livelihoods largely returned normal; furthermore, strong
export data led to a significant rise in GDP growth for the full year of 2021. Hong Kong
managed to control the pandemic during 2021, while public spending was boosted by
the HKSAR Government's consumption voucher scheme; hence, Hong Kong's economy
rebounded from its trough in 2020 along with gradually improving unemployment data.

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI" or “the Bank") and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) continued to press ahead diligently with the implementation of its strategic
plans. At the same time, the Group had to proactively address operational risks imposed
on normal business activities as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and strictly enforce
business continuity plans to ensure the safety of its customers and staff. For the year
under review, income and profitability of the Group significantly improved, with net
profit after tax up 84.2% year on year, while risk management and compliance capabilities
have been further strengthened. The Group continued to forge ahead with agile culture
transformation and process re-engineering to enhance efficiency and strengthen product
innovation capabilities. Management remained committed to spearhead Fintech adoption
and was able to further build-out the inMotion mobile banking platform to enhance
customer experience and ensure that the Group can maintain its competitiveness. Such
satisfactory achievements could not have been accomplished without the hard work and
dedication of the Group's staff as well as the tremendous support from parent bank China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“CNCB") and the CITIC Group in the Group's efforts to
continue to strengthen collaboration.

Thank you all of the Group's staffl Thank you all of our stakeholders! Your trust and support
will always provide us with the inexhaustible motivation to keep pushing forward!
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TR RS Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Management Committee

A

BRRELZL HIERE BRER L BEH Lt

HITER, BIFTRAEESR WITEF, BITBER, HITER, BIFTRAEESR BIfTBREFRA RN EERE
EAREERITESEE NRIEBFRITERIRE IS EE BB B IR AR e Ms. Christine Yau

Mrs. Helen Kan Mr. Bai Lijun Mr. Tang Nai Pan Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
Executive Director, Executive Director, Executive Director, Chief Compliance and Operations Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Deputy Chief Executive Officer and

Head of Personal & Business Banking Head of Wholesale Banking Group and Chief Risk Officer

Group Treasury & Markets Group

FEELE EEzt MEER KL WR B 58 S5 A
BIfTRAEHF AN B REE B AR e FErTaE

Ms. Li Haixia Ms. Sui Yang Mr. Frazer Lam Mr. Telly Chan
Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Chief Information Officer Chief Auditor

Chief Human Resources Officer

012 RFIRIT (B ) BIRAT
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



RERIR

201 R BERARE - HIERFERER
EEHNE - MIERSNEF - AR EHEFE
BRUCE  BEFAERRSEBERBNAREY
ZIEEHERL - HLRR - IRKBRENE
EHA TOFELEBAEEEDEREAR
Bl TE T FHREKT - REEHEFRHTRE -
EERMERSBERIY B R EEYHKBERE
5k - HISS TSI REVEN S ©

2021 F A I R 8.1% - (BT RIEENERE
EFEZE - —FH  ZREEEEREEER
BEK TR BERTEHEEHRSEBELE
BE - F—HHE - AR AREZEEEEEYET
Z HOBRFHERETEMES HEES8
SaRERk HOEERBSIEEZHEAFS -

202V FEBLEIMEIGE + GDPIZREER]6.4% °
HOEEEERSE63% MWAEEBER A
56% ° FEFLEREAE @ XENAHLEEEZE
BEENL  URREFBEENSLIMS  KEME
PRIRNE o RERE2021F2A LHE7 2905
fifg - Z3REGE - 12 ABRE3.9% °

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Environment

In 2021, the global economy staged a rebound, which was largely
due to a low base of comparison as opposed to economic strength.
Even though vaccinations helped reopen economies, unpredictable
COVID-19 developments still posed tremendous difficulties to economic
normalization. In the meantime, global inflationary pressure strengthened
considerably, as consumer price indices in many economies rose to the
highest levels in decades. Manufacturing supply chains endured crippling
disruptions, while production and shipping bottlenecks resulted in tight
supplies of commodities and goods. The confluence of these factors
weakened growth momentum.

In 2021, the economy of Mainland China grew 8.1%, but the recovery was
somewhat uneven. On one hand, stringent pandemic prevention and
control measures inevitably placed restrictions on consumption, with real
retail sales eking out only low single-digit gains. On the other hand, thanks
to its comprehensive and robust supply chains, Mainland China’s export
competitiveness further improved during the pandemic, with international
trade recording significant growth and exports and trade surplus reaching
successive record highs.

Hong Kong's economy resumed growth in 2021, with GDP growth
coming in at 6.4%. The value of exports soared by 26.3%, while real private
consumption rose 5.6%. As for employment conditions, thanks to gradual
normalization of local economic activities and a flexible labor market,
unemployment problems were quickly addressed. After reaching a high of
7.2% in February 2021, the unemployment rate rapidly fell back to 3.9% by
December.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Financial Review

The Group achieved an operating income of HK$8.20 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 11.4%, of which net interest income increased by
11.9% year on year to reach HK$5.81 billion. Net interest margin decreased
3 basis points from 1.47% of the previous year to 1.44%, mainly because the
drop in asset yields was higher than the drop in funding costs. Non-interest
income rose 10.2% year on year to HK$2.39 billion largely due to increases
in loan fees as well as revenues derived from the sale of insurance products
and investment products.

The Group remained committed to strengthening its cost control
capabilities and spearheading business transformation via the adoption of
advanced financial technologies; as such, investments in technology and
human resources continued to rise. The Group recorded a 7.3% year-on-year
increase in total operating expenses and a cost-to-income ratio of 47.9%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.8 percentage points.

The Group's overall loan quality remained at healthy levels. Impairment
losses for 2021 were HKS1.77 billion, while impaired loan balance decreased
from a year earlier. Impaired loan ratio dropped from 1.65% of the preceding
year to 0.93%. The Group shall continue to step up collection efforts for
impaired loans and strive to improve the quality of its loan portfolio.

The Group remained prudent in granting new loans in the midst of a
challenging operating environment and proactively adjusted its asset mix
to enhance capital efficiency. Total assets as at 31 December 2021 stood
at HK$417.47 billion, which was 6.3% higher than that as of end-2020.
Customer loans (including trade bills) and customer deposits (including
certificates of deposit issued) increased by 10.3% and 6.3% from a year
ago respectively to HK$242.67 billion and HK$329.25 billion. Balance sheet
structure remained healthy with retail deposits and lending accounting
for 46.2% and 31.3% of total deposits and loans respectively. The loan-to-
deposit ratio also remained healthy at 73.7%.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total capital adequacy ratio, tier 1
capital ratio and common equity tier 1 capital ratio stood at 17.1%, 14.7%
and 12.0% respectively, meeting regulatory requirements. Meanwhile, the
Group maintained sufficient liquidity and achieved an average liquidity
coverage ratio of 249% for 2021.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Business Review
Wholesale Banking Business

In 2021, Wholesale Banking Business proactively addressed different types
of challenges and fine-tuned its business structure while maintaining steady
business growth. Core product strategy was implemented in order to
achieve steady and high-quality business development. During the period
under review, Wholesale Banking Business’ customer loan and deposit
balances reached HK$156.40 billion and HK$169.18 billion respectively,
representing year-on-year increases of 12.6% and 14.4%. Loan concentration
decreased significantly while the share of CASA deposits increased
considerably. Wholesale Banking Business' operating income increased by
9.1%, while net profit increased noticeably. NPL amount and NPL ratio both
decreased. The Group ranked third in Hong Kong and Macau syndicated
loans MLAB league table as of 2021 according to Refinitiv, representing
an improvement of three rankings as compared to 2020. On the other
hand, the Transaction Banking team achieved growth and enhanced
its capabilities in various areas with trade finance volume in Hong Kong
up 38.3% as compared to last year. Meanwhile, RMB Dividend Payment
Services, IPO Receiving Bank Services and Host-to-Host File Transfer Services
were launched successfully in order to provide high quality and one-stop
integrated services to our customers.

Wholesale Banking Business will continue to adhere to the philosophy
of high-quality and sustainable business development to further solidify
competitive advantages, enhance customer servicing capabilities,
strengthen internal control capabilities, deepen collaboration and push
forward with stable business growth.

Treasury and Markets Business

In the midst of extremely volatile market conditions, the Treasury and
Markets Business managed to achieve an operating income of HKS$1.11
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.5%. During the period
under review, the Debt Capital Markets team completed 161 deals for
Chinese issuers with an aggregate issuance size of US$56.44 billion, of
which the Group acted as global coordinator for more than half of such
transactions. As of the end of 2021, the Group ranked fifth amongst all
Chinese financial institutions in offshore China USD bond issuances and first
amongst all Chinese financial institutions for offshore China high yield bond
issuances according to Bloomberg.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The trading team continued to focus on building out the market-making
business of RMB and HK$ products. The Group ranked top five amongst
Chinese banks in Asia for RMB FX spot trading volume throughout 2021
according to Refinitiv and has been recognized by the Bond Connect
company for two consecutive years with the award “Outstanding
commercial bank” for 2020-2021. The Southbound Bond Connect was
officially launched in September 2021. The Group is one of the thirteen
financial institutions designated by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
("HKMA") as market-maker for Southbound trading under Bond Connect
and is also one of the three designated offshore custodian banks of CNCB.

The custodian business for institutional customers maintained strong
momentum. As of end-2021, 35 clients were successfully onboarded while
US$1.9 billion of assets under custody have been accumulated.

The Central Treasury Unit (“CTU") carefully managed the mismatch in the
Group's liquidity gapping positions, FX funding swaps and bond investment
portfolios, delivering satisfactory financial performance. For bond
investments, CTU captured buying opportunities amid market volatilities
and actively managed and reduced the risks related to high-risk industries.
The Group's professional investment management capabilities have been
well recognized in the market and the Group was ranked number two as
Top Investment House in Asian bonds by “The Asset Benchmark Research”
for the year 2021.

Personal and Business Banking Business

Despite the volatile nature of the global pandemic situation and a weak
global economic environment, Personal and Business Banking Business
successfully achieved record-breaking operating income of HK$2.80 billion
in 2021, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.5%. Interest income and
non-interest income recorded growth rates of 9.8% and 25.7% respectively.
Performance of the insurance business was most prominent. Insurance
income rose significantly by 43.9% year on year. In addition, the substantial
reduction in credit provisions of 40.2% and prudent cost management
resulted in a substantial increase in profit after impairment of 32.3% year on
year. Private Banking and Business Banking performed well, laying a solid
and diversified income base for future business growth.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Private Banking revenues increased by 32.9% year on year, mainly due to
the rapid growth of the customer base. To cope with the expansion of high-
net-worth customer base, two new CITICdiamond centers in Mong Kok
and Causeway Bay were opened in 2021, while a new CITICfirst center was
opened in Hung Hom.

Business Banking revenues rose 30.8% year on year and hit a record high.
Customer loan and deposit balances also hit record highs, up 11.2% and
16.4% year on year respectively. Despite the weakening of the global
economy and deteriorating credit quality, Business Banking maintained
healthy asset quality, resulting in a significant year-on-year reduction of
loans impairment.

Personal and Business Banking Business continued to invest in digital
banking services via the inMotion mobile banking platform and spearhead
transformation via the adoption of advanced financial technologies. In
order to further grow the customer base and increase customers’ usage
and stickiness, inMotion launched the “Monopoly” deposit account in
January 2021, in cooperation with the global gaming and entertainment
brand “Monopoly”, to acquire new customers and new funds. The result
was encouraging. In October, the “GBA Wealth Management Connect”
was successfully launched and the Group was amongst the first batch of
banks to provide both Northbound and Southbound services. In addition,
inMotion also launched the “Reward Go” gamification platform for new
customer acquisition and the increase of customer's stickiness. As of the
end of 2021, the number of inMotion customers has grown significantly by
63.3% year on year.

Personal and Business Banking Group continues to implement the “New
Retail” business transformation strategy, and shall increase business
scale and improve operational efficiency via agile culture and digital
transformation, so as to be the best bank in providing online and offline
banking services for personal and business banking customers.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group continued to emphasize the importance of rigorous risk
governance and strived to maintain robust risk management and internal
control practices. Hence, the Group has continued to enhance its “three
lines of defence” to ensure that the roles and responsibilities in relation to
risk management within the Group are clearly defined, namely (1) business
units where risks are taken (including related frontline and support staff),
(2) independent risk management and compliance functions and (3) an
independent internal audit function, in order to effectively manage the
risks faced by the Group. The actions performed included regular reviews
and updates of the Group's risk appetite and policies as well as controls,
procedures and reporting to ensure that they remain in-line with applicable
laws and regulatory requirements for sound corporate governance.

In 2021, the Group implemented a number of risk management
enhancement initiatives and undertook extensive preparations via
internal efforts and the engagement of external consultants in order to
ensure timely completion of various regulatory initiatives. These initiatives
included Initial Margin Standard for non-centrally cleared over-the-counter
derivatives, Standardized Approach to Counterparty Credit Risk, Reform of
Interest Rate Benchmarks and pilot climate risk stress test etc. Furthermore,
the Group has been actively pressing forward with the implementation of
the Basel lll Reform Package, Fundamental Review of the Trading Book, as
well as fortifying the resilience against climate-related risks and promoting
the risk culture of green and sustainable banking.

In 2021, the Group continued to strengthen internal control and compliance
management capabilities during the pandemic, and adopt proactive
approach to risk management to guard against various risks in view of
the changing regulatory environment. The Group also continued to take
steps to promote a sound corporate culture and raise staff awareness on
standards relating to conduct by delivering regular mandatory training and
communications to all departments.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

As the HKMA announced its “Hong Kong Fintech 2025" strategy in June
2021 to boost Fintech and Regtech adoption among banks, the Group
has established internal taskforce to identify and explore the benefits,
applications and solutions associated with Regtech. The Group believes that
an effective implementation of Regtech strategy can reduce cost, improve
risk management and enhance risk-based supervision. The Group will
continue to actively consider business or operational challenges that can
be solved with Regtech, and will closely monitor the market trend and work
with the banking industry to encourage greater Regtech adoption.

Various uncertainties continue to pose challenges in 2022, the Group will
continue to perform stress tests and portfolio reviews on the key risk factors
to assess the potential impact under stressed environment (including threat
of COVID-19 variants, inflationary pressure and continuous geopolitical
tensions) on the Group's asset quality and financial positions, and adopt
appropriate risk mitigation measures when necessary.

Business Continuity Plans

The COVID-19 situation in Hong Kong has evolved rapidly into the fifth
wave. The Group has been closely monitoring the situation and making
necessary work arrangements aligning to the pandemic prevention and
control measures initiated by the HKSAR Government as well as CNCB
to ensure the safety of its customers and staff. These measures include
enhancing work-from-home capabilities, purchasing pandemic prevention
equipment, increasing the frequency of deep cleaning and ensuring
adequacy of essential pandemic prevention supplies.

In order to fight against the pandemic, the Group has continued to
implement business continuity plans to ensure stable operations,
keeping daily business activities on track with no occurrence of major
risk incident. To cope with the fifth wave of the pandemic, the Group
has been conducting daily meetings to strengthen communication and
cooperation amongst all departments. At the same time, the Group actively
participates in various social distancing measures, supports the “vaccine
pass” arrangements launched by the HKSAR Government and encourages
its staff to get vaccinated and obtain booster shots in a timely manner. The
Group will continue to closely monitor the development of the pandemic
and adjust relevant measures in a timely manner to ensure that business
activities can proceed smoothly.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Human Resources Development

In 2021, the Group launched the bank-wide Agile Culture Transformation
(ACT) program to cultivate a sound corporate culture. Agile Culture
Transformation aims to unleash employee potential, improve customer
experiences and enhance operating efficiency. A series of communication
sessions, workshops and social activities had been organized, covering
employees in various positions.

Meanwhile, the Group went to great lengths to support staff's personal
and professional growth by providing programs suitable for different levels
of experience, such as Graduate Program and 360 leadership assessment,
etc. The Group also sponsored employees to obtain the relevant
professional qualification recommended by local regulators. In an effort
to further promote a self-directed learning culture, the Group introduced
a new integrated online learning platform “CNCBI Academy” in June
2021, providing access to over 1,000 online courses based on the Bank's
competency framework to staff. The Group contributed to building talent
pipeline for Hong Kong's finance industry, by offering work opportunities
and training to fresh graduates via external programs, such as Banking
Talent Programme, Fintech Career Accelerator Scheme, the Greater Bay Area
Youth Employment Scheme and more.

Employee’s health and wellness have always been the priority of the
Group. The Group introduced a new Employee Wellness Program this
year to encourage our employees taking better care of their own physical
and mental wellness. The Group also organized the monthly Employee
Wellness Day since July 2021 to provide health-related education and gifts
to staff members. The Group has been even more focused on employee
caring during the pandemic and has provided pandemic prevention
supplies to employees, enhanced frequency of cleaning and disinfecting
at various operating sites and arranged online activities in order to create a
mutually supportive and caring atmosphere and relieve anxiety and stress
of employees. The Group has also reminded employees to self-isolate or
perform compulsory testing according to requirements as stipulated by the
HKSAR Government and report the results to the Group in a timely manner
as well as to be mindful of safety issues when working from home etc. so
that employees feel cared for and well-supported.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group actively shouldered its corporate social responsibilities, and
strived to give back to the Hong Kong community. The Group fully
supported the “Take Your Shot” Incentive Campaign launched by The
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, as well as the “COVID-19
Vaccination Lucky Draw” initiated by The Hong Kong Association of Banks,
to encourage the Hong Kong public to unite together in the fight against
the pandemic.

In 2021, the Group initiated and supported various fundraising programs
to help address the different needs of those within the community. The
Group's key corporate social responsibility programme, “Speak Along”,
achieved encouraging results with close to 10,000 beneficiaries in 2021.
Meanwhile, the Group also retained The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service's 15 Years Plus “Caring Company Logo”.

In face of the outbreak of the pandemic, the Group has always walked
alongside Hong Kong given that it is deeply rooted in Hong Kong with one
hundred years of operating history. During the pandemic, the Group has
been actively fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities. Since the start of
the pandemic, the Group has launched a series of relief measures including
the proactive participation in the “Cash Payout Scheme” launched by the
HKSAR Government, provisioning of registration channels and launch of
various special offers and lucky draws such as the “Fight the Virus Together
Time-Deposit Offer” etc. to increase cash levels of Hong Kong citizens. The
Group also donated a total of HK$200,000 credit card credit to The Chinese
Manufacturers' Association of Hong Kong's “Take Your Shot” Incentive
Campaign and The Hong Kong Association of Banks' “COVID-19 Vaccination
Lucky Draw” to encourage citizens to get vaccinated. Furthermore, the
Group launched a series of relief measures for the public to alleviate the
pressure on corporates and retail customers brought about by the COVID-19
pandemic and provide support to the Hong Kong community in its fight
against the pandemic. Relief measures include “principal moratoriums on
mortgages” and “waiver of personal loan and credit card fees and interest”.
The Group shall continue to provide support to the “100% Personal Loan
Guarantee Scheme” initiated by the HKMC Insurance Limited in 2021 to
help individuals who lost their jobs as a result of the pandemic to ease their
pressure for cash and the “Special 100% Loan Guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme” launched by the HKSAR Government. To
demonstrate its willingness to shoulder its corporate social responsibilities,
the Group has also been donating pandemic prevention supplies such as
face masks and rapid testing kits to citizens affected by the pandemic.

—E--—FH
Annual Report 2021

1@®

021



022

RE

202FFAR - BEAFABRBESEBEHAAK
B2 BANKEILERBEHE - FREENK
% o MABUR B RUIGEM IR ERE - Wit
HRFAEIMEORRBLEEESTFLEFIER - JF
EEEBIINERHEREER  MAFTHNERNERIR
RIZE FEURAR B IEEEMER - fE/NETT
BAE BoBELEREERBNEEREK
R BUEHRAZEMKBRITRSMEMNERT
HIEKEE o ZEF R FFANEBARITHR S
WABZFHER - BEEERNEREATSK
B G B IRIB AR -

20226 - NEBEGEBEREEIC(CUE - BF - 15
B B BB ER  EEITRHERINHD
EERUBEARNZOER - WiE—F 1l
BMEHE AEEBEEZEERRERTFNE
% BARPEM RREBESERAH  RBAE
P -

AEERBESHESREULBIMBREFE - A
RITEERE - AEERFRATEN SR
SIAXRBER - W — FTHFinMotion B REIR
TP & LMERMRS - RS - ARESREE
BRI E R R INE R R EIEMAIERE S - T

EEER

AEEREFTHERITNPEEELETRER
REME  BRARERTEMRMEFIAE - B
LEARMERREERNER - BRI B
WEMEEN - R - REARAET -+ REEF
R HEE R EEEMINR A -

PIEIRIT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Outlook

Since early 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic has broken out again, so
economic growth of Hong Kong is expected to slow down to a certain
extent. Geopolitical tensions may also lead to volatilities in the global
economy. Consistently strong exports will continue to support Mainland
China’s economic growth as well as expansion of Hong Kong's international
trade, but domestic demand will largely hinge on the evolution of the
pandemic prevention and control measures. In overseas markets, a number
of developed economies have begun or will soon tighten up monetary
policies, inevitably pressuring asset markets reliant on central bank liquidity.
Rising interest rates in the United States may indirectly provide support to
interest income for banks in Hong Kong, but slowdown of economic growth
and volatility in asset markets will lead to challenges in the operating
environment.

In 2022, the Group will continue to forge ahead with the implementation
of its 4C strategy (Culture, Customer, Collaboration, Cyberspace), promote
sound corporate culture as well as the core value of integrity amongst its
staff and further strengthen the accountability mechanism. The Group shall
continue to strengthen relationships with existing customers, expand its
customer base and spearhead product innovation and enhance customer
experience.

The Group shall continue to press forward with agile culture transformation
and process re-engineering to enhance operational efficiency. The Group
shall remain committed to business transformation via the adoption of
advanced financial technologies and further build out the product and
service offerings on the inMotion mobile banking platform. Meanwhile, the
Group will strengthen its risk management and internal control capabilities
via the adoption of regulatory technologies and satisfy regulatory
requirements.

The Group shall deepen collaboration with parent bank CNCB and the CITIC
Group and will collaborate with CNCB's IT department to strengthen the
operations and maintenance of the Group's IT infrastructure and enhance
the Group's abilities in defending against cyber-attacks. At the same time,
collaboration and interaction amongst front, middle and back-end functions
within the Group should also be strengthened.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Going forward, the Group shall focus on striking a balance between business
development and risk management, improving employee satisfaction and
strengthening staff's sense of belonging, and incorporating Environmental,
Social and Governance elements into every aspect of business operations.
Credit risk remains a major concern in light of the volatile market conditions,
so the Group will step up collection efforts of large-size non-performing
loans, closely monitor its lending portfolio and asset quality, and strive to
minimize concentration risks.

The Group bounced back from its trough in 2020 and has resumed healthy
business growth momentum in 2021. More uncertainties in the operating
environment are expected in 2022 with the COVID-19 pandemic remaining
a threat, while business outlook shall remain very challenging. As such, the
Group shall adjust business continuity plans in a timely manner as needed
in order to ensure that normal business activities can remain on track. The
Group will strictly abide by the relevant pandemic prevention regulations
as stipulated by the HKSAR Government and put its best foot forward to
ensure the safety of its customers and staff. Meanwhile, the Group shall
carefully manage market risks and the volatility in the financial markets
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Bank shall celebrate its centennial birthday during the year of 2022.
Although the Group has changed its name a few times — from Ka Wah Bank,
to CITIC Ka Wah, to China CITIC Bank International —
have remained true. Throughout the past one hundred years of challenges,

its original aspirations

the Group has continued to gain strength. | would like to express my
gratitude to all those who have stood by us, especially each and every one
of our customers as well as every staff member who has diligently worked
for the Group over the past one hundred years. “Grow Together, Trust
Forever” carries that special meaning. Located within the Greater Bay Area,
the Group can leverage on the huge market potential in Mainland China, so
the prospects are wide and opportunities are unlimited. | believe that the
next 100 years will be even better for the Group as long as it presses forward
with the implementation of its strategic plans, leverage on the power of
advanced financial technologies and fully immerse itself into the CITIC
Group ecosystem.

Bi Mingqgiang
President & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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2021 Review of Operations

Wholesale Banking Business
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Business structure was optimized
Signature products were further enhanced
Collaboration was strengthened

Internal controls were continuously refined

In 2021, despite the repeated outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic and the challenging operating environment,
Wholesale Banking Group ("“WBG") adhered to the philosophy
of high-quality and sustainable business development and
further integrated resources, optimized corporate structures
and enhanced its capabilities in providing comprehensive
services to its customer, with the aim of achieving high quality
development. During the reporting period, WBG's customer
loan and deposit balances reached HK$156.40 billion and
HK$169.18 billion respectively, up 12.6% and 14.4% versus
end-2020. WBG achieved steady development via the following
initiatives:

Firstly, continued to optimize business structure. WBG's
customer structure was enhanced so that the total number of
customers and borrowing customers increased by 6.1% and
12.7% respectively versus end-2020. At the same time, loan
concentration decreased with top 20 borrowing customer
groups down 7.5 percentage points. Meanwhile, deposit
structure was significantly improved. Spot CASA balance
reached HKS$57.26 billion and its share of total deposits
increased by 6.5 percentage points. Total income derived
from overseas branches increased significantly and amounted
to HKS$518 million for the full year of 2021, representing a
year-on-year increase of 36.6%, while its share of total income
rose 2.6 percentage points and reached 13.1%. Moreover,
asset quality continued to improve along with significant
improvements in profitability. Non-performing loan amount
decreased to HK$1.68 billion, down HKS$1.53 billion versus
end-2020.
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2021 Review of Operations

Secondly, signature products were further enhanced. In
structured financing, CNCBI ranked third in Hong Kong and
Macau syndicated loans MLAB league table as of end-2021
according to Refinitiv, up three rankings compared to end of
last year. WBG also capitalized on green financing opportunities
and took the lead in completing eight green syndicated loans
with a total loan amount of HK$3.08 billion. In transaction
banking, WBG successfully completed the first transaction as
an IPO Receiving Bank and provided RMB Dividend Payment
Services for the first time, while Host to Host File Transfer
Service was launched successfully so as to enhance its customer
servicing efficiency. At the same time, trade finance business
performed well with trade finance business volume in Hong
Kong up 38.3% compared to last year.

Thirdly, collaboration was strengthened. WBG adhered to the
principle of “One CITIC, One Customer” to further deepen
collaboration with the CITIC Group and parent bank CNCB,
strengthen integrated cooperation holistically and unlock
the full growth potential of collaborative development. In
the meantime, WBG further encouraged collaboration within
the Bank and established business referral mechanism to
strengthen communication and collaboration amongst Personal
and Business Banking Group, Treasury and Markets Group
and WBG. A new milestone was achieved in the high-quality
development of collaboration.

Fourthly, internal controls was continuously strengthened. WBG
continued to optimize its “Customer Experience Enhancement
Program” to streamline procedures and strengthen management
capabilities across account opening documentation and
process, system settings and process management as well as
Corporate Online Banking so that work efficiency and customer
satisfaction can be improved.

In 2022, WBG will continue to spearhead steady development
strategy, expand customer base and settlement business
volume, strengthen competitive advantages in core products
such as syndicated loans and structured financing, improve
transaction banking business system, proactively promote
green financing business and continue to increase value
contribution. WBG will also optimize internal procedures to
enhance customer experience. WBG will continue to capitalize
on the unique advantages of the “Financial + Industry” concept
created by the CITIC Group as well as its special abilities
in pursuing international development in order to provide
high-quality and one-stop shop integrated services to its
customers.
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2021 Review of Operations

Treasury and Markets Business

Posted a 17.5% year-on-year increase in operating
income, underwritten by contributions from both
Global Markets and Central Treasury Unit (“CTU")
despite a highly volatile market environment.

In collaboration with parent bank CNCB, CNCBI
launched the Southbound Bond Connect business
in September 2021 as one of the first offshore
market-makers, as well as one of the three
offshore custodian banks designated by CNCB.

Treasury and Markets Group (“TMG") recorded operating income of HK$1.11
billion in 2021, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.5%, as various
business segments showed encouraging performances amidst a highly
volatile market environment.

CNCBI ranked first for offshore China high yield bond
issuances, while Agency Services business was successfully
launched

In 2021, the Debt Capital Markets ("'DCM") team completed 161 deals for
Chinese issuers as Joint Lead Manager, Joint Book Runner or Joint Global
Coordinator, with an aggregate issuance size of US$56.44 billion. There were
91 transactions of which CNCBI acted as the Global Coordinator. As at the
end of the year, CNCBI ranked fifth amongst all Chinese financial institutions
in offshore China USD bond issuances and first amongst all Chinese financial
institutions in offshore China high yield bond issuances according to
Bloomberg.

Given the market conditions in 2021, DCM has been proactively exploring
new client segments such as non-property high yield names, Hong Kong
companies and industrial corporates to enhance customer diversity and
risk tolerance abilities. DCM continued to leverage on the expertise of the
rating team to win more bond mandates and significantly ramp up the
Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG") framework and capabilities
within the team.
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2021 Review of Operations

The custodian business for institutional clients sustained its business
momentum in 2021. As of end-2021, 35 clients were successfully onboarded
with US$1.9 billion of assets under custody accumulated. The Securities
Services team launched the Agency Services business towards the end of
2021. Agency Service is an expansion of the custody and securities service
offering in providing comprehensive corporate agency solutions to support
the execution and management of clients’ capital markets transactions.

The trading team continued to focus on building out the RMB and HKD
market-making businesses. According to Refinitiv, CNCBI ranked top five
amongst all Chinese banks in Asia for RMB FX spot trading volume in 2021.
Its active participation in the market has for the second year running earned
the award from the Bond Connect company as “Outstanding commercial
bank” for 2020-2021. The Southbound Bond Connect was officially launched
in September 2021. CNCBI is one of the 13 financial institutions designated
by the HKMA as market-maker for Southbound trading under Bond
Connect, as well as one of the three designated offshore custodian banks of
CNCB.

In November, Global Markets launched the repo and reverse repo product,
expanding its product offering to clients.

For client business, all marketing teams enjoyed substantial growth in
trading volume from different client segments. There was a surge in trading
volume for institutional clients that was around three times that of the level
in 2020. Corporate Marketing team had a successful year in building out
investment product growth with significant increase in both volume and
revenues generated via investment products in 2021, contributing to 29%
of total revenues versus 5% in 2020. Faced with increased competition in
the structured deposit business, the team continued to work on different
variations of the structured deposit product to expand product offering for
corporate clients.
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CNCBI was ranked number two as Top Investment House
in Asian bonds by “The Asset Benchmark Research” in 2021
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

2021 Review of Operations

CTU carefully managed the mismatch in the Group’s liquidity gapping
positions, FX funding swaps and bond investment portfolio, delivering
satisfactory financial performance. For bond investing, CTU managed to
capture buying opportunities amid volatilities, while actively managed and
reduced the risk that arose from Mainland China’s property sector amidst a
series of negative credit events. Its professional investment management
capabilities have been well-recognized in the market and CNCBI was
ranked number two as Top Investment House in Asian bonds by “The Asset
Benchmark Research” in 2021.

¢ #ah

2021

FEE 53R R AT 2020-2021
[BAIREE (BERTHR) | #E
"Outstanding commercial bank” for 2020-2021 award
from the Bond Connect company
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2021 Review of Operations

TMG will continue to focus on strengthening its sales and trading
capabilities across all products while building up the treasury business
franchise. Apart from expanding the sales network and treasury franchise
locally, TMG will continue to build out the functional business model and
global book framework, aiming to achieve greater synergies with overseas
offices.

The trading team will focus on developing its core product capabilities,
as well as laying down a solid foundation for the provision of structured
derivative products. TMG will continue to strengthen its fixed income
franchise and maintain its market share in fixed income sales and trading in
the secondary market. With the launch of the Southbound Bond Connect
providing Mainland China’s institutional investors with a channel to invest in
the offshore bond market. This is a great opportunity for fixed income sales
and trading to reach out to more customers and to further strengthen their
market making capabilities.

A new FX and gold margin trading platform will be launched in 2022,
supporting both online and mobile channels for key functionalities such
as account opening and trading. This is a major Fintech transformation
initiative to build out the mobile penetration of treasury products by
leveraging on the Bank’s inMotion platform.

Moreover, TMG's marketing teams will continue to work closely with
WBG and PBG in cross-selling treasury products, presenting clients with
value-added solutions to hedge against various risks and improve returns.
TMG marketing teams will ride on the surge in demand for investment
products in 2021 to continue building out its wealth management capacity
and bring in more strategic clients. TMG will be working closely with WBG's
relationship managers to expand the coverage of clientele in order to create
more cross-selling opportunities. Fruitful collaboration of our expertise both
locally across business units and globally is expected to drive the success of
TMG in 2022.
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2021 Review of Operations

Personal and Business Banking Business
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Achieved record-breaking income of HK$2.80 billion, representing a
year-on-year growth of 15.5%

Insurance income achieved a record high of HK$589 million, up 43.9%
year on year

Customer loans hit a record high of HK$75.93 billion, up 9.7% since
end-2020

Private Banking/High-Net-Worth customer base grew 61.5% year on
year, driven by the launch of the new CITICdiamond brand

inMotion customer base increased by 63.3% year on year due to the
continuous launch of new products and services

Given the volatility caused by the global pandemic, cross-border restrictions
and weak economic conditions in 2021, Personal and Business Banking
Group ("PBG") steadfastly spearheaded the implementation of the “New
Retail” business strategy and focused on being customer-centric and
digital savvy. With efforts and innovation of all employees, PBG's revenues
achieved a record-high of HK$2.80 billion, representing an increase of 15.5%
year on year. Insurance income recorded an impressive year-on-year growth
of 43.9%, driven by both bancassurance and broker insurance businesses.

Strengthening of comprehensive wealth management
capabilities to better serve Private Banking/High-Net-Worth
customers

In 2021, PBG continued to enrich the variety of wealth management
products and services such as the successful launch of the External Asset
Management (EAM) services and expansion of the Unit Trust offerings.
PBG also focused on the expansion of the relationship manager team
under Private Banking as well as and insurance and investment advisors.
Via support from CNCB on referral of High-Net-Worth customers, Private
Banking's income increased by 32.9% year on year. Private Banking/High-
Net-Worth customer base also rose by 61.5% year on year.

Business Banking’s income and scale reached new highs,
propelled by its solid foundation

Business Banking expanded business scale by acquiring new quality
customers and deepening existing customer relationships via product cross-
selling. Operating income reached a new high with a year-on-year increase
of 30.8%. Customer loan and deposit balances also registered all-time
highs, up 11.2% and 16.4% respectively versus end-2020. Under weakening
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BREBSREEEZEEZMNIRITT - BIRT global economy and deteriorating credit quality, Business Banking was
MRBFRENEEREB  FTZHRETFENE able to maintain relatively low loan provisioning due to prudent credit risk
ERBERE - management.

FEAFUBRTSEHERBREEFR Innovation to capture market opportunities and meet
= customer needs

EIHEEJEREBT - EARFHRTE Under the “New Retail” transformation strategy, PBG continued with
BEAFEMREBIEFER AR MIZH product innovation and enhancement of customer experience in order to
BAREEFPFTRE © 2021 F 1 A #1825k capture market opportunities and satisfy customer needs. In January, PBG
BAMRERE [ RES]IEENTRES I TR launched the “Monopoly” deposit account in cooperation with the global
RP 7TRAEHXRERRBERBAREE,E gaming and entertainment brand “Monopoly”; in July, Greater Bay Area
BEREMPEAMNGR 10 AKNEL I KER ("GBA") mortgage services were launched to satisfy customers' needs for
BH@El - KREetRSEHERILRAREHOR cross-border products; in October, the “GBA Wealth Management Connect”
T2— ° B9 inMotion i H T [Reward was successfully launched and PBG belonged to the first batch of banks to
Go BBt FARERTEFNIEARER provide both Northbound and Southbound services. In addition, inMotion
B BE2021FF R ' inMotionBEFPER L also launched the "Reward Go" gamification platform to acquire new
8K 63.3% o customers and increase customer stickiness. As of end-2021, the number of

inMotion customers was 63.3% higher than that as of end-2020.

[Reward Go] #ERILF &
“Reward Go”
gamification platform

[KERIZEAE ]
GBA Wealth Management
Connect

[RESH

“Monopoly” deposit account

'I"ft'“*""! *‘Fﬂ_r_l_»::-.

BN, FARME,
AEORARBKEN e

[RERIZRE] RBER [RKEREME] PINES

Launch ceremony of GBA Wealth Outdoor promotion of GBA Wealth
Management Connect Management Connect
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

2021 Review of Operations

Invest in branch transformation to enhance brand awareness

PBG committed to forge ahead with its branch transformation strategy.
Following the launch of its new flagship branch in Quarry Bay in December
2020, four new branches in Mongkok, Tai Po, Hung Hom and Causeway Bay
were opened in 2021. Amongst them, the Mong Kok and Causeway Bay
branches contain new CITICdiamond Centres to serve customers with assets
under management of HK$4 million or above.

We will maintain a client-centric strategy and continue to integrate and
launch new “Future branches” so as to deliver a new experience combining
both online and offline integrated banking services for our customers.

andl, 3

fﬂ%ﬁ” BEFARRCITIC irst BT A 0
CITICfirst Center in Causeway Bay branch

Awards obtained by wealth management and cross-border
businesses

In view of our sustained efforts to develop wealth management and cross-
border products and services, PBG was awarded 6 accolades in 2021:

Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group “Best Bank in Greater Bay
Area Award”

Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group “Best Cross-border Wealth
Management in Greater Bay Area Award"

Ming Pao Awards for Excellence in Finance 2021 “Financial Services —
Premier Banking Service Award for Excellence in Users Experience”

Ming Pao Awards for Excellence in Finance 2021 “Financial Services —
Wealth Management Service Award for Excellence in Product”

The 21st Capital Outstanding Enterprise Awards “Outstanding Private
Bank”

Skypost Banking and Finance Awards 2021 "Excellence Award for
Fintech in Retail Banking”
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2021 Review of Operations

hE8R1T (B

Business strategy for 2022

PBG has been actively implementing the “New Retail” business strategy
for the past years and will continue to focus on being customer-centric
and digital savvy. PBG shall continue to focus on the wealth management
business and proactively expand the High-Net-Worth and Business Banking
businesses. We are committed to enhance and provide customers with
new and tailor-made wealth management solutions; at the same time,
we will further enrich the product offering on "inMotion" and improve
customer experience so that both local and cross-border customers can
experience simple and convenient retail and business banking services.
With the development of the Greater Bay Area initiatives and the launch of
cross-border Wealth Management Connect, PBG will continue to invest in
exploring business opportunities in the Greater Bay Area.

To cope with the rapid change in the business environment, PBG has
achieved remarkable results by establishing and promoting an agile culture
to support business growth and improve operational efficiency. Coupled
with the strong support of our parent bank and closer collaboration with

L) EBEREV AR
vaﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ%x

CNCBI has been awarded several
accolades on cross-border wealth
management and fintech adoption

CITIC group companies, we are confident that PBG can continue to grow.
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2021 Review of Operations

Corporate Social Responsibility

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") is committed to fulfill
the responsibility of a good corporate citizen while putting efforts into
its banking business. The Bank always makes an effort to give back to
the community in Hong Kong. During the period under review, the
effectiveness of CNCBI's signature corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
project “Speak Along” was encouraging, helping about 10,000 beneficiaries.

During the period under review, CNCBI's staff donated generously to
support events organized by The Community Chest of Hong Kong,
including “Skip Lunch Day”, “Green Low Carbon Day”, "“Dress Casual Day”,
“Love Teeth Day”, and “Pink Revolution — Dress Pink Day” organized by Hong
Kong Cancer Fund. The Bank also partnered with Ronald McDonald House
Charities® Hong Kong and organized a Christmas Staff Donation Campaign,
sending well wishes and caring messages to people in need.

To fight against the COVID-19 together with Hong Kong citizens, CNCBI
fully supported the “Take Your Shot” Incentive Campaign launched by The
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, as well as the “COVID-19
Vaccination Lucky Draw” by The Hong Kong Association of Banks.

“Speak Along” benefits more than 32,000 parents and children
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

In recent years, the number of children diagnosed with special education
needs ("SEN"), including hearing impairment, intellectual disability, autism
spectrum disorder and others, has increased. Unfortunately, speech therapy
services are limited because of long waiting time for government services
and costly private treatments. Parents and teachers also lack the necessary
knowledge and training tools. Therefore, children may miss the crucial
period for developing speech and language skills.

CNCBI has given full support to the Centre for Sign Linguistics and Deaf
Studies of The Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK) since 2017,
to develop “Speak Along” — Hong Kong’s first comprehensive online
platform and training programme that provides information on language
development and training to SEN parents and teachers, helping to improve
the language ability of children of early ages.
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(SR | BRI IIEY BRRHOZWER FERET  AXRXERNDPARED -
Sharing of parent-child communication skills with parents at “Speak Along” workshops. It
was greatly appreciated by both the parents and children.

[ | —KERBEREESKMNB TS  #28I1E “Speak Along” is a one-stop service model which includes an online
MEAREN  ARREMNHAN SN IIES - 558 knowledge platform, gamified mobile applications, seminars and
BRENMRRHR FAEBREITRIES - 2EASESEN workshops for parents, sessions about direct speech therapy and improving
RETAEENZEEEERTE RELHFER parent-child communication, catering for SEN children’s different
BWARE @ IREEVRES - 25 TREK IR language development needs. “Speak Along” is especially beneficial for
%3200 REMTE - XEABURBEL - underprivileged children. More than 32,000 parents and children have
o0 RMETEIRI AR © benefitted from this project, far more than expected, and it is a testimony of

the effectiveness of the programme.

REM TEER | TEHBBNFAEHERS (Rl RERERRFENZERERBMEMNAE

HEZTRBERI - “Speak Along” provides free individual training for children
Parents learnt how to improve children’s with language development needs.

communication skills from reading books in
“Speak Along” workshop.
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2021 Review of Operations

Given the encouraging results, “Speak Along” launched gaming apps which
are designed by experienced speech therapists and educators: “Social King”
and “Story Train”. These apps are suitable for junior primary school children.
They enhance children’s theory of mind, social problem-solving skills, and
help them learn story structure, thereby enhancing their narrative skills
through games.

‘\"I‘

SR R RERM
xm%ﬂauj} B IEEAABRBERER -

(R E|FLER

“Social King” aims to enhance children’s
social cognition ability and build positive
interpersonal relationship through games.

[EINE | BRELBNELEE  ARRBH
HEERFNER  KWmRARERS -

“Story Train” helps children to learn the
story structure and recognize the use of
conjunctions to improve their narrative skills.

SECEHRES
EERERAEANEE

Number of app registrations

13,429

2021*FRERRRAEAR

Number of benefited parents
and children in 2021*

9,954

BEERESSEE
AR GRS R 15FPlus vears

[BRREE]R KT E
RTT (BB BRI BHENETE ©

7 IR 12

/ aringcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

*Sum up of 2021 (1/1/2021-31/12/2021)

Token of Acknowledgement

CNCBI received The Hong Kong Council of Social
Serwces 15 years Plus “Caring Company Logo” in
recognmon of its continuous contribution to the
underprivileged.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Establishment of CNCBI Volunteer Team

CNCBI understands the importance of giving back to our society. In 2021,
CNCBI established its volunteer team to encourage employees to contribute
their time and effort in helping the underprivileged in the community.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. YANG Yu

(Chairman, Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 26 August 2020 and further elected
Chairman of the Bank on 22 September 2020. He is also the Chairman of
CITIC International Assets Management Limited, Director & Chief Executive
Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and Director of KWB
International Limited. Mr. Yang had been the Party Committee Member
and Vice President of CNCB from 2015 to 2020. Prior to joining CNCB,
Mr. Yang had been the Party Secretary and President of China Construction
Bank Limited (“CCB") Jiangsu Branch from March 2011 to June 2015; Party
Secretary and President of CCB Hebei Branch from July 2006 to February
2011. Between August 1982 to June 2006, Mr. Yang worked at CCB Henan
Branch, holding various positions including Deputy Head of the branch'’s
budget and finance division, Head of the budget and finance division as
well as Vice President and Party Committee Member of Xinyang Branch,
Party Secretary and General Manager of Zhengzhou municipal railway
branch, Party Secretary and President of Zhengzhou Branch, and Deputy
Party Secretary and Vice President (presiding) of Henan Provincial Branch.
Mr. Yang is a “Senior Economist” with a Postgraduate degree and PhD in
management. He has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese banking
industry.

Mr. Bl Mingqiang

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer, Member of the
Credit & Risk Management Committee)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on
28 September 2018. Mr. Bi is also Chairman of CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited and CNCBI Investment Holdings Limited, and Director of
Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited, The Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association and The Tsinghua University Education Foundation
(Hong Kong Special Administrative Region) Limited. He has more than
24 years of multifaceted expertise in the finance industry, and has held
various management positions in China, Canada, the US, and the UK,
covering a wide range of banking businesses. He started his banking career
with The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC") and progressed
through different assignments in project financing, corporate lending,
credit risk management, sales management, global markets, mergers and
acquisitions, and strategic planning. Mr. Bi has extensive experience in
overseas operations setup and management, new business development,
commercial banking management, cross-cultural people engagement,
team effectiveness building, and corporate governance. Over the years, he
has held various important positions including business heads, CEO, and
chairmanship of several Mainland and overseas organizations including
Head of Credit Management of ICBC group, Country Head of ICBC's US
operations, CEO and President of ICBC Canada and Chairman of ICBC
Standard Bank Plc headquartered in London. Prior to coming to Hong Kong,
he was Managing Director of CICC Capital Management Co Ltd, a subsidiary
of China International Capital Corporation Limited. Mr. Bi obtained his
Undergraduate and Postgraduate Degrees from Tsinghua University and
subsequently a PhD in Finance from Renmin University of China.
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Biographies of Directors

Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Head of Personal &
Business Banking Group)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Deputy
Chief Executive Officer, Head of Personal & Business Banking Group of the
Bank, and Director of various subsidiaries of the Bank, including CITIC Bank
International (China) Limited, Security Nominees Limited, The Hongkong
Chinese Bank (Nominees) Limited and The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited.
She is also a Director and member of Executive Committee of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, a Director of Nova Credit Limited, and a Director
and President of Hong Kong Women Professionals and Entrepreneurs
Association Limited. Mrs. Kan has more than 30 years of experience in
the banking and finance industry. Over the years, Mrs. Kan had held
various senior positions across a broad spectrum of banking and finance
exposures in Hong Kong, Mainland China, UK. and other global markets.
Mrs. Kan's rich experience covers strategic transformation, new business
set up and expansion, diversified consumer banking businesses, global and
multi-cultural management, people development, quality management and
internal audit. Prior to joining the Bank, she was Standard Chartered Bank's
Global Head of Distribution in charge of the strategic development and
performance of distribution channels. Mrs. Kan holds an Honours Degree
in Management and Economics, and a Master's Degree in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong. She was appointed as Council Member of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in August 2017.

Mr. BAI Lijun

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Head of Wholesale
Banking Group and Treasury & Global Markets Group)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 20 August 2018. Mr. Bai is also Deputy
Chief Executive Officer, and Head of Wholesale Banking Group and Treasury
& Global Markets Group of the Bank. Mr. Bai's scope of responsibilities
encompasses the overall management of the Bank's Treasury & Markets
Group with a view to strengthen funding and liquidity management,
in addition to a fortifying wholesale banking products and business
controls while driving CNCB- and CITIC Group-related collaboration for
enhanced business development for the Bank. He is also Director of various
subsidiaries of the Bank, including Carford International Limited, CITIC Bank
International (China) Limited, The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited, CNCBI
Investment Holdings Limited and CNCBI Financial Consultant Limited.
Mr. Bai joined CNCB's Financial Markets Department from Bank of Beijing
in 2006. In 2009, he took up an additional role at the Chairman Office of
CITIC Group, assisting the Group's Chairman with corporate governance,
group projects and business affairs. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Bai was
CNCB's Deputy General Manager of the Office of the Board of Directors and
Supervisors. Mr. Bai holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the School
of Economics at Nankai University in Tianjin, and a Master of Finance Degree
from the School of Finance at Renmin University of China in Beijing.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. TANG Nai Pan

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Risk Officer)
Appointed Director of the Bank on 20 March 2020. Mr. Tang is also Deputy
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Risk Officer of the Bank, and Director of various
of the Bank's subsidiaries including CITIC Bank International (China) Limited,
CNCBI Investment Holdings Limited and CNCBI Asset Management Limited.
He is also a Director of Financial Dispute Resolution Centre. Mr. Tang has
over 30 years of experience in the banking industry. Prior to joining the
Bank, Mr. Tang was Deputy Chief Executive, Alternate Chief Executive and
Chief Risk Officer of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited. Over the years, he
has accumulated a wealth of experience in treasury, compliance and risk
management from banking institutions including Chong Hing Bank, Hang
Seng Bank, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, DBS Bank Singapore and
Citibank (Hong Kong). Mr. Tang received his education in the US. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Mathematics and Statistics from University of
Minnesota, Minneapolis, and a Master of Science Degree in Statistics from
University of Chicago. Mr. Tang is also a Doctor of Philosophy candidate in
Finance at Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University.

Mr. FANG Heying

(Non-executive Director, Member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 24 March 2016. Mr. Fang is currently
the Party Committee Member and Deputy General Manager of CITIC
Group Corporation Limited, Deputy General Manager and member of the
Executive Committee of CITIC Limited, Deputy General Manager of CITIC
Corporation Limited, and the Party Secretary, Vice Chairman, Executive
Director and President of CNCB. He is also a Director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Fang joined CNCB in 1996 and was formerly
the President of Suzhou Branch, President of Hangzhou Branch and Business
Director of Financial Markets. He served as a Vice President of CNCB since
November 2014 and was further appointed as its President in March 2019.
Mr. Fang is a “Senior Economist”. He graduated from Hunan College of
Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's Degree in Finance and obtained
an Executive Master's Degree in Business Administration from Peking
University.

Mr. GUO Danghuai

(Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit Committee)

Appointed Non-executive Director of the Bank on 9 April 2020. Mr. Guo
is currently the Party Committee Member, Executive Director and Vice
President of CNCB. He is also Chairman of CITIC Wealth Management
Corporation Limited, Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited and CITIC aiBank
Corporation Limited. Mr. Guo joined CNCB in 1986 and was formerly its
Chief Auditor, General Manager of its Business Department at Head Office,
President of its Tianjin Branch and Shenyang Branch. Mr. Guo is a “Senior
Economist” and graduated from Peking University with a Master’s Degree in
Business Management. He has over 30 years of working experience in the
Chinese banking industry.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Hu Gang

(Non-executive Director, Member of the Credit & Risk Management
Committee)

Appointed Non-executive Director of the Bank on 4 March 2021. Mr. Hu
is currently the Party Committee Member, Vice President and Chief Risk
Officer of CNCB. Mr. Hu joined CNCB in 2000 and was formerly Head of
the Wholesale Business and Head of Risk Management of the Head Office,
President of Shanghai Branch, President of Chongging Branch and Vice
President of Changsha Branch. Mr. Hu graduated from Hunan University
with a Doctoral Degree in Economics. He is a “Senior Economist” with over
20 years of experience in the Chinese banking industry.

Ms. LI Shuk Yin Edwina

(Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit Committee)
Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on
28 September 2018. Ms. Li is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She was formerly with KPMG from 1994 with her last
role as the partner in charge of KPMG China's Financial Services Assurance
team until her retirement in March 2018. Ms. Li has significant experience in
accounting, capital market, market entrance, regulatory compliance related
internal control and risk management in Hong Kong and China. Prior to
joining KPMG, Ms. Li qualified as a Chartered Accountant with one of the
Big Four firms and as Controller with a real estate company and a financial
services group in London. She graduated from University of Exeter, England
with a Honours Degree in Accountancy. She received her Master's Degree
in Risk Management from Glasgow Caledonian University in Scotland
and holds a Postgraduate Diploma in Enterprise Risk Management from
HKU SPACE. She is also an Independent Non-executive Director and the
chairperson of the Audit Committee of Bank of Zhengzhou Co,, Ltd. and a
Director of Elite Beam Limited.

Mr. TANG Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on
13 November 2013. Mr. Tang is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Wison Engineering Services Co. Ltd. and Independent Director
of Chongqing Three Gorges Bank Co,, Ltd. He has extensive experience in
finance and securities industries. Mr. Tang graduated from Hunan College
of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's Degree in Finance. He received
his Master's Degree in Economics and Doctor's Degree in Economics
respectively from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China and
the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Mr. Tang was
granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The People’s Construction Bank of
China.
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Biographies of Directors

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee, Member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Credit & Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 1 December 2016.
Ms. Tsang is a well-recognised member of the Asian financial and business
community. Fortune Magazine (China) named her as No. 6 China’s Most
Influential Businesswomen in 2012 and she was on the top 25 list from
2010 to 2013. Ms. Tsang is the Founder of Max Giant Group, an asset
management business that has established a host of funds investing in both
public markets and private equities globally. She is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Fosun International Limited and Budweiser
Brewing Company APAC Limited, Non-executive Director of Fidelity
Emerging Markets Limited, Director of Ever Ascent Corporation Limited,
Pride Vision Group Limited and Try Door Limited, member of the Advisory
Council for China of the City of London, and an honorary board member
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Ms. Tsang was formerly with Standard
Chartered Bank for over 20 years with her last role as Chairperson of Greater
China before she retired in August 2014. She attained her Bachelor of
Commerce Degree from University of Alberta, Canada.

Mr. WANG Guoliang

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Member of the Credit & Risk Management Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 12 August
2016 and elected Chairman of Audit Committee on 2 November 2016.
Mr. Wang is a professor-level senior accountant and is currently
Independent Director of China Taiping Insurance Group Limited and COSCO
Shipping Lines Co., Limited. Mr. Wang worked as Chief Accountant of China
National Petroleum Corporation and was Chairman of Bank of Kunlun. He
has extensive experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Wang graduated
from Harbin University of Commerce with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics.
He received his Master's Degree in International Economics from Hebei
University.

Mr. WU Jiesi

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, Member of the Audit
Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5 August
2013 and elected Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 20 July 2016 and 25 May 2017 respectively.
Mr. Wu is Chairman of Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management Co., Ltd.
He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited and The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and finance. He holds a Doctor’s Degree in Economics from
The Research Institution of The People’s Bank of China. Mr. Wu conducted
post-doctorate research work in theoretical economics at Nankai University
and was conferred a Professorship Qualification by Nankai University in

2001.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Christine YAU

(Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Compliance and Operations
Officer)

Joined the Bank in January 2019 as Chief Controls & Compliance Officer.
Ms. Yau is currently the Bank's Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Compliance and Operations Officer and serving as Group Chief Compliance
Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, responsible for
managing the Bank's general compliance, legal, financial crime compliance
and operations management. Ms. Yau has over 20 years of experience in
internal control, audit, risk management and governance in the financial
services industry across Asia. She has held various senior positions in banks
and professional firms including Bank of America Merrill Lynch, National
Australia Bank, Hang Seng Bank Limited, KPMG and Ernst & Young. Prior to
joining the Bank, Ms. Yau was Managing Director & Head of Operational
Risk, Bank of America Merrill Lynch Asia Pacific. Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor's
Degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is
a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. LI Haixia

(Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Human Resources Officer)

Joined the Bank in September 2021 and is currently Deputy Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Human Resources Officer of the Bank and the Group
Chief Human Resources Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. Ms. Li has more than 20 years of experience in the banking industry
specialising in human resources management. Before joining the Bank,
she was Chief Business Manager of Globalization Office, Bank of China
Limited at which she had held various other senior management positions
including Deputy General Manager of Human Resources Department and
Vice President of Beijing Branch, in addition to General Manager of Human
Resources Department at Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Li holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering and a Master's Degree in Economics
from Tsinghua University. She subsequently obtained a PhD in Financial
Engineering from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics.

Ms. SUI Yang

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2022 as Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Sui also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Ms. Sui has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms. Sui
was the Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, overseeing Financial Management
Department, General Accounting and Accounting Policy Department,
Treasury, as well as the Economics & Strategic Planning Department. Before
that, she had held various senior management positions at Bank of China
such as Deputy General Manager of Financial Management Department
and Deputy General Manager of Management Information System Centre.
Ms. Sui obtained a Bachelor Degree and a Master Degree in Economics
from the Central University of Finance & Economics (formerly the Central
Institute of Finance and Banking), as well as a PhD Degree in Finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Sui is a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Frazer LAM

(Chief Information Officer)

Joined the Bank in April 2022 as Chief Information Officer and is responsible
for managing the Bank's information technology functions. Mr. Lam has
more than 20 years of experience in the banking and consulting industries,
with expertise particularly in application development and FinTech
technology. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Lam was the General Manager
of Technology and Services Department at New World Development
Company Limited. Before that, he had held various senior positions such
as Deputy General Manager, Information Technology Department of Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Lam is currently the Convenor of Hong
Kong Computer Society’s Fintech Specialist Group, taking an active role
in promoting the use of FinTech in Hong Kong and providing advice to
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
other stakeholders on FinTech development in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Information Technology from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. Telly CHAN

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in October 2017 and is currently Chief Auditor of the
Bank and Head of Group Audit of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the banking industry
specialising in internal audit, treasury and global markets. Before joining
the Bank, he was Programme Director, Financial Crime Risk Mitigation
Programme of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited. Prior to
that, he had held various senior management positions in Standard
Chartered including Head of Audit and Regional Head of Audit in different
geographic locations including Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr. Chan
holds a Master of Science Degree from the University of Salford, a Graduate
Diploma in Accounting from Macquarie University, and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of New England in Australia. He is
a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and CPA Australia.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Place of Business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. Outside of Hong Kong, the Bank
has branches operating in Macau, Singapore, New York and Los Angeles.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services, primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the Group's business (including an analysis using financial
key performance indicators), a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of 2021, an indication of likely
future development in the Group's business, a discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance as well as its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on it, and an
account of the Group's key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have a significant impact on it can be found
“Report of the Chief Executive Officer”, 2021
Notes to the Financial Statements” and “Corporate

in “Financial Performance”,
Review of Operations”,
Governance and Other Information” sections. The above sections form part

of this report.

Financial Statements

The consolidated profit of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the consolidated income statement on page

59.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

Share Capital

The Bank did not issue any shares during the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

Debentures Issued

The Bank issued USD600,000,000 Undated Non-Cumulative Subordinated
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities in July 2021 for its funding and general
corporate purposes (2020: Nil). Details of the debentures issued by the Bank
are set out in notes 30 and 32 of the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

The Bank did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors

(a) Directors of the Bank
As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Mr. YANG Yu

Executive Directors

Mr. BI Minggiang (President & Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Lijun (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TANG Nai Pan (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FANG Heying

Mr. GUO Danghuai

Mr. HU Gang (appointed on 4 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. LI Shuk Yin Edwina

Mr. TANG Shisheng

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

Mr. WANG Guoliang

Mr. WU lJiesi

In accordance with Article 105 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire from office by rotation at the next Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Save
for Mr. WU Jiesi, all Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

(b) Directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, Mr. Bl Minggiang, Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen, Mr. BAI Lijun and
Mr. TANG Nai Pan, who are Directors of the Bank, are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Bank.

Other directors of the Bank's subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report include Mr. CHOI Wing Tsan Varden,
Mr. CUI Hai, Ms. GE Danping, Mr. KAN Ying Tim, Mr. KWONG Po Yin Patrick,
Ms. LI Haixia, Mr. MAK Kit Leung Mathew, Ms. SUI Yang, Mr. SUO Xuquan,
Mr. TAM Yat Kung, Mr. WANG Feige, Mr. WONG Man Kin Jack, Mr. WOO
Kwan Pok Alvin, Ms. YAU Wai Man Christine, Mr. ZHONG Wenhui Edward
and Mr. ZHU Ning. Ms. CHOI Yuk Ling, Ms. LING Taotao, Mr. LYU Xiangrong,
Mr. PANG Jiaren and Mr. ZHANG Naxin had been directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and have resigned during the year and up to the date of this
report.

Directors’ Interests

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance in relation to
the Bank's business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Bank and the Director's connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At no time during the year or at the end of the year was the Bank, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report,

a permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank
isin force.
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Report of the Directors

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of its
current term of office at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Bl Mingqiang
Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of China CITIC Bank International Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which are set
out on pages 59 to 211, which comprise:

®  the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

® the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

® the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to expected credit losses on loans and advances to customers.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded total gross loans and advances to customers of HK$242,667 million and expected credit
losses ("ECL") on loans and advances to customers of HKS$1,872 million, of which HK$1,142 million, HK$175 million and HK$555 million are
stage 1,2 and 3 ECL allowances, respectively. Refer to notes 19(a) and (c), and 37(a)(vi) to the consolidated financial statements for details.

For stage 1 and 2 loans and advances to customers, the Group assesses ECL by using risk parameter modelling methodology based on
internal and external data that requires application of significant judgements and assumptions in deriving the risk parameters. These
judgements and assumptions include determination of customer's creditworthiness, forecasts of different macroeconomic scenarios and
weightings applied to such scenarios.

The COVID-19 pandemic situation and the uncertain impact of government policies affecting various industry sectors have posed
challenges to and induced further estimation uncertainty in current year's ECL computation. Greater management judgement is required
in various ECL model inputs such as the credit rating of customers and variables used in macroeconomic forecast scenarios, as well as post
model overlay. For the current year, a management overlay which is inherently judgemental in nature has been applied to the modelled
ECL outcome in respect of exposures to mainland commercial real estate sector.

In assessing the ECL for loans and advances in stage 3, which are regarded as credit-impaired, the significant judgements and assumptions
applied relate to estimating the timing and amount of recoverable cash flows under a range of possible scenarios and their weightings
determined based on available information.

We have identified the estimation of ECL on the Group's loans and advances to customers as a key audit matter as it is inherently complex
because it involves the use of numerous parameters and data inputs, and is subject to a high degree of estimation uncertainty due to
application of management judgements and assumptions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of management’s processes and internal controls over determination of ECL on loans and advances to
customers in order to assess the risk of estimation uncertainty and identify the likely sources of material misstatement for ECL. In assessing
risk of estimation uncertainty, we have taken into account inherent risk factors such as complexity of ECL methodologies adopted and
judgements and assumptions applied.

In response to risks assessed and likely sources of material misstatements identified, we have performed a combination of test of controls
and substantive procedures as part of our audit. These include:

*  Assessed management's controls over determination and approval of key judgements (e.g. macroeconomic forecasts and scenario
weightings, management overlay, recoverable cash-flows and recovery scenarios on credit-impaired loans etc.) and the ECL

outcome.

*  Assessed the operating effectiveness of controls exercised by management in assigning and updating internal credit ratings, such as
ad-hoc credit reviews, thematic portfolio reviews and early alert mechanism to identify deterioration in customer creditworthiness.

*  Assessed whether and how management has taken into account the impact of latest COVID-19 pandemic situation, applicable
government policies and other macroeconomic events in evaluating customer creditworthiness and ECL computation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (continued)

Independently reviewed and challenged the internal credit ratings for a sample of loan exposures as at 31 December 2021.

For macroeconomic forecasts adopted in ECL computation, we evaluated the reasonableness and supportability of macroeconomic
forecast scenarios and their weightings by performing sensitivity analyses and comparing against publicly available information.

Reviewed the results of management’s ECL. model validation and back-testing.

Independently reviewed and challenged ECL provisions for significant stage 3 exposures, and assessing the reasonableness
of management's estimates of the timing and amount of recoverable cash flows under a range of possible scenarios and their
weightings based on financial information of borrowers, collateral valuations and information on other available sources of recovery.

Tested management'’s controls over input of critical data elements of the ECL model, user access and interface of critical data
from source systems to the ECL models, reconciliation between the ECL modelled outcome and financial reporting systems, and
independently tracing data relating to key ECL model judgements and assumptions to relevant source systems and documentation.

Checked and evaluated the financial statements disclosures in relation to ECL on loans and advances to customers against relevant
accounting standard requirements.

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the

annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Group assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

®  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms. Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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HE2021F12A31HIEFE

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2021 2020
s BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
FMEMA Interest income 4(a) 7,945,179 9,038,772
FEZH Interest expense 4(b) (2,139,909) (3,852,587)
BRAEWA Net interest income 5,805,270 5,186,185
&R &Ae WA Fee and commission income 1,763,233 1,401,025
BRARMEIH Fee and commission expense (156,249) (139,207)
FEARBESKBA Net fee and commission income 5 1,606,984 1,261,818
ER A Net trading income 6 879,240 905,560
SFE R Net hedging loss 7 - (1,313)
HEURABEFAEMEEWEZE  Netloss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
MEeMEEFEL through other comprehensive income (118,884) (33,428)
HgeZg A Other operating income 8 22,737 36,805
BEWA Operating income 8,195,347 7,355,627
meETH Operating expenses 9 (3,929,622) (3,661,798)
KRR EEFER K& RR Operating profit before impairment 4,265,725 3,693,829
SREEEHEERX Expected credit losses on financial assets 1 (1,782,919) (2,356,656)
Hi BEREER Impairment losses reversed on other assets 13,731 4176
WEBEX Impairment losses (1,769,188) (2,352,480)
PSS Ping| Operating profit 2,496,537 1,341,349
HEME  REREFEE Net loss on disposal of property and equipment and
EE=EN intangible assets (2,915) (961)
WEEEGH RS (BK) Revaluation gain/(loss) on investment properties 23 6,777 (34,300)
BATRF Profit before taxation 2,500,399 1,306,088
FRiSH Income tax 12 (371,961) (150,271)
REERR Profit for the year 2,128,438 1,155,817
HERBRRAEFR Profit attributable to shareholders 2,128,438 1,155,817

FARRF2N BN B AR RER—315 -

statements.

The notes on pages 64 to 211 form part of these consolidated financial
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HE2021F12A31HIEFE

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2021 2020
k=3 BETT BT
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
A F R F Profit for the year 2,128,438 1,155,817
AEEHMEE (BX) WE Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 13
ERERERGRE > HEBT8E Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
EfSEERESWERNIER consolidated income statement when specific
conditions are met
MEBIMEEN I B RE Exchange differences on translation of financial
N =R statements of foreign operations 48,190 98,906
MAREBEFAREMEERZER Financial assets at fair value through other
TREE comprehensive income
-EBIEMAREEES - change in the fair value of debt instruments (674,566) 228,445
- HERESEWZEE — transfer to income statement on disposal 118,884 33,428
- B _F i R RIER IR — deferred tax related to the above 90,709 (42,036)
- REEERER R — transfer to income statement on impairment 59,133 22853
(405,840) 242,690
HETEEFPEERERAER Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
IER : consolidated income statement
W EGFE Property revaluation reserve
- HMEEFHEERE — surplus on revaluation of other premises upon
VIEREANEHRR reclassification to investment properties 159,602 58,686
AR EEGAEMEERRT Financial assets at fair value through other
BREEE comprehensive income
-BRETEN AR EBEZS - change in the fair value of equity instruments (31,836) 1,686
- B P A RRRET 1A — deferred tax related to the above 5,253 (278)
(26,583) 1,408
AEEHMEE (BX)KE Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (224,631) 401,690
AEEZHEINEHETE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,903,807 1,557,507
FEARRNEZEKZEE Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders 1,903,807 1,557,507
Fe4ERFE2N BN B A SRR —I1 - The notes on pages 64 to 211 form part of these consolidated financial

FRIEIRTT (BIFR) BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BB R

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2021

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2021 2020
Bt s BT BT IT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
e RERITRARIBITHET Cash and balances with banks and central banks 15 28,828,450 32,783,916
Efﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁm&%m Placements with and advances to banks 16 21,058,640 28,969,830
UARBEFAEBENESHEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 17(a) 3,106,275 2,649,076
PTESRBTA Derivative financial instruments 18(b) 8,888,842 14,378,601
BPEZRNBZ L EMERTE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 19 249,416,421 226,789,958
AR EEFAEMZERZED Financial assets at fair value through other
TRIEE comprehensive income 20 103,926,448 84,950,868
S NNy Amortised cost investments 21 53,375 48,493
LEYNE Property and equipment 23
—REME — Investment properties 446,607 254,830
— HAuhEmMFB A — Other premises and equipment 479,209 511,806
ERAREE Right-of-use assets 24 559,103 696,653
mEEE Intangible assets 25 539,779 635,101
CIEqEE A Tax recoverable 28(a) - 55,449
EEFIAE E Deferred tax assets 28(b) 168,886 174,107
EERE Total Assets 417,472,035 392,898,688
BERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
=N Liabilities
AT R H A& mh AR A1 R Deposits and balances of banks and other
17 financial institutions 13,584,427 5,326,408
BEPER Deposits from customers 26 327,768,033 309,877,016
WAREBEFABZNESHEE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 17(b) 768,006 290,185
PTESRBTAE Derivative financial instruments 18(b) 8,766,335 15,160,283
BEITHRE Certificates of deposit issued 27 1,481,389 -
REFIIE B E Current tax liabilities 28(a) 120,708 19,656
EEIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 28(b) 1,541 904
HEMmAaE Other liabilities 29 10,718,536 10,078,174
HEAE Lease liabilities 592,621 722,894
BEBER Loan capital 30 3,883,863 3,855,374
BE8E Total Liabilities 367,685,459 345,330,894
B Equity
A% 7R Share capital 31(a) 18,404,013 18,404,013
i Reserves 22,827,746 21,393,369
REREREEE Total shareholders’ equity 41,231,759 39,797,382
HmprgETA Other equity instruments 32 8,554,817 7,770,412
R Total Equity 49,786,576 47,567,794
EEkBERAE Total Equity and Liabilities 417,472,035 392,898,688

EEEH 202293 A22 B AW EEREAM
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022.

298
Bl Mingqiang
BITEE  [TRAFTTHARE

Executive Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Fe4BEIZE21

B PR A 15k — &R

WEE
TANG Nai Pan
HITEFFRETHAEE

statements.

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 64 to 211 form part of these consolidated financial
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HE2021F12A31HIEFE

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
ENZE  DEER REER #E-R ApREI1R
Bk B B e ] (Hit3)
Bx  EXEE  -BEE  bchnge  Propery  Investment DB Requbtoy  REEM  BEEE  Oteeqity  BEEE
Share Capital General  differences revaluation  revaluation  Statutory general Retained Total  instruments Total
capital reserve reserve resrve resrve reserve reserve reserve profits reserves (note32) equity
Bt Mt BT RETn #Efn #ffn #fEn T T T BT BT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000. HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HkS000
RonE1 818 At 1 January 2021 18404013 6,589 100,000 3,348 134931 593,020 60,108 149500 20345873 21393369 77700412 47,567,794
BENNENERET.  Changesinequityfor 2021:
RERR Prfitforthe ear - - - - - - - - 212843 -2
FERRp2ENE Other comprehensive income fo theyear - - - 48,190 159600 (432,4)) - - - ) - e
KEEREWELR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4819 159600 (432413) - - I8M8 1903807 - 1903807
EER el Tranferfiom retained profts - - - - - - W 30767 (33,494) - - -
TABI-HERZHES  Distibuton payment for Adtional Tir |
Capital ecurites (‘AT Capital Securiies) - - - - - - - - (43 (W43 - (441,432)
E-RAnREs lsue f ATI Capitel Securtes - - - - - - - - - - 4GB 67489
WEEHN—HEREFZE  Redemption of ATI Capital Securties - - - - - - - - (27,998) (27998)  (3,863,084) (3,891,082
HonEnAA At 31 December 2021 18,404,013 6,589 100,000 51,538 294,533 160,597 62,835 180267 2197387 22,827,746 8554817 49,786,576
OIEIE: At T January 2020 18404013 6,589 100,000 95,558) 7624 348922 59,162 149500 19630889 20275749 1770412 46450174
BEANENEEES:  Changesinequityfor 200
KER R Proftforthe year - - - - - - - N AT VALY i1 - IS8
FEFEMRTNE Other comprehenive income for the year - - - 98906 58,686 4409 - - - 401690 - 40169
FEREENELE Totdlcomprehenshe ncomefor the e - - - %906 B 0% - SN LR TF - IS
28785 Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - %6 - (94) - - -
SREN-FETZEZE  Distrouton payment for ATI CapitlSecuries - - - - - - - S (308 S (g
R00ENAA 31 December 2020 18404013 6,589 100,000 334 134931 59300 60,108 149500 0348713 21393369 TTI0412 4756779

Fe4BEIZE21

FRIEIRTT (BIFR) BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The notes on pages 64 to 211 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2021 2020
k=3 BT T BT
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
ANREEENAS TR Net cash used in operating activities 33(a) (10,120,531) (6,127,485)
RE (AR BREEXRNESE Cash flow generated from/(used in) investing activities
PR E SRR Dividends received from equity securities 3,810 4,330
BAMELLBNEREE Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (263,038) (385,507)
HEMERBBATSRIE Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 144 26
ARREEZENES TSR Net cash used in investing activities (259,084) (381,151)
RE /(AR BEXRNESE Cash flow generated from/(used in) financing activities
BITRRIN—RE LB HFIERIA Proceeds from AT1 Capital Securities issuance 4,647,489 -
Y HE R B B TESE SF A Payment for redemption of debt securities issued - (3,252,833)
B RE S E A RIR Payment for redemption of loan capital - (2,359,017)
§1TJLE§@§E9|\*£&§$§§ Payment for redemption of AT1 Capital Securities (3,891,082) -
XA FEIN— R EARFE 5 Distribution paid on AT1 Capital Securities (441,432) (439,887)
YHREEEERIE Payment of lease liabilities (310,351) (313626)
TR BBITESESFFS Interest paid on debt securities issued - (59,195)
YIHMEKRE A B Interest paid on loan capital (179,742) (256 7)
AREMEEBNRESTE Net cash used in financing activities (175,118) (6,680,695)
ReRBEESEBDFHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (10,554,733)  (13,189,331)
MB1ENEERESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 78,305,049 90,903,199
ReRBECESEEENEREH Exchange differences in respect of cash and cash
equivalents 103,775 591,181
R12B31BEMNEERESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 33(b) 67,854,091 78,305,049

Feo4HE|E

1B R R AR Tk — AR

o

The notes on pages 64 to 211 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which
materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the
Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong, and has its registered office at 61-65 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"), Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
in Note 2.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 2.1 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit or

loss, at fair value through other comprehensive income (see
note 2.2(c)(iv), (v) and (vi)) or derivatives (see note 2.2(h))

- investment properties (see note 2.2(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires that management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources

of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the requirements of ‘Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2 Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 16
(IBOR reform Phase 2) which is effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. This has resulted in additional disclosures as

described below (refer to Note 2.1).

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far there are no other
standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting

periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1

2.2

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been continuously applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

New adoption of the requirements of Interbank offer rate (IBOR)
reform Phase 2
IBOR reform Phase 2 includes a number of reliefs and additional
disclosures. The reliefs apply upon the transition of a financial
instrument from an IBOR to a risk-free rate (RFR) or alternative
benchmark rate.

Changes to the basis for determining contractual cash flows as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform are required as a practical expedient
to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, provided that, for
the financial instrument, the transition from the IBOR benchmark rate
to RFR takes place on an economically equivalent basis.

As indicated in the accounting policies, the Group elected, as a
policy choice permitted under HKFRS 9, to continue to apply hedge
accounting in accordance with HKAS 39.

IBOR reform Phase 2 provides temporary reliefs that allow the Bank's
hedging relationships to continue upon the replacement of an
existing interest rate benchmark with an RFR. The reliefs require the
Bank to amend hedge designations and hedge documentation. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter into any
accounting hedge transaction.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
the income statement as follows:

(i) Interestincome
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments is recognised in the income statement
on an accruals basis. Effective interest method is used
for recognising interest income on those financial
instruments that are not classified as fair value through
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, call and similar options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage
loans are capitalised and amortised to the income
statement over their expected life.

Interest on impaired loans is recognised using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee
is charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to,
or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature.
In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred and
is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by
the Group which result in the creation or acquisition
of a financial asset are deferred and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate. When a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down
of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the commitment period.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(@) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)~ Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase

contract

Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire
purchase payments is recognised as interest income over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net
investment in the leases for each accounting period.
Commission paid to dealers for the acquisition of finance
lease loans or hire purchase contracts is included in the
carrying value of the assets and amortised to the income
statement over the expected life of the lease as an

adjustment to interest income.

(iv)  Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the investment is

quoted ex-dividend.

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows, and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in the income statement.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of the
entity are allocated for as if the group had directly disposed
of related assets or liabilities. This way means that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the Bank's statement of financial position, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.2(d)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see note 2.2(1)).

Financial instruments

(i) Classification
The Group has classified its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost

- Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"); or

- Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")
The classification depends on the Group's business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial assets
at their fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets, such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets with
embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the financial
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. There are three measurement categories into which
the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI"), and that are not
designated at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any
expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured
as described in the credit risk management section of
this annual financial report. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in ‘interest income” using the
effective interest rate method. Loan origination fees and
costs are considered to be adjustments to the loan yield
and are recognised in credit fees over the commitment
period which it is unlikely that the commitment will be
called upon, otherwise, they are recognised in interest
income over the term of the resulting loan.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOC!")
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss in the same manner as financial assets measured
at amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains
and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified from other comprehensive income
to profit or loss. Interest income from debt instruments at
FVOCI is included in ‘interest income” using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss and included in ‘net trading income’ in the period in
which it arises.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the
following categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits,
certificates of deposit in issue, loan capital and other
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of
financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss,
plus or minus transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (continued)

v)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is
incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in
the short term. It is measured at fair value and any gains
and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement, with interest component being
reported as part of the interest expenses.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
orloss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through
profit or loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial
liabilities so designated include certain certificates of
deposit in issue and certain deposits received from
customers that are embedded with derivatives. A financial
liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
criteria:

- eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise
arise from measuring the financial liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases; or

- applies to a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both that is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
Group is provided internally on that basis to the key
management; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

v)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit

or loss (continued)

- relates to financial liabilities containing one or more
embedded derivatives that significantly modify the
cash flows resulting from those financial liabilities.
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are
recognised in the income statement, except for
fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
recognised as other comprehensive income and
subsequently reclassified to the retained earnings
upon derecognition, unless such would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
then all gains and losses from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement.

Deposits, certificates of deposit in issue, loan capital and
other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit in issue, together with
loan capital and other liabilities, other than those classified
as trading liabilities or designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference
(if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs
and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s
net assets.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group's management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The Group's policy
is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when those
investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss, including on disposal.

(d) Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of amortised cost and financial assets through
other comprehensive income

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses ("ECL") associated with its debt
instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVOC]
and with the exposures arising from loan commitment
and financial guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a
loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

(i) thetime value of money; and

(i) reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecast of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i Impairment of amortised cost and financial assets through

other comprehensive income (continued)

The exposure of default ("EAD") represents the expected
balance at default, taking into account the repayment of
principal and interest from the balance sheet date to the
default event together with any expected drawdowns
of committed facilities. The loss given default ("LGD")
represents expected losses on the EAD given the event
of default, taking into account, among other attributes,
the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

A 3-Stages approach to impairment for financial assets
that are performing at the date of origination or purchase.

This approach is summarised as follows:

- Stage 1: The Group recognises a credit loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. This represents the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses from default
events that are expected within 12 months of the
reporting date, assuming that credit risk has not

increased significantly after initial recognition.

- Stage 2: The Group recognises a credit loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses for those financial assets which are
considered to have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Allowances for credit losses are higher in this
stage because of an increase in credit risk and the
impact of a longer time horizon being considered

compared to 12 months in Stage 1.

- Stage 3: The Group recognises a credit loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses, reflecting that financial assets are
credit impaired with 100% probability of default.
The Group's definition of default is aligned with the

regulatory definition.
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Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts)

- intangible assets

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.

- right-of-use assets

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units), and
then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset is
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss (except for
impairment on goodwill) is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income statement in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(9)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Bank or the counterpart.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced
at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments,
or if the market for them is not active, the fair value of the
instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide
a reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual
market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management'’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, input is
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to
repurchase these securities at a certain later date at a fixed
price (repurchase agreements) are retained in the financial
statements and measured in accordance with their original
measurement principles. The proceeds from the sale received
are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions (continued)
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse
repurchase agreements) are reported not as purchases of the
securities and not recognised on the statement of financial
position, but the consideration paid is recorded as receivables,
and are carried in the statement of financial position at
amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest
income or interest expense, respectively, over the life of each
agreement, using the effective interest rate method.

Derivatives and hedging activities

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract,
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. If a
hybrid contract contains a host that is not an asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the embedded derivatives are separated from
the host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2.2(c)(ii)).

The Group has elected to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements of HKAS 39 on adoption of HKFRS 9.
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit
or loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument
and the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents
whether the financial instruments that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items attributable to the hedged
risks both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis. The
Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when
(a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)

(i

(ii)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in
the fair value of a recognised asset or liability that will
give rise to a gain or loss being recognised in the income
statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with
fair value changes recognised in the income statement.
The carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted by
the amount of the changes in fair value of the hedging
instrument attributable to the risk being hedged. This
adjustment is recognised in the income statement
to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting; or the Group revokes designation of
the hedge relationship, any adjustment up to that point,
to a hedged item for which the effective interest rate
method is used is amortised to the income statement as
part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the item
over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries
out prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that
it expects the hedge to be highly effective (prospective
effectiveness) at the inception of the hedge and
throughout its life. Actual effectiveness (retrospective
effectiveness) also needs to be demonstrated on an
ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets
out how the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The
method which the Group adopts for assessing hedge
effectiveness will depend on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument
must be expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge
is designated. For actual effectiveness, the changes in fair
value or cash flows must offset each other in the range of
80% to 125% for the hedge to be deemed effective.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2.2(1))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land and buildings held for a currently undetermined
future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in the income statement. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 2.2(a)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
2.2(1)(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 2.2(a)(iii).

If an item of premises becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss classified under premises,
the gain is recognised in the income statement up to the
amount previously debited.
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22 FESHBEHME(E)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Hit% - REREAEEE
ELMBHRERERBEBLGHAMA

()

Other premises and equipment and right-of-use assets
In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been

SRMEHCEBSFTERDFE 165 Y taken of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of
¥ BERZE] FS0ABRFTHEMBEE HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA,
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amounts in financial statements relating to periods ended
before 30 September 1995 have not been revalued to fair value
at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note 2.2(d)(ii)):

- buildings held for own use;

- other items of equipment.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for own
use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income

HFERNDFARE - and are accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve.
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the item, and are recognised in the income statement on the
date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to the income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property and equipment (including right-of-use assets),
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings are depreciated over 30 years or the unexpired
terms of the land leases, whichever is shorter.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(j). Other premises and equipment and right-of-use assets

(continued)

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over a

term of 3 to 10 years.

- Right-of-use assets over the shorter of useful lives and

lease terms.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts, and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

(k) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the acquired software licenses
and capitalised development costs of computer software
programmes. Cost associated with maintaining software
programme are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs, which directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable and software products for internal
use, are capitalised as part of the software and included
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant

overheads.

Intangible assets for software that have a finite estimated
useful life are stated at cost less amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, and are amortised over their estimated
useful lives (5 years) on a straight-line basis. Intangible assets are
subject to impairment review on an annual basis if there are any
impairment indicators present that the carrying amount may

not be recoverable.

() Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use

over the contract period.

16D | 25
Annual Report 2021

083



BTSRRI R

2 FEETERE)

22 FESTHBEME (&)
n #E#E)
() EARAA
EERSBHIS - B AH12{E
A ARG HHAEFNEEERE
EMHEEN  SESERMERE
WERAEEERTHEEASE -1
SEFRI THREEEEEMRBN
HE  SERERTRERFRRE
EEBHESREEL - THE
EltzHEERMBBEENRK
HerHERNRFERAY
T

EHEARWEE/LK HER
EEUEORNEENRERK
RBen - (B2 EmReHRT
156 B 48 7H 4 P AE R B0 4B FH HA T
W) WEESRFHANE
R - RAZF R R TR AL
FEER - AlERAEARHEERH
f A HR g A BN R RAGR
B8 ERVaEREE - HEN
REERENREE RN E
ENFBE (B2 EEBEEMMNR
#) ~ BURNIE BN R ey a] &
MERRE LR ERR T O
558 - HENRBETEREE
AEETEITEMNRBERZEN
TEE  UAREEBEREGITEN
RERIDEE MR IEANMEX
TEVEIRK

EmiERE  HERESAS
BRI E - FIE A g AR
EMEFEFE - FEURRIEE
KARH AR RBL TR IR
HEREWE  HAterEEE
VERTFE NG AWRER ©

084  FRIFIRIT (EIFR) BIRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)

(i

As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, after taking into account
payments to be made in the optional period if the
extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using a
constant periodic rate of interest. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted when
the lease liabilities are remeasured.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or a rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change of lease terms, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in income statement if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group
may take possession of assets held as collateral through
court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the
borrowers. Where it is intended to achieve an orderly realisation
of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking
repayment from the borrower, repossessed assets are reported
in “Loans and advances to customers and other accounts”. The
Group does not hold the repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less
costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated

or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

(n) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having

been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(o) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

(i) Staff retirement scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund
and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions
are charged to the income statement as and when the

contributions fall due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits;
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.2(i), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investment in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets
are recognised on the deductible temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Additional income tax that arises from the distribution of
dividends is recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements

therein, are presented separately from each other and are not

offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,

and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and

only if, the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

(i

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong Dollars (HK$'000), which is the
Bank's functional currency and the Group's presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into functional currency at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
into Hong Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
are included in gains less losses from trading securities
or financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains less losses from
dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement.
Differences arising on the translation of fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the investment revaluation reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statements of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to the
income statement when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debtinstrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to
customers, the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within other liabilities.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm'’s length transaction for similar services when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to
its subsidiaries, the fair value of the guarantee is estimated
and capitalised as the cost of investment in subsidiaries
and deferred income within other liabilities.

The deferred income is amortised in the income
statement over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. Financial guarantee liabilities
are subsequently carried at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with the expected credit loss
model under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event.
It is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Related parties

(a

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use, and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above criteria
for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary
after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up to
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale,
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below) or disposal groups are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so
far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank are
concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These
assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised
in the income statement. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group's
management committee members for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.

(v) Government Grants

Government grants are assistance by government in the form
of transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or future
compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating
activities of the Group. They exclude those forms of government
assistance which cannot reasonably have a value placed upon
them and transactions with government which cannot be
distinguished from the normal business activities of the Group.

Government grants related to assets shall be presented in the
statement of financial position either by setting up the grant
as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at
the carrying amount of the asset. Grants related to income
statement are presented as part of profit or loss and they are

deducted in reporting the related expense.

3 Critical estimates, judgements and errors

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these financial statements; and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The Group has established procedures to ensure that
accounting policies are applied consistently and that the processes
for changing methodologies, determining estimates, and adopting
new accounting standards are continually evaluated and in proper

and reasonable manner.

@® | Aot report 202

095



BTSRRI R

3

BASEMERTAL - HIETMEER ()

&aE
(i)

(ii)

AENBERMITM - HEMER
EBEERN BT E

EBR A
EBRARIR T S E A EIEE E I
EXRERE  BHEH  AREW
BEECEESREETHNERR
ERE  BRURAEFERSRERK
WEHEEEMELNRER - IR
BEUHTERER/XZENMES
AlemEERARABES ABDE

IR E -

AEBAERE —HEEXHEARE
BHAZRBHBEREELEENR
ERENESR  MAFHEEENEN
YAEREREABRSE - AIRFEA
EERBIA RN EESAHE -

ERALRFEFIBREA
IREHEARFAEEANRE L
RenEdRBKRBANRAEZREN
HE - IAREEFHERTANE
ERERBERERANE NS
(TR TN AT R A BARERHA]L) o
FETHER  AEEZEANRE
MEBRTBERNERLH— - BIH
EEEEERYeBENKMEE  F8
R - HMERNERERMEERE
KL — BT BERNERE -

TR B EFERIEARL

TREENBREGERNEENER
MERBRERHOREK - AREREAR
SEBENES - BHEMIGRRAK
BWMEH RO M - A HE
EHZFREMERREFTENRA
BE - BT Z2BRZNBANFS
FlanfEE R ARIE I - EMEER
KETE - AIEMEERRERERN B
RIFE7HEERRER O KE

096 RSERIT (EIIR) BIRAT

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

3

Critical estimates, judgements and errors (continued)

Critical estimates, judgements and errors for financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Business model assessment

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets
in order to generate cash flows; that is, whether the Group’s
objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and
cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is
applicable and they are held for trading purposes, the financial
assets are classified and measured at FVPL.

Factors considered by the Group in determining the business
model for a group of assets include past experience on how
the cash flows for these assets are collected, how the asset’s
performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how
managers are compensated.

Solely payments of principal and interest test

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement.

Expected credit losses on financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of key assumptions and inputs such as significant
increase in credit risk, measurement of expected credit loss,
forward-looking information and management overlay are
disclosed in the credit risk management section of note 37.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Critical estimates, judgements and errors (continued)

Critical estimates, judgements and errors for financial assets

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
majority of the Group's financial instruments reported at fair
value are based on quoted and observable market prices or on
internally developed models that are based on independently
sourced or verified market parameters. The fair value of financial
instruments without an observable market price in a liquid
market may be determined using valuation models. The choice
of model requires significant judgement for complex products.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values.

Judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with
renewal options

The Group determines the lease terms as the non-cancellable
term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is necessary certain not to be exercised.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group will need
to apply judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. Moreover, the Group will reassess the
lease term if there is any significant event or changes that
affects its ability to exercise the option to renew.
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4 FIEWARFMELZH 4 Interestincome and interest expense
(@ FEWKA (@) Interestincome
2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHES Listed securities 1,090,551 1,334,070
JELETES Unlisted securities 276,094 402,904
ERITHAETT ~ FRRBK Balances, placements with and advances to banks 128,760 501,356
BN E M ARTE Advances and other accounts 6,449,774 6,800,442
AR BEFAEBEA Interest income on financial assets that are
SEEEMNNBWA not at fair value through profit or loss 7,945,179 9,038,772
TS B 5B B AR P A AR A £ (B A Included within interest income are HK$6,627,788,000 (2020:
FAEMEEMKENESREE - DRI A HK$7,341,962,000) and HK$1,317,391,000 (2020: HK$1,696,810,000) for
6,627,788,0007C (20204 : 78#57,341,962,000 financial assets measured at amortised cost and at fair value through
7C) 7S 1,317,391,0007T (20204 : B other comprehensive income respectively.

1,696,810,0007T,) ©

(b) FEXH (b) Interest expense
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
P RITREMESBIEED Deposits from customers, banks and

FAREEAM other financial institutions and others 1,926,368 3,495,667
BEBITFNE Certificates of deposit issued 3,984 13,323
BETERES Debt securities issued - 59,195
EEITEHRER Loan capital issued 186,106 256,137
HEaRE Lease liabilities 23,451 28,265

ESERAGTEN SR AE Interest expense on financial liabilities that are
MEZH measured at amortised cost 2,139,909 3,852,587

098  RIFIRIT (EIFR) BIRAE
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FEARAEWA 5 Net fee and commission income
2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BRARASUA Fee and commission income:
E3EE 3 2lika Bills commission 77,023 69,097
ERREBRA Card-related income 32,368 28,872
BEBHEARTS Debt capital markets 215,572 265,267
R Insurance 589,093 409,820
WENEBEREER Investment and structured investment products 312,638 256,746
BN B RRMEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 401,551 228,523
RITARTS Banking services 131,977 135,425
HAh Others 3,011 7,275
1,763,233 1,401,025
ERNAEETH Fee and commission expense (156,249) (139,207)
1,606,984 1,261,818
Hep: Of which:
FEBRARASWA (TNBIEAME  Netfee and commission income (other than the
FTEERNENEE) BN amounts included in determining the effective
WIEIE AR EEFT ABZERED interest rate) relating to financial assets and
TRIEENRAE liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
— BRMASIA — Fee and commission income 510,942 326,492
—BRMESTH — Fee and commission expense (42,837) (22,122)
468,105 304,370
FERZWA 6 Nettradingincome
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEINE F Net gains from dealing in foreign currencies 632,949 118,078
BEUAAREBEFABZANEE  Netlosses from financial assets at fair value through
BEFEX profit or loss (53,785) (80,722)
HubBEEEF (Bk), Kz Net (losses)/gains from other dealing activities (108,777) 247,113
RPRBEEEFFERA Net interest income on trading activities
-k - Listed 82,096 122,842
— 3Lk ~ Unlisted 326,757 498,249
879,240 905,560
FBEHhE 7 Nethedgingloss
2021 2020
BT T AT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
AR BELRF (BX), W Net hedging (loss)/gain on fair value hedges
— ¥R T AFEL - Net loss on hedging instruments - (57,210)
— BB PR/ ERIER - Net gain on hedged items attributable to
F R the hedged risk - 55,897
- (1,313)
—E=—%%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8 Other operating income

2021 2020
BET T BT IT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
& BT A Dividend income
—ELEMRE — Unlisted investments 3,810 4330
HEYHERS WA R ERE Rental income from investment properties
S % 244,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$244,000 (2020:
(20204 : % 227,0007T) HK$227,000) 3,907 3,069
Hitb Others 15,020 29,406
22,737 36,805
9 REZH 9  Operating expenses
2021 2020
BET T BT IT
HKS$'000 HKS'000
(a) BIRAE (a) Staff costs
e REME TAA (BfsE) Salaries and other staff costs (Note) 2,200,315 1,948,422
RIS (HF7E34) Retirement costs (note 34) 137,883 124,372
2,338,198 2,072,794
(b) WER#EH (b) Depreciation and amortisation
YN EREITE (M1FE23) Depreciation — property and equipment (note 23) 118,408 113,458
FRAEEEIE (H:F24) Depreciation — right-of-use assets (note 24) 297,759 291,776
R E E#E (H7E25) Amortisation — intangible assets (note 25) 244,816 207,597
660,983 612,831
() Hh&&EZH (c) Other operating expenses
LEYSE LA Property and equipment expenses
(TEiEHE) (excluding depreciation) 387,058 415,801
1% EL AT B <& Auditor’s remuneration
— B IR - Audit fee 7,219 7,200
— EEFT R - Non-audit fee 754 1,604
EEE Advertising 99,490 82,727
WAE - HIR R EA® Communication, printing and stationery 166,897 146,809
BT HIREE Electronic data processing 108,696 154,235
FERBEXEER Legal and professional fees 65,445 65,822
HAtb Others 94,882 101,975
930,441 976,173
T HAKE Total operating expenses 3,929,622 3,661,798

Mo

Note:

HZE20200F 12A31BIEFE  AEEREGLE
THEEHED B BB RITTEE BT RB A
58,137,0007C * sZ BB E M B TR A A IR ©

100 R{EERTT (B BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received HK$58,137,000
from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the Employment Support Scheme and such government subsidy was
deducted from the staff cost.
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EEMS 10 Directors’ remuneration
BIBEBCRRUERE) (F622F) F3831& % The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
DA [ BEEEFEER EAMBENE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies
==X o (N (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is

set out as below:
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEWe Directors’ fees 5,630 4813
e RMEREDA = (W) Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (Note) 29,175 20,936
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 20,120 14,688
IRIRET B X Retirement scheme contributions 1,899 1,861
56,824 42,298
5T Note:

BV B tEER RRE -

Benefits in kind mainly include housing allowance and insurance premium.
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11 Expected credit losses on financial assets

assets

Expected credit losses (“ECL") charged/(reversed) on financial

2021
FIRER 2R FEIRER #zE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT B¥Tr BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEIRIT P RIBITHEETF Balances with banks and central banks 2,016 - - 2,016
HRITHEFER LB Placements with and advances to banks (5,083) - - (5,083)
BEFERMREBR K Loans and advances to customers and
HAARIE other accounts 554,064  (402,773) 1,652,241 1,803,532
AR BETAEM Financial assets at fair value through other
FERENECREE comprehensive income (16,559) - 75,692 59,133
BRI E Amortised cost investments 2 - - 2
BEFURERER Loan commitments and guarantees
(BREZFaE (included in contingent liabilities and
) commitments) 15,265 542 - 15,807
549,705 (402,231) 1,727,933 1,875,407
g Bl & %8 Recoveries (92,488)
1,782,919
2020
FEIEER F2MRER FEIMEER ke
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT B%Trx BT AETx
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FERIT R P RIBITHETT Balances with banks and central banks (925) - - (925)
EfETTE’JTW\&ﬁW\ Placements with and advances to banks (303) - - (303)
BEERNEF Loans and advances to customers and
H i AR1E other accounts (173,417) (1,172,053) 3,789,670 2,444,200
’&fﬂ,\fﬁn‘w\ﬁm Financial assets at fair value through other
EHEWBENSREE comprehensive income (19,249) - 42,102 22,853
BERURERER Loan commitments and guarantees
(BREZFaE (included in contingent liabilities and
T A HE) commitments) 55,098 892 - 55,990
(138,796) (1,171,161) 3,831,772 2,521,815
U o] 428 Recoveries (165,159)
2,356,656

102 ERIT (EIFR) BRA R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Income taxin the consolidated income statement

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AHBIE — FEREHR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
FNEELE Provision for the year 230,251 30,129
B F S R I A B B Over-provision in respect of prior years (22,850) (23,644)
207,401 6,485
REABLIE — BRI 2HIE Current tax - Taxation outside Hong Kong
FRNER Provision for the year 63,426 67,921
B F S IR ZE R [ Over-provision in respect of prior years (21) (23,877)
63,405 44,044
IEFEBEIH Deferred tax
TR ERRE Origination of temporary differences
(FizE28) (note 28) 101,155 99,742
371,961 150,271

202 FEBEBFERKIBRAFEGTER
B AT % 16.5% (20204 © 165%) 5T & o

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is calculated at 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation

I TTRHTE A TR IE AR BB AR R R =X for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
A E IR TR RIZBEER o current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
BREIHESHEANRERAREHERRN (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
HERR applicable tax rates
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HKS$’'000 HKS'000
15t A 4 A Profit before tax 2,500,399 1,306,088
EABBREREAFEHEE Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at the rates
FTEBANEN B ERRIE applicable to profits in the countries concerned 438,882 270,026
AR T H BB IR 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 52,018 51,355
JEERBW A TR IB Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (59,705) (51,000)
SNEIN—BELREBLZEE Tax effect of distribution payment of AT1 Capital
BBIAR & Securities (72,836) (72,581)
1B 1T R TE 2 [0 13 Over-provision in prior years (22,871) (47,521)
Hit Others 36,473 (8)
BERHESH Actual tax expense 371,961 150,271
—E-—FH 103
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13 Hft2EWE 13 Other comprehensive income
BAREMEEHRR AR NHELE Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive
income
2021 2020
RABE BEXE REAFE  HagE  REIL BREEE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount

BRI AWt BMTR  BRTT ARt BETx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFNIBAFMN Exchange differences on translation of financial
HBERRNELZE statements of foreign operations 48,190 - 48,190 98,906 - 98,906
PYNTEERPN:S Financial assets at fair value through
2ENERNEREE other comprehensive income
- ERES ~ debt securities
— R EE AR - net movements in fair value reserve of
PHKENEREE financial assets at fair value through
AhEEREFEY other comprehensive income (555,682) 90,709 (464,973) 261,873 (42,036) 219,837
—BEER - impairment loss 59,133 - 59,133 22,853 - 22,853
NEELEE Property revaluation reserve
- DEEGRETE - net movement in property revaluation reserve 159,602 - 159,602 58,686 - 58,086
AR EBEG AR Financial assets at fair value through
2ENERNEREE other comprehensive income
- BRIA - equity instruments

—UARABEFAEMEEE - net movements in fair value reserve of
HHNEBMEELAEER  financial assets at fair value through

BFEEY other comprehensive income (31,836) 5,253 (26,583) 1,686 (278) 1,408
Hi2EkE Other comprehensive income (320,593) 95,962 (224,631) 444,004 (42,314) 401,690

104 R{EERTT (B BIRA R
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14 HEHMER 14 Segment reporting
DEERH2MENEAIRESF - 9 Segment information is prepared consistently with reportable
HEMEHRABEEEZEEKNERRNMNE segments. Information is regularly reported to the chief operating
BEBREARE  UWEREHHSEER decision-maker, including management committee members, to
MAHEEER - NEFEBRRATUTHAREE allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.
ZWAEL - The Group has identified the following four main reportable
segments:
REBREBEBLBINDITEERFRITE The Group operates a wholesale banking business in Hong Kong
o DEBITHEBREE FJ% AfER KIRE and at overseas branches. Wholesale banking mainly comprises
BN BE9MERREER - BINITEEE corporate lending and syndicated loans, trade financing deposit
RBINEER D ﬁ&ﬁﬁ"%xﬁgﬁﬁ’l#ﬂ#@ account services and cash management. Overseas branches include
= o the branches operated overseas and their management office unit in
Hong Kong.
BALREBBRTEBETEREFAP AR Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
% EEMELS - HEEEE - EAFK services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit
R RANEEER - M= EERERLA card services, and Small and Medium Enterprises ("SMEs") banking
#RIT ° business, wealth management services and private banking.
MERBREMSEFBEREINER SR Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
% EAemBaE  BEREREZRSFKLFRR services, money market activities, the management of investment
SER o securities and central cash management.
ﬁf‘@%fiig BRAEEERRIMRE2 Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses,
WOMBOWARTH  PEIEERFE corporate expenses and China banking which mainly includes a
E’\Jﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁi%@%—?ﬂ%@? B O B B -8R subsidiary bank in China.
1T
MoEmEMT - LERARNDELEIBIEA For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
B R BRI R E D B BIES income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
DELE - AMDEERIBBRE EBHENE business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
BERAREBEESELSTEERATRESD mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
B o FRBRTYEEENTERSE RERN by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
[Efh ] ¥ T o5 B EA S WA RS ERK overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
DEH D EBELE TP - charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected

as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.

DB RS 2 I 5D B 5 BL AR AR 7 Bl & R Segment allocation and cost allocation amongst reportable segments
EEEERREENBL TETES 1R are reviewed from time to time as management deems fit and in the
BB - BEIEEN D B RS S B AR event of change, corresponding segment reporting information will
BRI DBESE be updated to conform with latest allocation basis.

1@® | rnnot repor
Annual Report 2021
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14 Segment reporting (continued)

(@) FI2FHoDEB (@) Reportable segments
2021
BAR
ERRT MER
INGES:S Personal BRm5
Wholesale  and business Treasury Hit g
banking banking  and markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBHA Net interest income 3,199,972 1,699,642 666,766 238,890 5,805,270
Efpim g A Other operating income 753,467 1,098,263 574,826 82,405 2,508,961
HENAR BEGAEAM Net (loss)/gain on disposal of financial
PRUENEREET assets at fair value through other
(BK)/ Yz comprehensive income 3,233 - (132,919) 10,802 (118,884)
TBEWA Operating income 3,956,672 2,797,905 1,108,673 332,097 8,195,347
LEY Operating expenses (425,096) (994,064) (186,636) (2,323,826) (3,929,622)
PDEEZEE (ZH),/ WA Inter-segment (expenses)/income (199,520) (617,577) (154,485) 971,582 -
NRHEEER 2 LE Operating profit/(loss)
wRl/(B%) before impairment 3,332,056 1,186,264 767,552 (1,020,147) 4,265,725
SREEBRBEERERL  Expected credit losses on financial assets (1,676,386) (44,157) (56,541) (5,835) (1,782,919)
HEEREED Impairment losses reversed on other assets - - - 13,731 13,731
"ERR/(B%) Operating profit/(loss) 1,655,670 1,142,107 711,011 (1,012,251) 2,496,537
HEME. FEREVEE Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property and
FRF (B equipment and intangible assets 64 (2,869) ) (108) (2,915)
REMEERBH Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 6,777 6,777
BanaR /(B%x) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,655,734 1,139,238 711,009 (1,005,582) 2,500,399
PN Income tax (371,961)
REERR Profit for the year 2,128,438
HivaHEE ! Other segment items:
FEREHS Depreciation and amortisation 33,360 26,283 198 601,142 660,983
PHEE () Segment assets (note) 172,279,814 77,295,134 172,720,857 (4,823,770) 417,472,035
FBEE () Segment liabilities (note) 196,146,760 158,022,633 18,767,503 (5,251,437) 367,685,459
AEEEENEREX Capital expenditure incurred during the year 3,921 48,557 134 210,426 263,038

mB 2 TR EE -

2 MEERS>BEABINIHGIBE TS
o R A B 26,071,484,000

TC N B HE 26,686,373,0007C ©

106 FERIT (EIFR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note: Segment assets and segment liabilities included inter-segment

elimination of HK$26,071,484,000 and HK$26,686,373,000 respectively

under the ‘Others’ segment.
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14 Segment reporting (continued)

1@® |

(@) TEFHRHI(E) (@) Reportable segments (continued)
2020
HAR
AR HER
NGIES Personal BIm5
Wholesale  and business Treasury it e
banking banking and markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
V= ON Net interest income 2,963,302 1548415 348 445 326,023 5,186,185
Efpim g A Other operating income 640,137 873,825 661,005 27903 2,202,870
HEAAR BEGAEAM Net (loss)/gain on disposal of financial
PEUENERERT assets at fair value through other
8%)/ W comprehensive income 21,569 - (66,103) 11,106 (33428)
mEPA Operating income 3,625,008 2,422,240 943,347 365,032 7,355,627
LT Operating expenses (421,435) (961,403) (197,126) (2,081,834) (3,661,798)
PEEZEE (ZH),/ WA Inter-segment (expenses)/income (162,516) (523,751) (135,735) 822,002 -
NRHEERER 2 Operating profit/(loss)

BERR/(B%) before impairment 3,041,057 937,086 610,486 (894,800) 3,693,829
SREEBBEERERL  Expected credit losses on financial assets (2,248,838) (73,874) (26962) (6,982) (2,356,656)
HpEEREED Impairment losses reversed on other assets - - - 4176 4176
"ERR/(B%) Operating profit/(loss) 792,219 863,212 583,524 (897,606) 1,341,349
HEME. FEREVEE Net loss on disposal of property and

FEX equipment and intangible assets - 71 (16) (234) (961)
REMESHBX Revaluation loss on investment properties - - - (34,300) (34,300)
BanaF /(B%) Profit/(loss) before taxation 792219 862,501 583,508 (932,140) 1,306,088
RS Income tax (150,271)
KEERF Profit for the year 1155817
HttpHEE Other segment items:

FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 31220 19,457 1385 560,769 612,831
PHEE Segment assets 149,287,611 70,215,429 188,380,101 (14,984,453 392,898,688
FHEE Segment liabilities 174,208,724 163,365,046 24777321 (17,020,197) 345,330,894
AEEEENERRY Capital expenditure incurred during the year 12603 150,067 15,855 206,982 385,507
—E-—FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information
The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,
of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets and liabilities.

2021
mERA HHaE
BAnER (XH) RAfE
Profit FEE=N Operating  Contingent
before BEE Total income/ liabilities and
taxation Total assets liabilities (expenses)  commitments
BETT BETT BET R BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 2,030,990 384,219,693 334,994,296 7,361,663 90,213,422
BRI Mainland China 103,816 13,956,128 12,343,871 312,611 599,298
XH United States 190,504 14,123,627 13,994,907 293,957 7,313,313
I Singapore 127,223 22,341,162 22,220,452 181,339 23,506,782
Htt Others 47,836 2,389,053 2,314,730 82,883 492,318
HEEEE Inter-segment items 30 (19,557,628)  (18,182,797) (37,106) -
2,500,399 417,472,035 367,685,459 8,195,347 122,125,133

2020
BAnaR mEWA/ HEaE
(B%) (Xit) eSS
Profit/(Loss) BRE Operating Contingent
before BEE Total income/ liabilities and
taxation Total assets liabilities (expenses)  commitments
BT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
B5 Hong Kong 1,746,615 378,296,661 331,157,516 6,755,712 92,198,530
A3 Mainland China (3513) 11,342,549 9,860,818 167,346 1,264,343
XE United States 102,053 13,972,966 13,874,622 236,321 2,022,635
g Singapore (595,312) 14,155,015 14,697,014 132,492 22,341,620
it Others 56,244 4,755,024 4,701,906 74,446 317,071
DEEER Inter-segment items 1 (29,623,527) (28,960,982) (10,690) -
1,306,088 392,898,688 345,330,894 7,355,627 118,144,199

108 FERIT (EIFR) BR AR
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REeERERITRAPRBITHERF 15 Cash and balances with banks and central banks
2021 2020
BT BET T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
Re Cash in hand 236,236 212,198
P RIRITHAETT Balances with central banks 14,671,889 2,203,982
FERITEVAETE Balances with banks 13,924,992 30,370,387
28,833,117 32,786,567
TREMEERAER — F1ER Expected credit losses allowances - Stage 1 (4,667) (2,651)
28,828,450 32,783,916
HZE2021F 12831 BBIEERRIETZE Included in the balances with central banks are balances subject to
B R M AREE =B 597,533,000 7T (2020 regulatory restrictions, amounting to HK$597,533,000 at 31 December

F @ BHE604,998,0007T) ©

ERITHERR 2K

2021 (2020: HK$604,998,000).

16 Placements with and advances to banks

2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIRITHFR Placements with banks 20,647,800 28,434,834
FEIRTTHIEA TR Advances to banks 416,726 545,965
21,064,526 28,980,799
TERR(E BB R — F 1R Expected credit losses allowances — Stage 1 (5,886) (10,969)
21,058,640 28,969,830

E|HiH - Maturing:
—1EAA — within 1 month 19,846,311 28,466,136
—1EAZ1FRN ~ between 1 month and 1 year 1,212,329 503,694
21,058,640 28,969,830

@® | Aot report 202
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit
orloss

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
B E Debt securities 2,006,507 2,351,288
Bl JE 5 Treasury bills 1,099,768 297,788
3,106,275 2,649,076

BITHBNT : Issued by:
BT #4 28 Sovereigns 2,104,669 1,314,180
RIT R H M & mikiE Banks and other financial institutions 681,738 754,442
% Corporate entities 319,071 538,656
N Public entities 797 41798
3,106,275 2,649,076
W Listed 1,633,424 2,341,585
LT Unlisted 1,472,851 307,491
3,106,275 2,649,076

(b) UAARBEITAEBENESRERS (b) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BISEHEE Short sales of debt securities 768,006 290,185
18 fTEE€mIT A 18 Derivative financial instruments

ERATETAEEZESNMHETEPER
R EEEMEAREZLEXBN—EER
iy - EREERBEEERIEN R &
LT At MIEEEAREARSFAZENT
BEE - NEBFTANEEITET A RER
EMEXRBOAH - TERBIIFHIDT

ATH - AEEBSRSANEENITET
B4 - REEAZ BNAEPHERME
WhkEEREMEATETARR - ?fﬁ
AEMME - ITATADBEAFIEESS
FrfEs s o

110 SR{ER1T (B BIRAF
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The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers
as risk management products is an integral part of the Group's
business activities. These instruments are also used to manage the
Group’s own exposure to market risk as part of its asset and liability
management process. The principal derivative instruments used by
the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate-related contracts,
which are primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates
in exchange-traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative
positions have been entered into to meet customer demand and to
hedge these and other trading positions. For accounting purposes,
derivatives are classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

18

(a)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notional amounts of derivatives

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.

The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
significant type of derivative entered into by the Group:

2021 2020
BET T ok v
HK$'000 HK$'000
EXTETA Currency derivatives
RIS Forwards 56,738,442 60,610,924
HHIZ 5 Swaps 964,903,705 728,792,077
B A Options purchased 24,249,234 26,329,946
= AR Options written 22,123,956 29,158,079
FRLTETR Interest rate derivatives
RERHER S Forwards/Futures 27,289 5,488,630
HHIZ 5 Swaps 606,576,660 819,149,400
B AHARE Options purchased 3,036,325 3,019,001
= AR Options written 3,036,325 3,019,001
1,680,691,936 1,675,567,058

REVEASENEHTIAGEEZEES -
HRITRPHRZIESHI R ERREBME
ERER  URABYIHHEHMZ G TEMFE
FER - B20215F12 8318 KX2020%F12 A
31E - ARBELEAE AMFENITAETL
Ho

Trading includes the Group's principal risk taking positions in financial
instruments, positions which arise from the execution of trade orders
from customers and market making, and positions taken in order to
hedge other elements of the trading book. For the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, there were no derivatives held for hedging.

(b) FTEIANAIAEE (b) Fair value of derivatives
2021 2020
AREBEEE QAAEBEERE LAREEEE 2QAnEEARE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BET T BT T BT IT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EERTETEA Currency derivatives 5,755,146 5,751,550 10,520,010 11,463,378
FMEHTET R Interest rate derivatives 3,133,696 3,014,785 3,858,591 3,696,905
8,888,842 8,766,335 14,378,601 15,160,283
—E—FR

1&® |

Annual Report 2021

111



BTSRRI R

18 $T4EE€®mMIA (&)

(0 PTETAMNGNER

TREHAKEREBBEIMER (RRNE
ERNRTEERRAE) 8

BERTEIN -

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(c) Remaining life of derivatives

S
=
>4~

The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping, based on the

remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period:

2021
BRTFHNERSHE
Notional amounts with remaining life of

1FUEESEF
wE 15T  Over1yearto 5FEMNE
Total 1 year or less 5 years Over 5 years
BET T BT BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERHTETHE Currency derivatives 1,068,015,337 1,010,810,515 55,704,806 1,500,016
FIELGTETA Interest rate derivatives 612,676,599 207,802,894 369,021,467 35,852,238
1,680,691,936 1,218,613,409 424,726,273 37,352,254

2020
BT FHNEESE

Notional amounts with remaining life

1A EESEF
“HEE 198 AT  Over1yearto SEME
Total 1 year or less 5 years Over 5 years
BB T BT T BT T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
ERHTETH Currency derivatives 844,891,026 793,757,737 49,789,135 1,344,154
MELTETE Interest rate derivatives 830,676,032 493,134,131 308,706,986 28,834,915
1,675,567,058 1,286,891,868 358,496,121 30,179,069

19 BEFEFRRBAKHMIRE 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(a) EBEFERRBIKEMEREREHEEERX (@) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
expected credit losses
2021 2020
BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEPERRBREE Gross loans and advances to customers 242,667,031 220,096,434
— TBHE B R R EE - Expected credit losses allowances (1,871,846) (2,440,456)
240,795,185 217,655,978
HAbARIA Other accounts 8,967,557 9,385,838
— BHEEELER - Expected credit losses allowances

— F1EER - Stage 1 (1,471) (783)
— F3MEER - Stage 3 (344,850) (251,075)
(346,321) (251,858)
8,621,236 9,133,980
249,416,421 226,789,958

112 RERIT (BEFR) BRAF
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19 EFERRBRRHEARE (&) 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(b) BRITEIHNEFERREN (b) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

A MBI RETHN M RRIER ST R
EER([2ER]) MERANDEREEE

The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA”).

H oo
2021 2020
EFERR HEERF EPERR RERP
BHEH EXREHR BHRAE ERRBK
Grossloans  Impaired loans Gross loans Impaired loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers to customers to customers to customers
BETR BT T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEeR Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER - Property development 8,951,242 4,574 11,268,407 -
-MERE ~ Property investment 15,064,324 153,563 13,460,635 272,556
- TREE - Financial concerns 14,866,601 - 12,698,994 -
- IREEL - Stockbrokers 4,616,449 - 4,044,282 -
- HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 8,813,954 225,579 9,618,761 197481
—BUER - Manufacturing 6,149,656 121,941 9,762,067 35,794
— B LERRE ~Transport and transport equipment 2,207,235 - 3,326,439 -
—REED ~ Recreational activities 1,396,460 - 1,891,488 -
- AR - Information technology 4,140,974 7,209 6,759,381 -
—Hfb - Others 12,106,121 587,344 12,454,426 373,936
BA Individuals
-BE[EEEEREE] . - Loans for the purchase of flats under the Home
[(FLAZEE2ERERE Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
HAE R IEEEERE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
AEMBTER Scheme 18,734 - 25,360 175
-BEHEMEEMENET - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 22,708,364 25,726 21,168,747 24,858
- EAFET - Credit card advances 634,385 3,160 434,591 3,207
—Hfb - Others 19,463,914 32,543 16,152,868 10,903
EBRBFEHHERLBTEE  Gross loans and advances for use in Hong Kong 121,138,413 1,161,639 123,066,446 918,910
BHEE Trade finance 6,628,733 6,567 5,441,544 32,771
EEBIMERRER R Gross loans and advances for use outside
BB Hong Kong 114,899,885 1,086,034 91,588,444 2,679,495
EFERRBHMASE Gross loans and advances to customers 242,667,031 2,254,240 220,096,434 3,631,176
—EZ-FR
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19 EFERERBRLEMIRE (&) 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(0 EBEXRNBIRERHAMBRENEREEABENERE (c) Reconciliation of gross carrying amount and ECL allowances for
EiRAEHRNEER loans and advances to customers and other accounts
2021
LT FIRE EIRE ag
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

REAE EMGEE REAE REGFE REAE BEGE RELE BERE
Gross  BXEE Gross — BAEH Gross  BXEfE Gross  BXEfR
carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
BT  ERTR  EBTn  BETR BT ERTx  BR¥Tn  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2021F181R At 1 January 2021 214,767,888 589,755 10,495,624 577,740 3,882,251 1,524,819 229,145,763 2,692,314
Lo Transfer:
—~EAF 1R - Transfer to Stage 1 6,880,189 258,654 (6,830,158  (258,650) (50,031) (4) - -
~EAF IR - Transfer to Stage 2 (11,024368)  (19,606) 11,058,812 23,617 (34,444) (4,011) - -
- EAE3KE - Transfer to Stage 3 (139,020) (83) (1,662,740)  (49,773) 1,801,760 49,856 - -
ReEkEr  BE Net remeasurement of ECL
BEBRERSN allowances arising from transfer
HEL between stage - (106,253) - 81,919 - 250,161 - 225,827
SREERE/ Net financial assets originated/
(I ERFER) FE  (derecognised or repaid) 28306899 353438  (3,184,178)  (149,094)  (854373)  (95,467) 24,268,348 108,877
BR2HMEREIEEE) Changes in risk parameters,
REEEM model inputs and management
overlay - 67,914 - (50,792) 1,451,706 - 1,468,828
IR (51 Amounts written-off (note) - - - - (2326537) (2,326537) (2,326,537) (2,326,537)
R0 Other movements - - - - 180,464 48,858 180,464 48,858
2021512318 At 31 December 2021 238,791,588 1,143,819 9,877,360 174,967 2,599,090 899,381 251,268,038 2,218,167
T RERBEBVBRELENE R ME Summary of financial assets to which subject to the impairment
EHERHEERIANEREE requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied:
2021
ELEES EV]EE E3MRE ag
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RELE BEHEE GEAE RAEEE RELE BAEGE  RELE BERE
Gross  BXERE Gross  BAEE Gross  BAEE Gross  BXER
carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
BETT  BETR  B¥Tn A%t B¥Tn AT B¥Tn E%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFERREH Loans and advances to customers 230,535,431 1,142,348 9,877,360 174967 2,254,240 554531 242,667,031 1,871,846
EHERIE () Other accounts (Note) 8,256,157 1,471 - - 344,850 344,850 8,601,007 346,321

238,791,588 1,143,819 9,877,360 174,967 2,599,090 899,381 251,268,038 2,218,167
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 BEFERRBRRHAMRE (2) 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
() EFN2RREMBRENROALBENELSRG () Reconciliation of gross carrying amount and ECL allowances for
BREAEENEER (& loans and advances to customers and other accounts (continued)
2020
F1BE FUER F3MRE ek
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FREE BHEE RELE BEEE REEE EHEE  BERE  BEEE
Goss  1BR%ERE Gross — BRERE Gross — REK%ERE Goss  BR%ER
carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
BT AETT  BETr  A%TR  BETn  ARTT  BETn AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2020%1R18 t 1 January 2020 182,503,311 763,172 12,025,091 1,749,793 2312484 1123382 196,840,886 3,636,347
EUE Transfer:
-EAEIRE - Transfer to Stage 1 7,861,124 32347 (7,859,868) (31,091) (1256) (1256) - -
-BAEIRR - Transfer o Stage 2 (13556823 (1558%) 14,129,235 237,231 (572412) (81339) - -
- BAEIME ~Transfer to Stage 3 (130433) (069 (5888687) (1528712 6019120 1528981 - -
ReEkEr /B Net remeasurement of ECL
BEBRERESN allowances arising from transfer
SEFE between stage - (21.871) - 371,116 - 448,163 - 797,408
LHEERE/ Net financial assets originated/
(%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ) S8 (derecognised or repaid) 38,090,709 391564 (1910147) (196633 (677961  (363917) 35502601  (168986)
RZGAERGELE) Changes in risk parameters and
model inputs - (419,292) - (23,964) - 2,259,034 - 1815778
bkt Amounts written-off - - - - (348LTA3)  (348LTA3)  (348L743)  (3482743)
g Other movements - - - - 285,019 94,510 285019 94510
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 214,767,388 589,755 10,495,624 577,740 3,882,251 1524819 229,145,763 2692314

UTABERBREBNEHRELERNEIRMB
N EEHEERANSREE

requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied:

Summary of financial assets to which subject to the impairment

2020

F1RE FER ElEE ag

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
REEE REEE EAELE BEEE  ERREE  BHEE BELE  BHEE
Gross — BREMHE Gross  BEREE Gross  BRERE Gross — BER%EMHE
carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount allowances amount  allowances
BETT  A%Tr  A%Tr Bkt A¥Ta BBt BT A%Tx
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RPENRER Loans and advances to customers 205,969,634 588972 10495624 577740 3631176 1273744 220096434 2440456
HiHRE () Other accounts (Note) 8798,254 783 - - 251,075 251075 9049329 251858
214,767,888 589,755 10,495,624 577,740 3,882,251 1524819 229,145,763 2692314

—E—FR
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19

(c)

(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

EFERRBRRHARE (2) 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
ERNBRREMRENREAENRRAE (c) Reconciliation of gross carrying amount and ECL allowances for
BEKERNEER(E) loans and advances to customers and other accounts (continued)
BaE - Note:
FREAERAAEREERAEBD BRER(E The gross carrying amounts and related ECL allowances have included
BISIRE R E R E B ETRHEEELN the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers and other
EPERMBREEMESEEEMNREATE - 1 financial assets which are subject to ECL measurements under HKFRS 9. “Other
FAEVBRARRNEINEPERRBERLEM accounts” as included with the “Loans and advances to customers and other
BRIEBFOEMBRBER ST (HEBYBEREER) accounts” presented within the consolidated balance sheet also include other
FONMBERENRNEMEE - assets not subject to impairment requirements under HKFRS 9.
HHEHeBELORNEBEAS REKF BB The amount of written-off comprised of principal and interest receivables
2,261,237,0007T (20204F : ¥4 3.482,743,0007T) K& of HK$2,261,237,000 (2020: HK$3,482,743,000) and HK$65,300,000 (2020: Nil)
75 %£65,300,0007T (20204F © #E) © respectively.
REEFERR BN (d) Impaired loans and advances to customers
2021 2020
BETT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREFPERRBRNERE Gross impaired loans and advances to customers 2,254,240 3,631,176
TEEME BB A EE — F3MEER Expected credit losses allowances — Stage 3 (554,531) (1,273,744)
1,699,709 2,357,432
BEERNBREERE P E R Gross impaired loans and advances as a % of total loans
BRBEENASE and advances to customers 0.93% 1.65%

BEEROBERTRFREER KB RE
5578 %1,646,035,0007C (20204 © B#E
2,799,388,0007T) + HLAKIR mEH IR - HIF
MEZEREEEXBEDE - UREFHRAE
BMIRE -

116 FRIT (EIFR) BRA R
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The secured gross impaired loans and advances to customers
amounts to HK$$1,646,035,000 (2020: HKS2,799,388,000) are backed
by collateral, collateral mainly comprises mortgages on residential or
commercial properties and cash placed with the Group.
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19 BEFERREBARK

HipfRE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(e) BMEHENEBSEMNFRE (e)

EFER
HEMRE
FEEBES
IR ER -

R

NEBAEFIRE - RIBERE
BEPHEENHEAASRMERE

A o ELEERBE E20F N
WrAE BN EEERERE

BE - -@MEMEREBANRENSIEREE
@R N ERRENT

(continued)

19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor

vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases

and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance

leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 20 years or

above, with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value.

The total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases

and hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end

are as follows:

2021 2020
REHE =EHE
AR BRE REHRE [eRE =EHE
Present value AFREEE  Presentvalue ESE
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BET T BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
HEAR Within 1 year 8,504 9,961 9,153 10,950
VFAEZESF After 1 year but within 5 years 32,055 36,785 33,635 39,283
SELF After 5 years 56,886 60,293 67,228 71,968
97,445 107,039 110,016 122,201
- TRHEEBRER - Expected credit losses allowances
- 1B - Stage 1 (6) 31)
BEHEMHEEAR Net investment in finance leases and
B R E hire purchase contracts 97,439 109,985
—E—FR
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20 UAREBESARGCEZEHKRENER

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Financial assets at fair value through other

BE comprehensive income
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRRS Debt securities
— BENERGE — Certificates of deposit held 4,490,521 5,179,894
—BEEH — Treasury bills 39,187,201 23,503,712
— EMERES — Other debt securities 60,169,857 56,157,194
103,847,579 84,840,800
ERES Equity securities 78,869 110,068
103,926,448 84,950,868
BITHEABIOT - Issued by:
ERATH48 Sovereigns 43,215,443 25,390,319
SRIT R H A& RS Banks and other financial institutions 43,364,259 42,392,498
2 Corporate entities 15,281,446 14,846,212
PN EEIE Public entities 2,065,300 2,321,839
103,926,448 84,950,868
£ Listed 53,763,088 49,755,786
JEETH Unlisted 50,163,360 35,195,082
103,926,448 84,950,868
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20 UAAREBEFAHMEZEARENESE 20 Financial assets at fair value through other
BE (& comprehensive income (continued)
BRHMEZAWEUAAEBETESREE Reconciliation of gross carrying amount and ECL allowances
WERESHENEREEEAEFSNWEHR for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income
MABEEMES - RIREESEAAREBER For the purposes of this disclosure, the gross carrying amounts refer to
ENEBES - REEMNZ I AEMEE the fair values of the debt securities measured at FVOCI. Movements
Wz - (BREREBEEBRRES - FIBKA in the gross carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
VAR AE 1B 25 R FE R RO BB H HE 25 BRI o income, except for the recognition of ECL allowances, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit and loss.
2021
F1ER £ T F3KR L]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
REAE BHGE BEEE BOEE FELE BEEE  RESE EEHGEE
Gross  BXEf Gross  BA%Ef Gross  BXEf Gross  BXEf
carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
BETT  B¥Tn  BMTn B%Tn B¥Tn  BMTn BMTR B¥Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20211810 At 1 January 2021 84,840,800 42,714 - - - 116,259 84,840,800 158,973
KERZBNTE Movements with income
statement impact
REHER Transfer between Stages (210023)  (11,045) 108976 (7,774 101,047 18,819 - -
SREERE/ Net financial assets originated/
(B2 gER)/ (derecognised or repaid)/
MrEBEEHTFE changes in fair value 19,203,555 25904 (108,976) 356 (87,800) (8,791) 19,006,779 17,469
BR2EABHEEEE  Changes inrisk parameters and
model inputs - (31,418) - 7418 - 65,664 - 41,664
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 103,834,332 26,155 - - 13,247 191,951 103,847,579 218,106
—m— g5
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20 UAAREBEFAHMEZEARENESE 20 Financial assets at fair value through other
BE (& comprehensive income (continued)
BRHMEZAWEUAAEBETESREE Reconciliation of gross carrying amount and ECL allowances
NWERESENAHEEEBAEEENYR for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
(4&) income (continued)

2020
F1EE FUER F3MRE ek
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

REeE BHREE  FEeE BEEEE  BESE  BEHEE  RELE  BHRE
Gross — BRER Goss  BREfE Gross — BEKEf Gross — BR%EME
carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount allowances
BT AETT  BETr  A%Tr  BETr AT BETn AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

2020F1 A1A At 1 January 2020 76,503,924 61,963 - - 56,040 75408 76,559,964 137,371
bazEIHng L Movements with income
statement impact
RERAER Transfer between Stages - - - - , . , _
SREERE/ Net financial assets originated/
(& EBRsET)/ (derecognised or repaid)/
RABEESFE changes in fair value 8,336,876 27599 - - (56,040) (33944) 8280836 (6,345)
BR2GABHEEEE  Changes inrisk parameters and
model inputs - (46,848) - - - 76,046 - 29,198
INEERREBEE Changes in foreign translation
a and others - - - - - (1,251) - (1,251)
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 84,840,800 42,14 - - - 116,259 84,840,800 158973
21 BRARARE 21 Amortised cost investments
2021 2020
BETT BT IT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEE#ES Debt securities
Bl & 5 Treasury bills 53,378 48,494
— FBHEEELEE — Expected credit losses allowances
- B1BR - Stage 1 3) (1
53,375 48,493
BITHBOT Issued by:
BT #4 8 Sovereigns 53,375 48,493
JELET™ Unlisted 53,375 48,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 [EAE 22 Subsidiaries
TXHER2021F12 A31 B REFE N E
i BESABEEAFVENTIEWEAR
5 - BIERAERE - BEIFTERIDERIY

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries
at 31 December 2021 which materially affect the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

ATERRE  AHERE
RHBELZ RESE
HMERYL/ LEHE BETREZRE  Proportionof  Proportion of
DEER Place of incorporation/  EEERES TEEK Particularsof ~ shares directly ~ shares indirectly
Name of company operation Kind of legal entity ~ Principal activities issued share capital  held by the Bank held by the Bank
BREARBRAR R BREMARF ESSEC] AT 100% -
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Property holding HKS2
Company
PERITER (FE) BRAF PEARKNE BREALH iG] AR#1,000,0000007C 100% -
([ fERITER (PHE)])
CITIC Bank International (China) People’s Republic of China  Limited Liability Banking RMBT1,000,000,000
Limited ("CBI (China)") Company
PERBRBEARAT R BREARF R4 7RH5,000,0007 100% -
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
Company
ERERRERRERAF A AREERT REER 7ER511,0000007C 100% -
CNCBI Investment Holdings Limited  Hong Kong Limited Liability Investment holding HK$511,000,000
Company
EREAMBARAA &R AREELA KBRS 7 1200,000,0007C 100% -
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
Company
BREART(REAN)BRAR BB BREARF REARE 7RI5,0007T 100% -
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Limited Liability Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited Company
FERIT(EF)ARAT &R AREEAA B3R 7513,000,0007 100% -
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Trustee services HK$3,000,000
Company
ERAREEERERAA B BRRARA BEER 7 860,000,007 - 100%
CNCBI Asset Management Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Asset management HK$60,000,000
Company
TEC-FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23 YIEREE 23 Property and equipment
&
BEE#E
S
REYHE Hibypz Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and 4z
properties premises equipment Total
BT T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RS EE : Cost or valuation:
R2021F1 A1H At 1 January 2021 254,830 661,671 1,100,813 2,017,314
#hn Additions - - 111,588 111,588
ol Reclassification 185,000 (185,000) - -
HeE Disposals - - (35,831) (35,831)
B &R Surplus on revaluation 6,777 159,602 - 166,379
RIHEN RETINE Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation - (19,277) - (19,277)
bE o 582 Exchange adjustments - - 1,671 1,671
M2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 446,607 616,996 1,178,241 2,241,844
A S AH B Cost or valuation:
720201 A1H At 1 January 2020 229,130 066,008 1,038,240 1,933,378
#hn Additions - - 127,466 127,466
ol Reclassification 60,000 (60,000) - -
HE Disposals - - (69,243) (69,243)
Sk (BX),/ B8 (Deficit)/surplus on revaluation (34,300) 58,686 - 24,386
SRIHE R RETINE Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation - (3,023) - (3,023)
PE W 78 Exchange adjustments - - 4350 4,350
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 254,830 661,671 1,100,813 2,017,314
Rt E . Accumulated depreciation:
7202141 A1 R At 1 January 2021 - 370,807 879,871 1,250,678
REZHE (H5E9) Charge for the year (note 9) - 15,709 102,699 118,408
HEHEGREINE Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation - (19,277) - (19,277)
& 1M [=] Written back on disposals - - (34,820) (34,820)
ME 5, EE Exchange adjustments - - 1,039 1,039
M2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 - 367,239 948,789 1,316,028
2xHinE Accumulated depreciation:
7202081 A1 H At 1 January 2020 - 358,085 847,130 1,205,215
REEHE (H5E9) Charge for the year (note 9) - 15,745 97,713 113,458
BRI E Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation - (3,023) - (3,023)
o S f [ 38 Written back on disposals - - (68,608) (68,608)
PE 5 5% Exchange adjustments - — 3,636 3,636
2020412 A31H At 31 December 2020 - 370,807 879,871 1,250,678
BREFE Net book value:
M2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 446,607 249,757 229,452 925,816
7202012 A31 H At 31 December 2020 254,830 290,864 220,942 766,636
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(a) REMEAIABENE

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Property and equipment (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

() =~ BEER () Fair value hierarchy
TERETNGEER  AEEZRKEEH The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
EEPRAABEFENREDE R investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
BCEAMBHREEAN)FE 13520 period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
BEFE|IDBAE=RARBERR - fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, ‘Fair Value
ARBEFAENERS>BERREAR Measurement'. The level into which a fair value measurement
HEEXNNHABEBENHAEEENE classified is determined with reference to the observability and
EMACRTE - significance of the input used in the valuation technique as
follows:
FIER -—2ER-—EENRFTERE Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
VBB T 3% BUAS B T 3% (B identical assets at the measurement date.
(REEFE) -
FUEHR - BEBEIE R AT 2 Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
HEEN (ReeaeF1 which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
&) RTERBEEMIET unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
BIHEg - B8 ATMISH for which market data are not available.
B - B AEAEES
B -
FIBR — RN BEANEEMIAH Level 3 - Fair value measured using significant unobservable
REBIRKETE o inputs.
2021 2020
BT T BT T
EIER Level 3 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREMEAABEREEMHET Recurring fair value measurement using
BRTE significant unobservable input
REWHE Investment properties
— BB - Held in Hong Kong 416,000 231,000
— FB LM R ~ Held outside Hong Kong 30,607 23,830
446,607 254,830

@® | Aot report 202
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23 WMERRE (E)

(a) REMEAIABENE(E)
() 2R BEER(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Property and equipment (continued)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

(i)

B ZE 202158202012 8318 » EF1
BRME2EREWEER RLER
FIBHEANEL - AEEBRREE
R ERRERAAEEERABER

HYERAE o

R2021F12 8318 - 2B EED
TEHAEBNREMESHRS -
MEGLERANARMSEEAELER

e (BEEWBHREER

IDEREE AN

ABEFEIHAABENTE - B#
AEBEMEHESG A EE6,777,0007T
(20205 : EHB KL BB 34,300,000

T WEFAREEA MR

(i)  SAEEEREIERE

=03 (i)

EIBANAABESERBERFEA

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued and
assessed by the management of the Group at 31 December
2021 with reference to the property valuation report
conducted by an independent firm of surveyors. The basis of
the property valuation was market value, which is consistent
with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, 'Fair Value
Measurement’. The revaluation surplus of HKS$6,777,000 (2020:
a revaluation deficit of HK$34,300,000) was recognised by the
Group and has been charged to the income statement.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy
The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3

m s fair value measurements are as follows:
2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R1A18 At 1 January 254,830 229,130
EoABEEMmE Reclassification from other premises 185,000 60,000
PR EEHAE Fair value adjustment 6,777 (34,300)
M®12H31H At 31 December 446,607 254,830

(i)  FBIBRONTEEGZEF (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

HERERX JERTE R BE & [E
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
B IR IR 37 MELERE (FE) -15% to 15%

Investment properties

Market comparison approach

EEBXBENIMEBRARENERN
RABERFKAMGLEEEE - A
SESNBRAMENT TS REEE
RAEE  LLEOTHMHEER (K
MABRAEEYEE BN G BRI
& RAEUFEHENREAEERRS

TR E TS -

124 RER1T (B BIRAF
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Premium (discount) on quality
of properties

The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per-square-foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's or
the Bank's properties compared to the recent sales. The carrying
amount of the investment properties would be changed
according the price per-square-foot.
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(b)

(c)

RENEREMYENREFEINOT

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Property and equipment (continued)

(b)

The analysis of net book value of investment properties and
other premises is as follows:

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HE Leasehold
BE Held in Hong Kong
— RAEEE (BBiBSOFRE W) - Long-term leases (over 50 years unexpired) 274,847 116,862
— FREIFEE (10FE250F KfEM) - Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 390,910 405,002
BB @ Held outside Hong Kong
— hHIHE (10F250F KfEM) — Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 30,607 23,830
696,364 545,694

WEWMEEENHR S WA LT BB
4,151,0007T (20204F : 75%3,296,0007T) ©

AEBETHEHMMECRBEFEETE
iy o INRIFLYERURAR RHITEA
BR - REBERKR2021F 12831 BN E MY E
BREDFENE A8 1967,0007T (20204F : 7B
4,014,0007T) °

BRCERERENNERRE
AEEBEBLEHEN T NELREYE -
BRAMENSNHEER - RA2E3F - &
BADEEREZ AMZRERD - BN BER
BEFTA R

AEBER A ERRE MDY ENZE
HERWNRRSIEHSEEOT

(c)

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HKS$4,151,000 (2020: HK$3,296,000).

Some of the other premises of the Group were revalued in previous
years. The net book value of such other premises of the Group at 31
December 2021 would have been HK$967,000 (2020: HKS$4,014,000)
had they been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms
are renegotiated.

The Group's total future minimum lease receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting
properties are as follows:

2021 2020

BT BT

HK$’000 HKS'000

3 Within 1 year 2,017 3,363
TFAEZESF After 1 year but within 5 years 1,849 322
3,866 3,685
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24 ERAEEE 24 Right-of-use assets
HEREM
HERgF Equipment e
Leased premises and others Total

BET T BET T BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Cost:
2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 1,182,297 1,170 1,183,467
30 Additions 168,310 731 169,041
AR ERR A Reductions (99,417) - (99,417)
F Adjustments (124,696) - (124,696)
PE H R Exchange adjustments 623 (25) 598
72021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 1,127,117 1,876 1,128,993
AR Cost:
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 975,837 1,152 976,989
0 Additions 304,936 - 304,936
i ity Reductions (105,908) - (105,908)
VE 5, e B Exchange adjustments 7,432 18 7,450
2020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 1,182,297 1,170 1,183,467
ZEHE . Accumulated depreciation:
R2021F1A18 At 1 January 2021 485,859 955 486,814
REZHE (H5E9) Charge for the year (note 9) 297,456 303 297,759
ity Reductions (99,417) - (99,417)
R Adjustments (115,676) - (115,676)
b H B Exchange adjustments 426 (16) 410
2021512 H31H At 31 December 2021 568,648 1,242 569,890
2EIE - Accumulated depreciation:
7202081 A1H At 1 January 2020 297,168 314 297,482
REEHE (HFE9) Charge for the year (note 9) 291,148 628 291,776
A HER > Reductions (105,908) - (105,908)
PE 5 8% Exchange adjustments 3,451 13 3,464
72020812 H31H At 31 December 2020 485,859 955 486,814
BREEE - Net book value:
M2021%128318 At 31 December 2021 558,469 634 559,103
2020912 831H At 31 December 2020 696,438 215 696,653

Q01T FHEMNBRE 2 RL AT AEK
310,363,0007T (20204F : #%310,398,000

JT) °
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The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HK$310,363,000 (2020:

HK$310,398,000).
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25 Intangible assets

BB
Software
BETT
HK$’000
RN : Cost:
#2021%1 818 At 1 January 2021 1,636,220
il Additions 151,450
HE Disposals (3,232)
VE 5, B Exchange adjustments 557
72021%12H831H At 31 December 2021 1,784,995
PR Cost:
R20206 1 H1H At 1 January 2020 1,380,991
il Additions 258,041
HE Disposals (5,215)
& H SR Exchange adjustments 2,403
7202012 A31 H At 31 December 2020 1,636,220
FEHITE Accumulated amortisation:
20211 A1 H At 1 January 2021 1,001,119
REFIE (MH739) Charge for the year (note 9) 244,816
HE Disposals (1,184)
P H Exchange adjustments 465
M2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 1,245,216
ZEIE ¢ Accumulated amortisation:
202041 818 At 1 January 2020 796,182
REFZHE (MH7H9) Charge for the year (note 9) 207,597
e Disposals (4,863)
ME 5, o B8 Exchange adjustments 2,203
72020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 1,001,119
BREFE Net book value:
7A2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 539,779
72020912318 At 31 December 2020 635,101

1@® | rnnot repor
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26 Deposits from customers

2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHAR A RERP TR Demand deposits and current deposits 47,967,296 39,341,433
RETRK Savings deposits 79,244,545 61,272,117
TEHE - BUVHA I 52 BRsm ANTF 5N Time, call and notice deposits 200,556,192 209,263,466
327,768,033 309,877,016

27 EBERITEXRRE 27 Certificates of deposit issued
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI AT E At amortised cost 1,481,389 -

BRI EARERAEEEA S THITHISE

&5 o

branches of the Group.

Certificates of deposit issued are the Yankee bonds issued by the US

28 AR RTRATBTER 28 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial

(@) HBRRRAROERHBIRS :

position

(@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:

2021 2020
BET T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFEH Hong Kong Profits Tax 89,716 (42,982)
BBLAINRIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 30,992 7,189
120,708 (35,793)

He - Of which:
a] U Bl £ 18 Tax recoverable - (55,449)
ARERIR Current taxation 120,708 19,656
120,708 (35,793)

128 RIEIRTT (B BIRAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

statement of financial position and the movements during the year

are as follows:

AREEA
Rt 2E RN
SREED
BEEEN
HESHE LEVE EfigR
BREENE HEEE Impairment
Depreciation Impairment ~ ¥I¥EfH#E  allowancesand
allowances in allowances Revaluation revaluation
excess of related forloans  adjustments  adjustments for REE% Eft as
depreciation  andadvances  for properties Fvod Tax losses Others Total
BRI BT BRI ERTR BRI BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERERA Deferred tax arising from:
R021F1 /18 At1 January 2021 117,322 (229,402) 904 86,069 (138,416) (9,680) (173,203)
BARERAME/  Charged/(credited) to income
() (Ffz12) statement note 12) (14916) (19,776) 637 - 137,729 (2,519) 101,155
EhEA B Credited to reserves - - - (95,962) - - (95,962)
BARAMAE Exchange and other adjustments (27) 79 - - 687 (74) 665
20215128318 At31December 2021 102,379 (249,099) 1,541 (9,893) - (12,273) (167,345)
R2020E1A1A At 1 January 2020 107,026 (454177) 1,965 43,755 - (11,594) (313,025)
AWERNMEE /  Charged/(credited) to income
() (ffzE12) statement (note 12) 10350 24631 (1061) - (136306) 2128 99,74
Eefemuisa Charged to reserves - - - 4314 - - 4314
R R Exchange and other adjustments (54) 144 - - (2,110 (214) (2,234)
R2020%12A318 At 31 December 2020 117,322 (229402) 904 86,069 (138416) (9,680) (173,203)
—EZ-FR
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(b) CRIANELEHHEEREE (H)

Notes to the Financial Statements

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
Tt & B AR R R Net deferred tax assets recognised on the

FIRETIBEE consolidated statement of financial position (168,886) (174,107)

R E TR R IER Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
FIRETIBAE consolidated statement of financial position 1,541 904
(167,345) (173,203)

HIEEFFESHEEMBET Bt afe®
REFE T —EARKEIHES -

(0 RERANELHEEE
BRRAKRAIEELBERAR B AT B HEAD
ERTRMIARBAERIEL  ~AEEIL K
BREFMIBEANELCRIBEEREK
636,0007T (20204 : #B#¥636,0007T)  RIK
WEMBIRS - EEHIBIBLLBEREA -

Among the deferred tax assets and liabilities, the whole amount is
expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after
the year-end.

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$636,000 (2020: HK$636,000), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

29 HipgaEds 29 Other liabilities
2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T R Ho A FE T BR I8 I 245 Accruals and other payables and provisions 8,388,557 7,796,058
BEERQGGTER Deposit from an immediate holding company 2,329,979 2,282,116
10,718,536 10,078,174

F2021%128318 U EEERBSHE
HAEEREROB1BEERE2RETERE
BEEREBEE DR AER141,026,0007T
K 51,434,000 7C (2020 F 1 ER - 7B
125,762,0007C & S8 2F&ER - 71892,0007T) °

HZE2021F 128318  IRE AT ES
TR ERMNTBE SR ABE470,014,0007T
(20204 : ##5473,133,0007T) ©
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At 31 December 2021, included above is the expected credit losses
allowances on loan commitments and guarantees for Stages 1 and 2
amounted to HK$141,026,000 and HK$1,434,000 respectively (2020:
Stage 1: HK$125,762,000 and Stage 2: HK$892,000).

At 31 December 2021, the amount of interest payables from
financial liabilities at amortised cost were HK$470,014,000 (2020:
HK$473,133,000).
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30

31

(a)

(b)

BRER 30 Loan capital
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEZE - BHAAIR Subordinated notes, at amortised cost:
722029 F B HAFF B2 /54.625% US$500 million Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes at
M B500,000,000 3 TT K 14 (& S & 4.625%, due 2029* 3,883,863 3,855,374
* RITARIE RIS A 8 R 201042 A2 H * Under the Programme and supplemental offering circulars released in
MR EEE B K - 201942 A28 BE41THE February 2019, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 28 February 2019
{E500,000,0002 7T, (Z{E%#£3,925,600,000 with a face value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,925.6 million)
T)WIBEEE  ZBREEESA(BER and which qualified as Basel lll-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes carry
BE=VH —PMEARER - 2 EEZENERH interest at a fixed rate of 4.625% per annum, payable semi-annually
FEFETFRA625% - BFEIREFE 202452 until 28 February 2024, and thereafter fixed at the interest rate of the
A28 1 EEMERAETEBEDE - 2 prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 2.25% per annum if
MEEMEEREERSFHERRER the notes are not redeemed on the call date. The notes are listed on
EHZEEB RN ISHEFREHET o BLE The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and mature on 28 February
EERBHMAZTSAAERAT LM+ ¥R 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on 28 February 2024.
2029%F2 A28 A EIH - KX 2024%2 A28 H
AEEERIEE -
BN G 31 Capital and reserves
N (@) Share capital
() EEB7TRAEZER (i) Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
2021 2020
LEES (RN
RAEE Share capital BRZAEE  Share capital
Number BT T Number BETT
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
W A1TE 128318 At 1 January/31 December 12,111,121,568 18,404,013 12,111,121,568 18,404,013
(i)  FRAETHRD (i) Shares issued during the year
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE - A77I The Bank did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
y Yy
BT (2020%F : ) © December 2021 (2020: Nil).
;350 (b) Dividend
TR AE AW IR RS - 7R The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
EERTITHREAS LIZSR—ZEMNHFR declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
I . A TEIRSE RSN ZEEARTH shareholders’ meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally
FIREE o with regard to the Bank's residual assets.
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31 BAXRKGHE(E)

(c REHERBEN

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

=N
BARERNKBREL - TR DK
TR -

— AR fA 1
—RFEEENRE SN E H— MK
R WHAT DR TR ©

V& 5 2 BR 1 1

EXEZRFREHREMERREEINE
BOMBHRAMELNELEZR - I
RIBMIE2 2 FTE A S ETBUOR R IE

VEE
WMEEHRETRIEME2.20) EA
SRFBRRERE - WA TSIk T
R EARREHNOEE(RFGD)
(F622F) FeMESE - BLREET
BREEHREM -

KEE A
BREEERBEEREEEFANIA
ARBEFAHMEEREHTHE
E/AHEEBSNRNFANEBE
g WIREM 2200V AE A 5T
BRBEIE

ey N

RIEFBEERRZEGIRE - PERTE
B (P E) FERESFOREEN D
BRI0%IERSTRED K TBEREVETE
BB ATE  BEEEEBEBRIBEDR

FEMRAR 2 50%H) 7K F o

JETE ARG

RBFBRITER - PERITEE (F
B) BRIDEE —MRfER - BBIEESF
EOFBDR  BERERRN—RE
BARBARRENEERRAR
RENZERENEREEAFEER
HVAERREEMN 1.5%F & < JEXE —RE
ERANASERESET & -
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31

()

Capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was created upon acquisition and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2.2(q).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set out in note 2.2(j) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
constitute realised profits within the meaning of Part 6 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2.2(c)(iv).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of Mainland China, the Bank's
wholly-owned PRC subsidiary, CBI (China) is required to transfer
10% of its profit after taxation to a non-distributable statutory
reserve until such reserve has reached 50% of its registered
share capital.

Regulatory general reserve

Pursuant to the banking regulations of Mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve
through a direct appropriation from the current year profit, as
determined based on the 1.5% of the total risk assets at the
end of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential
loss exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.
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(o)

(d)

32
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EXRkHE (E) 31 Capital and reserves (continued)
RETEEREN (E) () Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)
(viii) 1R B (viii) - Retained profits
REEEB(RITEGRD) ERASTIE A requlatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
EENRE ATEERERETSE the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
HEBEBECHRAMEBLANHEE K purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
AREANBER KRR RBERLS losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
o KEATERE  RFENEHD and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
BEEAREREMNAEIE - R20214F through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
12A318  REHEMNTEEELE 31 December 2021, HK$2,061,314,000 (2020: HK$1,926,768,000)
AUYEARETATRRENESER was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
FE#52,061,314,0007T (20204 : B is distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
1,926,768,0007T) ° B KEE AT ANTT/R consultation with the HKMA.
BHAEER °
AR AT 2R (d) Distributability of reserve
2021 12A318  REFHEB(R At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
AP (56228 ) B #E R EERF distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under
B A#Hoa R TARITRROFEE LR the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
78 #18,624,154,0007T (20204F - B ¥ (Cap. 622), was HK$18,624,154,000 (2020: HK$17,405,628,000).
17,405,628,00070) ° VA £ AJ 93 K &9 17 The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of
#8%18,624,154,0007T (20204F « B HK$18,624,154,000 (2020: HK$17,405,628,000) and the Bank's retained
17,405,628,0007T ) EAAR B I 5E42(b) FT R & profits of HK$20,743,717,000 (2020: HK$19,390,645,000) as reported
ARATHYR B 0 R 5 20,743,717,0007T (2020 in note 42(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves
F 1 #¥19,390,64500070) ZEMZEZBEE and the exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment
ERE—MRAEERIGRENENARERE properties and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank. Included in
H s N PRI TEEE R o Al D BLiEE the Bank's retained profits was an amount of HK$2,061,314,000 (2020:
BRI E REE%2,061,314,0007T (2020 HK$1,926,768,000), which was regulatory reserve and the distribution
F 1 55%1,926,768,0007T) * & BN IKEEA] is subject to consultation with the HKMA.
RTEBACER °
HittRET A 32 Other equity instruments
2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
T {8 500,000,000 3 TT Y sk A& AY Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FHRBREERZSR securities with US$500 million* - 3,863,084
T {E.500,000,000 3 TT HY sk B AY Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FHRBREERTZH securities with US$500 million** 3,907,328 3,907,328
TAI{E.600,000,000 7T ) 7k B 7Y Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FERBREERF FH securities with US$600 million*** 4,647,489 -
8,554,817 7,770,412
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*%

RAFEF 2007 F 12 A BATH) P BAZIRETH 81F0
M2016F8 AR A S B RMAIFTEEHK
M FEBE - AITH2016F9 A290 AFF
a(EER®E=)EE500,000,000%ETTH]
KEBRIERTIERERBEIN—RERFES (58
IN—MERFEF])ETTE  THEER
BEEORINARERZ - HABEREAS
500,000,0003 7T (E1{E%3,877,860,0007T )
BIN—MERBLFREBBMEXITER
ARl LT REBEFEREHAE - R2021F10A8
1B EERAER R BITNDRERAF
FIE425% - BERARBITEBOEE - LD
IR BR B R G 1 i 5 B R [
HEBERNEMERII07%ERFE —RNEHE
B

RIBIGER RGN —REAWMTIFHE
ABERSWEIERET IR (BXDIK)
R RIEARTENERASIERE &
REEN4 B BMOAN BIREERE—
Koo TR LABATRTE » BIEBUE 5 IR
Ko RAILABITREBRIZEIN—RE R -
BEFIHNCERNBALEEMAE « A17H]
IRARBETE M IERT 7T 1415 0 i B B % T o 1
HEAEHEREREEEIN—RELEFFD
WBEE - RIBEBRB(OREE (EEH#D) 15
BIY (E628%) R FERIES + EIEFTTT
MEMHBLER  BEEE#NERAITE
ARAE SR ERTE R TEHERER
FIN—MERFBLHLETE - HE2021F12A
3THFAMD RS A21,250,000
ZE7T (5{E51165,427,0007T) (20204 :
21,250,000% 7T + FH{EBME 164,700,0007T) °
HE2021F12A318ILEE - AT 2%
EEBBEEE -

RAE2018F 10 A BRI EI A T H1TR
B ARTTR2018%F11 Ao EH ATA(EE
BT =) E1T T E {8 4500,000,0003% 7T
Rk BRI FER BB EBIN—RELRES -
I B K 784 500,000,000 % 7T (S EB
3,916,900,0007T ) BBIN—RMERFHRE
BHARSARA R & EE T 2 H
B - 72023511 A6 B & [Ef2RIHE L B 251
DIk B R BERR710% - BEEFARETT
FERERE - DR EROFREBIZE R
SEHERBEEES BEMFEFE4151%F
RFE—IREFER] -
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32 Other equity instruments (continued)

*%

Under the Programme and the new and supplemental offering
circulars release in August and September 2016, respectively, the Bank
priced its US$500 million Basel Ill compliant Undated Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities with the legal binding
subscription agreements signed on 29 September 2016. The AT1
Capital Securities with a face value and principal amount of US$500
million (equivalent to HK$3,877.86 million) are perpetual and listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and bear a coupon of 4.25%
per annum for the first 5 years from the date of issue to the optional
redemption date falling on 11 October 2021. The distribution rate will
be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital Securities are not called by
the Bank at a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US
Treasury rate plus 3.107% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions
on the principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the
applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrears on 11
April and 11 October in each year. The Bank may at its sole discretion,
elect to cancel the distribution payment. The Bank may also at its sole
discretion, elect to redeem the AT1 Capital Securities subject to prior
written consent of the HKMA. The outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be written down by the Bank following the occurrence of
a non-viability event as defined and set out in the terms and conditions.
At the sole discretion of the relevant Hong Kong Resolution Authority
following a non-viability event, the outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be adjusted upon the exercise of Hong Kong Resolution
Authority Power in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap.628). A distribution payment
of US$21,250,000 (equivalent to HK$165,427,000) was paid during the
year ended 31 December 2021. (2020: US$21,250,000, equivalent to
HKS$164,700,000). The notes were fully redeemed by the Bank during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Under the Programme and supplemental offering circulars released in
October 2018, the Bank issued the US$500 million Basel Ill compliant
Undated Non-Cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities on 6 November 2018. The AT1 Capital Securities with a
face value and principal amount of US$500 million (equivalent to
HK$3,916.90 million) are perpetual and listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and bear a coupon of 7.10% per annum
distribution rate until the first call date on 6 November 2023. The
distribution rate will be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital
Securities are not called by the Bank to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 4.151% per annum.
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RIR R NG - BN —RERFHFET
B ARASWEGERHA SR (BXHIK)
MR BEEETHENERSIRE -
FRAEBERNsAcBM1 AeBIRFEFE—
Koo AITALABITRE - BEIUHED IR
o MALABEITREEREIN—RER
BEFEBICERMNEAEMAE - £A777]
R IEBEE M IE AT TT M L H IR B I P {6
RRGHEREREEREIN—RERESL
@7 MBEEB(SRMERS (EEEH) &
By (E628%) R T ERES - EIEAITT
MEGEER  BERERSIERATE
HETAEREMGIE REATARKESR
BIN—REARBHBRE - BHZE2021F12A8
31 BFERB DR 50 X5 £35,500,000
7t (BB 276,005,0007T) (20204 :
35,500,000 7T+ E(EB1275,187,0007T) ©

RIK2021F6 A M7 ABHHEEIFE7
BT - ANTTR2021E7 8298 A4
(EERE=)ET T EE /600,000,000
ETLRPKERIERTERERIN—RERE
% o IWEE M ANE600,000,0003 7T (FEHS
#54,663,240,0007T) BBIN—RERFZHFNE
AR HBRA R LT R ERTE R H
B - 7202657 A29 8 & [@#R2RIE L B HA50
B IR B R BERRI25% - BEFARETT
(EREEIE - 2R E R FF = % & S
FHERBBEES B EMFFE253%EFH
FIREHER]

RIBIERRIE - BN —BREAWM TR
ARESWESER DR (B DIK) B
o REABTANBEASIKE RS
FM A28 M7 A20HIRFEFESE—K o K
TRAIABATRE « BERUED IR+ 75
ALETATERSEN-—RER  BFES
HeERNBAEARE - ATTAIRIERE
TE R IERT 7T 115 0 i B B 2 T a4 R % {5
REREEBEIN - RERNBHHNEE -
RIEBEECEBEE (EBEHH) G0 (5
628F) P FEMIESN  BIEAITIESEM
BN BERE#GERAITEMLAES
VR B HIE REA T AR EEREN—
WEARFH BT -
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32 Other equity instruments (continued)

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions
on the principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the
applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrear on 6 May
and 6 November in each year. The Bank may at its sole discretion,
elect to cancel the distribution payment. The Bank may also at its sole
discretion, elect to redeem the AT1 Capital Securities subject to prior
written consent of the HKMA. The outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be written down by the Bank following the occurrence of
a non-viability event as defined and set out in the terms and conditions.
At the sole discretion of the relevant Hong Kong Resolution Authority
following a non-viability event, the outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be adjusted upon the exercise of Hong Kong Resolution
Authority Power in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap.628). A distribution payment
of US$35,500,000 (equivalent to HK$276,005,000) was paid during the
year ended 31 December 2021. (2020: US$35,500,000, equivalent to
HK$275,187,000).

Under the Programme and the original and supplemental offering
circulars released in June and July 2021, the Bank issued the US$600
million Basel Il compliant Undated Non-Cumulative Subordinated
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities on 29 July 2021. The AT1 Capital
Securities with a face value and principal amount of US$S600 million
(equivalent to HK$4,663.24 million) are perpetual and listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and bear a coupon of 3.25%
per annum distribution rate until the first call date on 29 July 2026.
The distribution rate will be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital
Securities are not called by the Bank to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 2.53% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities confer
a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions on the
principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the applicable
distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrear on 29 January and 29
July in each year. The Bank may at its sole discretion, elect to cancel the
distribution payment. The Bank may also at its sole discretion, elect to
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities subject to prior written consent of
the HKMA. The outstanding amount of AT1 Capital Securities can be
written down by the Bank following the occurrence of a non-viability
event as defined and set out in the terms and conditions. At the sole
discretion of the relevant Hong Kong Resolution Authority following a
non-viability event, the outstanding amount of AT1 Capital Securities
can be adjusted upon the exercise of Hong Kong Resolution Authority
Power in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Institutions
(Resolution) Ordinance (Cap.628).
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33 HEBEERERMEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

33 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

2021 2020
BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) RERFIHELEEL 2 (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from
B FENEE operating activities
REER Operating activities
BATE R Profit before taxation 2,500,399 1,306,088
FREBERHE Adjustments for non-cash items:
CRMEERPEEBRL Expected credit losses charged on financial assets 1,782,919 2,356,656
HEhBERER KD E Impairment losses reversed on other assets (13,731) (4,176)
HEAAR BEF AL Net loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
ZENENEREEFEX through other comprehensive income 118,884 33,428
HEMERLBERENEE Net loss on disposal of property and equipment and
FEE intangible assets 2,915 961
REMEER (BH)/BX Revaluation (gain)/loss on investment properties (6,777) 34,300
RIS 5N Amortisation of deferred expenses 31,455 89,954
R BEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 244,816 207,597
MERBBENE Depreciation on property and equipment 118,408 113,458
FREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 297,759 291,776
BEBEHFRBBA Dividend income from equity securities (3,810) (4,330)
BRHEAREBITRBES Interest expense on loan capital and debt securities
MBS H issued 186,106 315,332
bE N Foreign exchange differences (23,613) (650,433)
EEELEBANTE RN Operating profit before changes in working capital 5,235,730 4090611
EEEEFRD /(M) Net decrease/(increase) in operating assets
JREIEA A B iB3 1H A MR R1THY Placements with and advances to banks with original
TR RER maturity beyond 3 months 127,200 4,203,829
REEREB3IEANEES Treasury bills with original maturity beyond 3 months (14,507,349) (403,416)
RIMREBIEANSEERE Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
beyond 3 months 447,047 797,370
URnBEFABRNEHEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (104,332) (740,706)
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 5,489,759 (8,094,993)
EFERRBAREMERR Loans and advances to customers and other accounts (24,352,035) (35,549,178)
AR EBEFAHMEERE Financial assets at fair value through other
SREE comprehensive income (4,687,866) (6,573,671)
(37,587,576) (46,360,765)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

2021 2020
BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) RERFIHELEEL 2 (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from
REeFHENEER(E) operating activities (continued)
TERET(AL) /&M Net (decrease)/increase in operating liabilities
RITREMEBEEDN Deposits and balances of banks and other financial
BRR&ER institutions 8,258,019 (1,795,225)
BEGER Deposits from customers 17,887,826 32,993,142
PTHEMIA Derivative financial instruments (6,393,948) 8,797,128
NAREBEFABENEHEE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 477,821 143,685
BRI NE Certificates of deposit issued 1,475,336 (3,107,444)
HinBfE Other liabilities 640,880 (119,982)
22,345,934 36,911,304
AREEEBNESE Cash used in operating activities (10,005,912) (5,358,850)
BHER Income tax paid
BREBFERH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (74,703) (730,888)
BERAEBAINGIE Taxation outside Hong Kong paid (39,916) (37,747)
ARCEEBRNRSFE Net cash flow used in operating activities (10,120,531) (6,127,485)
REEREENRSEE - Cash flows from operating activities included:
BN R Interest received 8,020,173 8,585,922
BRFIE Interest paid (2,324,587) (4,036,553)
b)BeRRLEEEENERIN (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ReRERTRPRBINGES Cash and balances with banks and central banks 28,235,584 32,181,569
ERITNERRBR Placements with and advances to banks with original
(RR3EAMEIE) maturity within 3 months 20,990,458 17,336,484
BUE % R A 0T e Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held with original
(RA3EANEER) maturity within 3 months:
—URnBEFAEMZENES ~ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
HEREE income 18,574,671 28,738,503
-~ UERKAN SR EE - Financial assets at amortised cost 53,378 48,493
67,854,091 78,305,049
—E=—%%
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33 ZEHERERME (&) 33 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(0 RBERELNAEGBEE (c) Changesin liabilities arising from financing activities
2021 2020
BEITEBES
BBRER Debt securities BEEAR
Loan capital issued Loan capital
BT T BETT BT
RMEEKNEE Liabilities from financing activities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®1A1H At 1 January 3,855,374 3,346,067 6,249,182
= Redemption - (3,252,833) (2,359,017)
fEHZ% Foreign exchange differences 22,140 (94,911) (23,025)
HMIER S FHE Other non-cash adjustments 6,349 1,677 (11,766)
M12H31H At 31 December 3,883,863 - 3,855,374
2021 2020
HESE HERE
Lease liabilities Lease liabilities
BT BT
RMEELNEE Liabilities from financing activities HK$’000 HK$'000
M®1A1H At 1 January 722,894 695,870
THEaE Payment of lease liabilities (310,351) (313,626)
FEERE - Other non-cash items:
— 18 - Additions 169,041 304,936
— A% - Adjustments (12,605) -
— H h & E) - Other changes 23,642 35,714
M12H31R At 31 December 592,621 722,894
34 {EERERKEE 34 Staff retirement scheme
REBHZE—HEHATHAIAAESE ([ The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
BRERZ ) - Bl AEBEBELEBENME ("the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
BEARFH R 10%HI « ZBRKFEIR—E employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
BIESNEITE REGERLKANEEMNAT Provident Fund (“MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
ELXBEE - BEHEBEELTAMHET - 1R full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
EEXESDSHETTHE  ~NEETEE required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
& B FTIREMNE R BER IR R EE - not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
mMEBEBHZEA —EEIHENES - but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
VEBZRRETEINERBHE - for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme’s members.
B T EGRIRETEIGN - AREE B 2000912 A1 In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also participated
Hif  h2RE—-IER A RES:TE - AIRE in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to
RFEAEE BRI EEE - KREFEDIRE provide a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees.
RiETETEIRHE R R E D RIEH o Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF Scheme.
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35

36

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

EERINGTE (2) 34 Staff retirement scheme (continued)
REERN  AEEpELFEEDAOH During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$137,883,000
K R 137,883,000 (20204F « B (2020: HK$124,372,000) (note 9) to these schemes.
124372,0007T) (FF5E9) -
REERNEE 35 Assets pledged as security
2021 2020
BT T ok v
HK$’000 HKS$'000
AEEHNEE Assets pledged as security
AR BETAEM Financial assets at fair value through other
PEHBEHEREEN comprehensive income pledged as statutory
EEF (MEEED deposits (Note i) 218,118 92,980
Emg e (Mati) Other assets (Note ii) 75,867 -
293,985 92,980

BIEE

() FAEERNEESENTHNEINID
TREEREREAEEFR

T3

B \Fﬁﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁx%qﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁf&

ELY
ol ARFARMABBENEERAE -

EXBBMLEIRS

RN SRR HEAM I DB S LR
G REBEITTUTEREB TS -

EEBEARANKS

ARERR  AEEEEAFRITREBIET
HEEMTETT T ZER S - AP RRIBREE
g BXLEFRAZEER  SHEEBEER -
ERBITRHIINER F - BERFHHNEL
EEBREREETRZRNMEMMISH X
MmiE @ WERHEEAREEMR S REF
MIRTAER - EFERE - BERXFHEKIE
BEEGTET

36

(a)

Note:

(i) The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the
overseas branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency in the United States.

(i) The assets were pledged as “collateral” under the sale and repurchase
transactions for the secured liabilities which were included in other
liabilities.

Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

Transactions with group companies

During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
related parties in the normal course of its banking business; including,
inter alia, lending, acceptance and placement of interbank deposits,
participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions
and foreign exchange transactions. The transactions were priced
based on relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and
were under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, these
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 EXRBHMAERS (&) 36 Material related party transactions (continued)
(@) HEEARNRS (&) (@) Transactions with group companies (continued)
REFERN  BBARXZNBELNEE RN The amount of related party transactions during the year and
RO outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
BENARAELT
ERERR GE) BEAR
EERBAF Associates & (R i)
Ultimate holding and EREREAR RANELR Joint Venture Related companies
intermediate parents Immediate parent Fellow subsidiaries (note (i)) (note (ii))
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
BeTn  EETT BMTn #NTr  BRTn RUTr  B%Tn AuTr B¥TRm AT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FEMA Interest income 24,892 66,095 - - 50,340 25,206 26,848 41743 - -
MEx Interest expense (21,439) (12433) (8,128) (16,958) (19,929) (33.251) (59,091) (68,551) (2) (41)
BERBSUA Fee and commission income 390 m - - 2,308 - 152 - - -
RPBEATERE /(BX) Trading gain/(loss) on derivatives (4824) 610433 - - 50,005 0714 (176310) (3813) 1,888 450
melA Other operating income - - 5,000 4,200 - - - - - -
st Other operating expenses (10373) 2454 (50000 (42000 (30298) (4351 (4861) (760) - (1489
BE Assets
DARBEGALMZA  Financial assets at fair value through
EREREE other comprehensive income - - - B0 1738 764290 956092 - -
WURREBEABER  Financial assets at fair value through
PHEE profit orloss - - - - - - - 350 - -
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 611,179 775480 - - - 6621 5813 13822 - -
EfEUER Other receivables 168,759 262443 - - 7,964 4,609 106,288 11,175 - 1137
& Liabilities
fTEeRIA Derivative financia instruments 502941 36397 - - 7337 7 122,138 3002 - -
EHEMER Other payables 36,920 64,99 1,344 - 16,287 1035 133823 4945 - -
HEAR Lease liabilities - - - - 3,258 - N7 - - -
DA BETAERE  Financial liabiltes at fair value
SHAE through profi or loss - - - - - - 57,504 - - -
ERES Lending activities
R12A31H At 31 December 124452 1111479 - - 7,356,989 1387936 211,245 78523 - 1216
TEETEE Average for the year 1034553 4467183 - - 2999024 93000 421366 1029184 1428 880243
BRER: Acceptance of deposits
R12A31H At 31 December 3,356,762 5165421 2318575 2271114 5599954 3726340  7,815690 6812972 LEMAN 133,863
TEETHEE Average for the year 3,244,602 1500471 2,293,844 1933359 6,001,734 5134930 7217905 3952402 94,346 384,047
BEMRRIMER Off-statement of financial
position items
BAEE  ERRERE  Acceptances, quarantees and
letters of credit
-ERANEE - contract amounts payable - - - - (3,000 (3000) - - - -
EitAd Other commitments - - - - 393,103 - 1839923 759000 - -
fEeBIA Derivative financial instruments
-RE5E - notional amounts 26,449,376 83,480,959 - - 812,661 202909 14,455,435 5789552 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36

(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with group companies (continued)
No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans
to and placements with related parties.

Note:

(i) Associates & joint venture of the Group include the associates and joint
venture of the ultimate controlling party and immediate parent.

(i) Related companies refers to companies which are common
shareholders with significant influence over the Group, and subsidiaries
of shareholders with significant influence over the intermediate parent.

Transactions with key management personnel

The aggregate amount of remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group, including the amount paid to the Bank's
Directors as disclosed in note 10, are as follows:

2021 2020

BET T BETIT

HKS$'000 HKS'000

REEERT Short-term employee benefits 84,726 66,508
BB 2R A Post-employment benefits 3,313 3,461
88,039 69,969

Mo st ATEIRA] (HE9) °

REER - ATARTRBEEER AR
T EEIEA BB PIE TR N i A PR I X
RMEAFENRRRHREERE - 8
BMEREREESBRETEME R
WAL (AER) BEME BT L]
L HRVERABHER °

Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 9).

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary
course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where
applicable, with other employees.

2021 2020

BT BT

HK$'000 HKS'000

M1A1A At 1 January 17,122 12,832

R12H31H At 31 December 13,818 17,122

FAR=EERMEERE Maximum amount during the year 19,421 23,410
—E-—%H
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36 EXRBHMAERS (&) 36 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) HEFrEEBAENRS (&) (b) Transactions with key management personnel (continued)
REELSERETEETEBABERFANLGERE No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances

REMREEE  WIERETEEEAER with key management personnel during the year, and no individually

A PIEY 3T 3R PO R A 48 R BRER B & 51| 5T 1 assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
BB 2 - management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

(0 TTHBABER (c) Loans to directors
BIBCEBRTEH) (F6226E) F171& Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to Section 17 of
[HWREEEFmEL ] WEEZ2021512020 the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
F12ANBITBRAEMNERERAT ° Regulation (Cap.622G) for the year ended 31 December 2021 and

37

2020 are shown as below.

2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
P12 A3 BARTTIRENE @ Aggregate amount of relevant loans made by
B R EE the Bank at 31 December
— BEWE R R EBR - Loans and advances 5,748 12,712
— AHAEEHE — Committed facility 18,889 23,070
REFEARTRENEBER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans
Bt R BE made by the Bank during the year
— BERERREIR - Loans and advances 15,929 15,170
2021 F K 2020128318 » REERE There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at 31
RiE LB BIR R - December 2021 and 2020.
SRIEMERE 37 Financial risk management
AEEFREEFENEARENZESRYE The Group manages its risks under the oversight of the Board of
BUEESENNRE - AEBENRBREE Directors and its delegated committees. The Risk Management Group
EREESSENEIENRE - EHMHNIT ("RMG") has been entrusted with the ongoing responsibilities of
SEMRREBERNES  BREEM 2 driving and implementing the Group's risk management framework
b~ BRI - RS FER R o and governance encompassing the identification, quantification,

monitoring, reporting, and mitigation of the risks to which the Group
is exposed.
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37

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

The Group adopts the Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. The Group has established policies, procedures
and processes to identify and set appropriate risk limits, as well as
to analyse, control and monitor these risks. The Group continually
strives to enhance its risk management framework and infrastructure
in keeping with the market, product offerings and international best
practices. The Group's internal auditor performs regular independent
audits to ensure due compliance with internal policies and regulatory
requirements.

The Group manages the following main types of risk:

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in off-balance sheet financial positions such as loan
commitments. The Group has developed standards, policies and
procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending
business. The policies and procedures are reviewed as required, to
respond quickly to the changing market environment and to better
reflect the risk factors for the Group's credit considerations.

Throughout the full year of 2021, the Group continues to enhance
its risk management framework and internal control practices by
solidifying its three lines of defence, promoting risk culture and
reviewing its risk appetite and policies to ensure its compliance with
regulatory requirements. Various risk management enhancement
projects and initiatives have been launched to keep pace with the
evolving regulatory landscape and increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements. These projects included Initial Margin Standard for
non-centrally cleared over-the-counter derivatives, Standardized
Approach to Counterparty Credit Risk, and pilot climate risk stress test
etc. Furthermore, the Group is in the process of implementing the
Basel Ill Reform Package, while gradually building resilience against
climate risk by incorporating considerations into its governance and
promoting the risk culture of green and sustainable banking.

Credit risk is controlled and managed by the Risk Management Group
("RMG") under the oversight of the Credit Committee, and is reported
to the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC") at the board
level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide appropriate
oversight of the Group's risk management practices by defining the
Group's policies and risk appetite, and providing the RMG with the
means to implement measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the
Group's adopted strategy.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured
in product programmes and on-going review and assessment
process. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is identified
and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating models.
Credit applications are approved by credit officers under delegated
authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group's
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among industry and product sectors.

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate risk. Risk grading is applied to the debt
issuers and the counterparties, with individual credit limits set.

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group's Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit quality

The Group has adopted a granular 24-grade internal risk rating
system (Grades GO1-G21 for performing financial assets and
Grades G22-G24 for non-performing financial assets) that maps
to external credit rating agencies’ rating scales. The integration
of this framework into the Group's reporting structure has
enabled more granular credit risk reporting, thus enhancing the
internal management. The risk rating are assigned according to
differing customer segments (manufacturing, trading, property
development/investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of
the credit quality of each customer and the governing of the
credit exposure for individual customers or counterparties.

Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly
in times of fluctuating market conditions. The Group also
maintains a committee to regularly oversee weaker credits
(which have lower risk ratings of G19-G21) to preserve the
Group's quality portfolio. The table below outlines the Group's
rating scale benchmarked against external credit agencies:

BEECAIFTR
Reference ECAI Rating

BB ARE BH BEER FEER  THREHS

Obligor Grade Moody'’s S&P Fitch Rating Description

GO1 Aaa AAA AAA EBRARERGAERRNBYMBE S - AMEAI R
AN EREIBURNSRSFNERT - IERZHIE
FEREKT RRE
Obligations are judged to have the highest intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and thus subject to the lowest
level of credit risk absent any possibility of extraordinary support
from an affiliate or government.

G02 - G4 Aal/Aa2/Ma3  AAH/AA/AA- AAH/ANAA- BEERRAGEARSNELNBE N - BIEARE

A B A RSB R AR FRFOERT - A HE
R IEFE -

Obligations are judged to have high intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and thus subject to very low credit risk absent
any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(@ FERBERE) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() 1EEEZE(E) () Credit quality (continued)
BEECAIFTH
Reference ECAI Rating
(L IN B BREELR HEBER TEHSA
Obligor Grade Moody's S&P Fitch Rating Description
GO5 - GO7 A1/A2/A3 A+/A/A- A/NA- BBERAATBEBTSERANELMEE S - Bk

R A AN E R RSB RIS FHAERT » AR
HERERE RERR

Obligations are judged to have upper-medium-grade intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and thus subject to low credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.

G08 - G10 Baal/Baa2/Baa3  BBB+/BBB/BBB-  BBB+/BBB/BBB- EHWRAAFEFTENBUMNYKE N - BIFEAsEHE
EREGEMEERE - MBI K BEE S BT R
BRI HNBER THAZHERRRAEE -

Obligations are judged to have medium-grade intrinsic, or

standalone, financial strength, and thus subject to moderate
credit risk and, as such, may possess certain speculative credit
elements absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an
affiliate or government.

G11-GI13 Bal/Ba2/Ba3 BB-+/BB/BB- BB+/BB/BB- EMRHRAAFAEFREIESBLNMBEE S - BME A8
BB BRENBTIRERRSHNERT  #e
FREA R E AR -

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or

standalone, financial strength, and are subject to substantial
credit risk absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an
affiliate or government.

G14-Gl6 B1/B2/B3 B+/B/B- B+/B/B- BEBERAEAFEERBESBINIKE N - B8
REEAM BEE S BTREEFITENERT @
SiEARE -

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and are subject to high credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EEREKREE(£) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() EEEZ(E) (i) Credit quality (continued)
BEECAIFTH
Reference ECAI Rating
BB AR B BH# BEER BEER THREH
Obligor Grade Moody's S&P Fitch Rating Description
G17-G18 Caal/Caa2 CCCH+/CCC CCC+CCC EBRRARAFEARBMIBUNITBES - BrFER

AREMBRRASNBANEMEHXFHNERLT @ &%
FESNERRRE -

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and are subject to very high credit
risk absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an
affiliate or government.

G19 Caa3 CCC- ccc- EBEREAREAGAESENRHEN - AR RN
FEMI AUEA) - BVE —ENAS A S EKEATS o
Special Mention Obligations are judged to have highly speculative intrinsic, and

are likely in, or near, default, with some prospect of recovery of
principal and interest.

G20 Ca C cC ERERBASGEEREREE - WERAERERELNK
EERE FBEILENNMREE - BINE—ENRSMH S BRI A
Special Mention =

Obligations are judged to have highly speculative intrinsic, and
are likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery
of principal and interest.

G21 C C C EBHAR/RE  BEEBEL - DURARS A SR8
Special Mention Obligations are the lowest rated and are typically in default, with

little prospect for recovery of principal or interest.

G22 D D D R - RBEEGENRRR -

N Substandard. In accordance with the Asset Quality Classification
Substandard Policy.

G23 D D D R o RFEEGED AR -

R Doubtful. In accordance with the Asset Quality Classification
Doubtful Policy.

G24 D D D BX - REEAELENEBX -

HEES Loss. In accordance with the Asset Quality Classification
Loss Policy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) Exposure of credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting

period, without considering any collateral held or other credit

enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of

each financial asset in the statement of financial position after

deducting any impairment allowances. A summary of the

maximum exposure is as follows:

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BRe RERIT R REIT Cash and balances with banks and central banks
M &ETF 28,592,214 32,571,718
EIRITHFR IR Placements with and advances to banks 21,058,640 28,969,830
AR EEFGAERN Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
TREE 3,106,275 2,649,076
TESHBIA Derivative financial instruments 8,888,842 14,378,601
BEERRBRLEMBRIE  Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 248,878,247 226,169,265
NAREBEGFAHMEE Financial assets at fair value through other
WS REE comprehensive income 103,847,579 84,840,800
B AR E Amortised cost investments 53,375 48,493
WIEEREAEMEEE Financial guarantees and other credit-related
BN BE AR contingent liabilities 7,827,251 20,252,337
EFFREREMEEE Loan commitments and other credit-related
B R AL commitments 114,297,882 97,891,862
536,550,305 507,771,982

?zid*g%f%)&ﬂ? B

D 1 B & BB A

Z oM 2R B HRKRMEE37 ()

(vii) °
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Further detailed analyses of financial assets by credit quality

and stage distribution are provided in the note 37(a)(vii) of the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i)

Master netting arrangement

The Group enters into enforceable master netting arrangements
with counterparties. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are terminated and all
amounts outstanding are settled on a net basis. Except for
the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The Group discloses information for financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including the rights of set-off associated
with the Group’s recognised financial assets and recognised
financial liabilities, on the Group's financial position.

2021
ERBMRARA
RERHENEREE
ERERRER Related amounts that are
B4 not offset in the statement of
SRTARE financial position
Derivative financial 2]
instruments BEEH
presented in $RMIA Cash
the statement of Financial collateral i
financial position  instruments received  Netamount
BETR BETR BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
—TE& BT A (Ps18(b)) - Derivative financial instruments (note 18(b)) 8,888,842  (3,987,107) (990,197) 3,911,538
CREE Financial liabilities
— TSR T A (H5H18(b)) - Derivative financial instruments (note 18(b)) 8,766,335  (3,987,107) - 4,779,228
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37 EREREE(E)

(@) FERREE(E)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

T EFEBE S i () (i) Master netting arrangement (continued)
2020
TR BARR KA
RERENRESE
Related amounts that are
EomhRER o offset in the statement of
E AT financial position
SHTARE w8
Derivative financial Bels
instruments presented $RIA Cash
in the statement of Financial collateral FE
financial position  instruments received  Netamount
BB BT BB BB
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
PREE Financial assets
—TE& BT A (MIs18(b)) - Derivative financial instruments (note 18(b)) 14,378,601 (7335314)  (1,648722) 5,394,565
TRIEE Financial liabilities
-T2 R T A (H5H18(b)) - Derivative financial instruments (note 18(b)) 15,160,283 (7335,314) - 7,824,969

ERIEE R — B KRS e
j’_/,

AE BB AN RBERIATRIT FUR A&
EERR - —RME - AEBEAER
i K B B 5 IR T AR A& & 215 B R
AMEE - REBSEBIRTTIRERES
ERBRAIKF -

AEEBEERRBRMEH ) ER
mEBRBRERE  REEH  RER
BEEA AN EmEBE - &
WHRREE - HREMRER ETHIE
BES - E—LBERT  AEEKR
FEPHOMANEBFNEEERE
Bl - AR b 5 S B A MR TE R A 3K
HER -
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(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit
enhancements

The Group is dedicated to mitigating credit risk, and this takes
many forms. In general, risk to the Group's ultimate credit
exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral and credit risk
enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to enhance its
level of credit risk mitigation.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable assignments,
standby letters of credit and listed debt securities acceptable
to the Group. In some cases, depending on the customer’s
position and the types of credit products, some loans may be
granted and backed by corporate or personal guarantees only.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit
enhancements (continued)

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group's policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on securities.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020, excluding impaired exposure, is broken
down as follows:

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
B R BB R EE R Lower of gross loans and advances and
SREE 2 EIRLREA fair value of collateral and other credit
ERRANAABEREZ enhancements held against
RE&EA: financial assets that are:
— BB @ RE — neither past due nor impaired 100,926,081 98,874,080
— B AR BRE - past due but not impaired 1,659,866 1,866,376
102,585,947 100,740,456
BEAMHAS TN R EDE (v)  Portfolio management and risk concentration
E#d /5\ B Portfolio management

7R ER [ BR A DA R\ B A AN O TE (B I R AR
HMIERERESERMNHED —HEE
e o AEREHLEFEBRAGEMEEL
ZREFPIERBENRR I EBR
FREFRBOREERAMFEER 15
SKER & ERT TE’U%HEIE@& o NERHE E H]
ETRBENRE - FRAMEBEZE
gHE jfEH%%QHMZT&HEAA
BLEER

As part of the Group’s portfolio management practices, a
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group, after taking into
account the risks of the customers and facilities, and thus the
capital required to support the loan exposure and other costs.
Stress tests on the Group's credit risk are conducted regularly.
The result is approved by the relevant committees and is
endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.

—EZ-FR
Annual Report 2021

1@® | &

151



BTSRRI R

37 EREREE(E)

(a)

FERRERE (&)
) EBEHHEEEELERETE (&)

(vi)

RREFE
AEEDHEITRRETEEERRL
KEBRERBRONEEER - B
R mEomRkEM ELEBEEST
FRERR

E-HXSHFRABZERMBE - &
BRITERRTE M ZEE
R AES AR N ERRRAEES
BEERN  BEELEERRETH
A - AEENESRMIAEES DA
TRIEMEER - TTREMERER]

FBHEERAE

BN R REBHRKASIARREE
AR EHAKRENER TASRE
ERTARA AR BEF AR EFK
ERMGRERTFEEEIAENESR
Ko BHEERAEANEETRER
EBRENBRLEZ B — R gesE
R BHEEREHEBNBESMN B
BRF AR 5T B FEORI R SRS R B & 32 TR
Al o MATHEEE R M E AN FEH
b R E SRR ERERN —(E
BERE -

R ERKRE
BHEERREFNER ()12
AFBMEERK (i) B VA ERE
KREFERRER EFHEE T AN
BHFEREERAFE - BHEER
REBOFERER 17 - ERKET
TTIESHB X INEB R HFEHBEN
FHERMBR SRR - WABRRFI RS
H o R HREINHNEHRDR
AEEBHRINRERENEZLE -
FIMBRWBEREERREEHGZFE
EEREZE—RII A AR KR
B YHERESHEEELNHTR
DA O B

152 ERIT (BIFR) AR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

v)

(vi)

Portfolio management and risk concentration (continued)

Risk concentration

The Group sets various risk limits to control and monitor its
exposure to individual counterparties, countries, industries,
intragroup exposures and loan portfolios to avoid excessive risk
concentration.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors affect groups of linked
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is material in
relation to the Group's total exposures. The Group's portfolio of
financial instrument is diversified along industry and product
sectors.

Expected credit losses measurement

ECL allowances are recognised on all financial assets that
are debt instruments classified either as amortised or fair
value through other comprehensive income and for loan
commitments and financial guarantees that are not measured at
fair value through profit and loss. The ECL allowances represent
an unbiased scenario that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information about past events, current
conditions and future economic conditions. Forward-looking
information is explicitly incorporated into the estimation of
ECL allowances and expert judgement on economic forecasts
becomes one of the important factors to the ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL allowances are measured at amounts equal to either:
(i) 12-month ECL; or (ii) lifetime ECL for those financial
instruments which have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk (‘'SICR’) since initial recognition. The calculation
of ECL allowances is based on the expected value of
probability-weighted scenarios with a combination of upside,
base and downside scenario(s) to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at the effective interest rate. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The calculation of ECL allowances for Stage 3 is based
on probability-weighted recovery amount from an impaired
financial asset and is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes and time value of money.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

The key inputs in the measurement of ECL allowances for Stage
1 and Stage 2 are as follows:

- The probability of default ("PD") is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon;

- The loss given default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time;
and

- The exposure at default ("EAD") is an estimate of the
exposure at a future default date.

Stage transfer

Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets
which have not triggered a SICR since initial recognition.
Their credit risk continuously monitored by the Group and in
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instruments as at the reporting date, with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of its initial
recognition.

Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets
which have triggered a SICR since initial recognition. The
Group recognises lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial assets. In
subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial
assets improves such that there is no longer a SICR since initial
recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising 12 months
of ECL as the financial assets have transferred back stage 1.

Stage 3 financial assets are those that the Group has classified as
credit-impaired. The Group recognises lifetime ECL for all stage 3
financial assets. The Group classifies financial assets as impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
occurred after its initial recognition. Evidence of impairment
includes indications that the borrower is experiencing
significant financial difficulties, or a default or delinquency has
occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Stage transfer (continued)

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets that
are credit-impaired on initial recognition, their ECL allowances
are always measured on a lifetime basis.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a
12-month PD for financial assets for which credit risk has not
significantly increased, the Group measures ECL considering the
risk of default over the remaining life of the financial instrument,
even if, for risk management purposes, the Group has the right
to consider a longer period.

Financial assets presented in the reconciliation summary
comprise balances with banks, central banks and other financial
institutions, placement with and advances to banks, central
banks and other financial institutions, loans and advances
to customers, other assets at amortised cost, FVOCI — debt
securities and amortised cost investments. For the purposes
of this disclosure, the gross carrying amounts refer to the fair
values of the FVOCI — debt securities. Movements in the gross
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of ECL allowances, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@ FERBEREZ) (@) Credit risk management (continued)

(i) TERBIEEEXE Z (&) (vi)  Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
EHREEBRERBEIN TERS The ECL reconciliation summary analyse the key elements that
B TEHREREBRANB#EER X drive the movement of ECL and related income statement over
SBEMEARAER - LTERIENBER the reporting period. The key elements included below are:
Ex:

2021
F1ER L] #3ER ag
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RHEE BHEE LS RHEE
FEAE  BAEE  RESE  BARE  RELE 0 BXER  REEE  BAER
Gross carrying ECL Gross cartying ECL Gross carrying ECL Gross carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
A¥Tn  B¥Tn  BMTr  EMTn BETn BMTr EBETn BRTn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
202151818 At 1 January 2021 353,817,915 646,089 10,495,624 577,740 3,882,251 1,641,078 368,195,790 2,864,907
g% Transfer:
-B\Z1RB - Transer to Stage | 6,880,189 258654 (6,830,158)  (258,650) (50,031) (4) - -
Ve Transerto Stage 2 (1180125 (30553) 11214569 34564 (44 (401) - -
-EAEIHA ~Transfer to Stage 3 (193,286) (182)  (1,709521) (68.494) 1,902,807 68,676 - -
RRekEt By Net remeasurement of ECL
EEBREEEN allowances arising from
TEFE transfer between stage - (106,253) - 89,337 - 289,188 - 22272
SBEERE/ Net financial assets originated/
(K- E)/ (derecognised or repaid)/
MEERE S changes i fair value 36808215 376282 (3293154 (148738  (942173)  (104258) 32612888 123286
ER2UABNAEEY  Changes inrisk parameters, model
REEEN inputs and management overlay - 36,492 - (50,792) - 147834 - 1,464,002
kit Amounts written-off - - - - (2326531)  (2326537)  (2326537)  (2326537)
Hftg Other movement - - - - 180,464 48,859 180,464 48,859
20215120318 At 31 December 2021 386,172,908 1,180,529 9,877,360 174,967 2,612,337 1,091,333 398,662,605 2,446,829
—z-—55
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(@ FERBERE) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) TERBIEEEXE 2 (&) (vi)  Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
2020
1R FIRRB ER]ES &%
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RHEE BERE BEEE RHRE
FHglE BXERE  RERE BAEE  REGE  BREE  RERE  BXER
Gross carrying ECL Gross carrying ECL Gross carrying ECL Gross carrying ECL
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
BETT  B¥TT  A%tr  B%TR BT B%Tr B¥Tr E%Tr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
00%F1 818 At 1 January 2020 333,851,300 839983 12,025,091 1,749,793 2,368,525 1,198,790 348244916 3,788,566
£ Transfer.
-BAZIRR - Transfer to Stage | 7,861,124 30347 (7.859868) (31,09) (1,256) (1,256) - -
-EAFIRE - Transfer to Stage 2 (13556823 (155896) 14129235 BB (5R4D) (81,335) - -
-B AR - Transfer to Stage 3 (130433) (269 (5888687 (1528712 6019120 1528981 - -
BEEBEELZBSE  Netremeasurement of ECL
FERKEEEN allowances arising from transfer
TEFE between stage - (21872) - 371,116 - 448,163 - 797407
SREERE/ Net financial assets originated/
(BIEBRSER)/  (derecognised or repaid)/
DrERERFE changes in fair value 25792747 436687 (1910147)  (196633) (00058 (362488) 23182542 (12434)
EBRAUMENHE  Changes in risk parameters and
g model inputs - (484,891) - (23,964) - 2,331,144 - 1,822,289
k- Amounts written-off - - - - (348243 (BASLTA3)  (B48TH)  (3482THY)
HibE Other movement - - - - 251,075 61,822 251,075 61,822
2020F12831H At 31 December 2020 353,817,915 646,089 10,495,624 577,740 3,882,251 1,641,078 368,195,790 2,864,907
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

An assessment of whether the financial instruments have
experienced SICR since initial recognition is performed at each
reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
The assessment is rule-based, unbiased and forward-looking,
and considers all reasonable and supportable information,
including information about past events, current conditions and
future economic conditions.

The financial instruments will be considered to have significant
increase in credit risk when:

(@)  The contractual payments of the instruments are with
more than 30 days past due; or

(b)  The credit rating of the financial instrument has gone
down by 5 notches since initial recognition; or

(0 The financial instruments have been classified as special
mention.

Management overlay and judgements

The Group will consider the need to implement and apply
management overlay over the ECL modelled outcome to cater
for model constraints, data limitation and exceptional events.
The management overlay methodologies involve management
judgement and the amounts are subjected to regular robust
review and governance processes to assess the adequacy and
relevancy of such overlay.

As at 31 December 2021, management overlay was applied
on top of modelled ECL to cater for uncertainties arising from
the government policy risk in PRC commercial real estate
sector. In determining this overlay, the Group has identified the
vulnerable sector exposures which are not backed by collateral.
Additional ECL has been recognised to cater for the potential
change in internal rating based on the likelihood of credit
quality deterioration of the sector.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both
incorporate forward-looking information. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses for
financial assets.

These economic variables and their associated impact on
the PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert
judgement has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of
these economic variables (the 'base economic scenario’) are
provided by the Group's economists and include consideration
of a variety of actual and forecast information from internal
and external sources. The Group formulates a ‘base case’ view
of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well
as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios
including 1 upside and 3 downside forecast scenarios.

In particular, the base scenario represents the most likely
scenario of continuing the current economic situation; carrying
a weight of 55% (2020: 55%); the upside scenario, namely
benign, represents likelihood of improvements to the current
economic situation; carrying a weight of 10% (2020: 10%); and
the downside scenarios, namely, mild, medium and severe
represents the likelihood of economic downturn of different
20% and 5% (2020: 10%,
20% and 5%) respectively. The economic forecasts are reviewed

severities, carrying a weight of 10%,

regularly to reflect the latest economic conditions. The ECL
recognised in the financial statements reflect the probability
weighted outcomes of a range of possible scenarios above and
management continuously assess the appropriateness of the
provision made against the borrowers concerned taking these
information into consideration. If any adjustment in provision is
deemed necessary, management overlay(s) would be applied
to ensure conservativeness.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

The Base scenario

The Group's Base Scenario is characterised by a gradual growth
around the globe over the forecast period of 2022 — 2026. The
global economy is expected to continue with the recovery
in these five years, on the back of sustained improvement
in economic activities and trade, as well as a steady rise in
vaccination rates worldwide that effectively cope with the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Mainland China’s economy is projected to maintain strength
with largely stable GDP growth over the forecast period.
Domestic demand will continue to pick up and gather
momentum with fiscal and monetary policy support, while
external trade will sustain growth thanks to rising global
demand. Meanwhile, Mainland China’s unemployment rate
should remain largely stable.

Hong Kong's economy is expected to suffer a setback in
recovery in the near term, as a result of the resurgence of
the COVID-19 pandemic in the city. In the longer run, the
economy is anticipated to regain momentum and expand at
a solid pace when economic activities normalize, supported
by further improvement in global trade and a rebound in
domestic demand after the pandemic is under control. The
unemployment rate in Hong Kong fluctuates with pandemic
developments. The labor market may worsen when the
pandemic situation deteriorates but should improve rapidly
when COVID-19 is effectively dealt with.
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(@) EEERRERE (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEEIEEEXGZE (&) (vi)  Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
AR E BB AET E AT 28 B s 14 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
B (&) (continued)
ERER (A) The Base scenario (continued)
2022 FFE A Forecast for 2022
B FEIRH
Hong Kong Mainland China
BE/ BE/
it BRE it BRE®
Mild/ Mild/
B B Medium/ B %3 Medium/
2022F £2026 F 15 Average 2022 - 2026 Benign Base Severe™t  Benign Base Severefnote)
NEERERRE %) GDP growth rate (%) 35 3.1 0.0 55 5.1 2.2
AR (%) Inflation (%) 23 2.1 04 24 22 0.5
K ZEE (%) Unemployment (%) 3.1 32 4. 3.6 36 40
MEBRIEH Property price index 451 444 379
HEEXR Real exchange rate 126 125 119
61 A 2 458 2 (%) Settlement rate in 10 1.0 0.6
6 months (%)
1218 A 2 #8 % (%) Settlement rate in 12 1.1 08

12 months (%)

2021 A Forecast for 2021
BH HEIA
Hong Kong Mainland China
gz gE/
Rt BRE @ it BRE®
Mild/ Mild/
B B Medium/ Bt BE Medium/
2021 EE20255F Average 2021 - 2025 Benign Base Severete  Benign Base Severefnote)
KA EE AR (B I R 2 (%) GDP growth rate (%) 32 27 -18 6.5 6.3 40
BIR R (%) Inflation (%) 2.5 2.3 0.0 2.1 1.8 -0.3
KEER %) Unemployment (%) 4.6 4.7 6.2 3.6 36 4.2
E Ui Property price index 429 422 357
HEEX Real exchange rate 124 123 117
610 A 2 458 % (%) Settlement rate in 0.6 0.6 0.5
6 months (%)
1218 A 2 5 % (%) Settlement rate in 0.9 0.9 0.7
12 months (%)
7 RREEBEROMETHE - Note: Represent the weighted average of the three scenarios.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

The Benign Scenario

The Benign Scenario is a slight deviation from the Base
Scenario in the positive direction, with the global economy
expanding at a slightly faster-than-expected pace and other key
economic indicators displaying slightly better-than-expected
improvements.

The Mild Scenario

The Mild Scenario is a slight deviation from the Base Scenario
in the negative direction, with the global economy expanding
at a slightly slower-than-expected pace and other key
economic indicators displaying slightly worse-than-expected
improvements.

The Medium Scenario

The Medium Scenario is in between the Base Scenario and the
Severe Scenario, with the global GDP growth rate and other key
economic indicators standing at the medium points between
those of the two scenarios.

The Severe Scenario

Under the Severe scenario, the global economy suffers a
significant setback in recovery on the back of the worsening
COVID-19 pandemic with vaccines failing to contain new
Covid variants, a further delay of border re-opening due to
the widespread of Covid variants, an escalation of China-US
economic and trade conflicts leading to a sharp economic
downturn in the US and China, as well as intensified geopolitical
tensions. GDP growth is likely to drop substantially or turn
negative for most of the advanced economies, while economic
growth in Mainland China and Hong Kong will experience a
marked deceleration. Consequently, financial and commodity
markets experience sharp corrections with heightened
volatilities, while unemployment rates across countries increase
considerably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

Sensitivity analyses of expected credit loss calculation

As the probability assigned to each scenario and the
correspondence economic factor forecast is subject to
uncertainties, the Group has conducted sensitivity analyses
for the impacts of an expected credit loss if the probability is
slightly different from the expectation:

(i)  Comparing the difference of expected credit loss under
the Base Scenario against the probability weighted
outcomes of 5 scenarios at the year ended of 2021, the
expected credit loss under the base scenario would be
approximately 25% (HKS$273 million) lower than the
weighted outcomes of the 5 economic scenarios currently
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Byassuming 10% scenario weight shift from Base scenario
to upside or to the most severe downside scenario at the
year end of 2021, there would be a decrease in credit loss
by approximately HK$35 million or an increase in credit
loss by approximately HK$218 million, respectively.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial asset as in default when
contractual repayment of principal or payment of interest is
past due more than 90 days or fulfill certain assessment criteria
as defined in the Asset Quality Classification Policy.

Moreover, in assessing whether a borrower is in default, the
Group considers various indicators comprising: (i) qualitative —
such as in breach of financial covenant(s), deceased, insolvent
or in long-term forbearance; (i) quantitative — such as overdue
status and non-payment on another obligation of the same
issuer to the Group. These criteria have been applied to all
financial assets held by the Group and are consistent with the
definition of default used for internal credit risk management
purposes. The default definition has been applied consistently
to model the PD, EAD and LGD throughout the Group's
expected loss calculations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (continued)

A financial asset is no longer considered in default when all past
due amounts, including interest, have been recovered, and it is
determined that the principal and interest are fully collectible
in accordance with the original or revised contractual terms of
the financial assets with all criteria for the impaired classification
having been remedied.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset in whole or in part, when it
has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include:

(i) ceasing enforcement activity;

(i) where the Group's recovery method is enforcing collateral
and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full; and

(i) debtors in state of insolvency.

The ECL allowances changed from HKD2,864.9 million as of
31 December 2020 to HKD2,445.4 million as of 31 December
2021. It was mainly as a result of the Group writing off certain
loans that have no reasonable expectation of full recovery. The
Group will continue to objectively and timely assess the ECL
allowances according to HKFRS 9 to ensure its sufficiency.

Credit quality of financial assets

The Group manages and monitors its risks, and has an Asset
Quality Classification Policy and Impairment Assessment Policy in
place to govern this aspect. The Group has a professional team
dedicated to handling recovery of non-performing loans, which
include loan restructuring, taking legal action, repossession and
disposal of collateral, etc.
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(@) FERREE(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

Vi) EMEEMEEEZE (&) (vii)  Credit quality of financial assets (continued)
REEEERBEERSMIIREEA(E Distribution of financial instruments to which the impairment
B BHRELERN) BORRAERENS requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by credit quality and stage
BT E 5 o distribution.

2021
BE/ %548
Gross carrying/notional amount FHEE
2HE BXER BEFE
FE RE HEER Credit fag ECL  Netcarrying
Strong  Satisfactory Higher risk impaired Total  allowances amount
BETR BT BETR BETR BT BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERORRRBRINER Balances with banks and central banks
it 3= atamortised cost 28,596,381 - - - 2859881 (4667) 28592214
-E1k8 - Stage | 28,596,881 - - - | | 28,596,881 (4,667) | | 28592214
- EIRR - Stage 2 - - - - - - -
- E3RA - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
ERONFFRBZEEERE  Placements with and advances to banks
at amortised cost 20,133,368 931,158 - - 21,064,526 (5,886) 21,058,640
- BIRR -Stage 1 20,133,368 931,158 - - | | 21,064,526 (5,886) | | 21,058,640
-5k - Stage 2 - - - - - - -
- £3k8 - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
RPEFRBARAMER Loans and advances to customers and
REENA other accounts at amortised cost 158,939,851 78,986,110 10,742,987 2,599,090 251,268,038 (2,218,167) 249,049,871
- Z1B8 - Stage | 158,361,710 76,446,654 3,983,224 - | |238,791,588 (1,143,819) | |237,647,769
e - Stage 2 578,141 2,539,456 6,759,763 - 9,877,360 (174,967) 9,702,393
- E3BR - Stage 3 - - - 2,599,090 2,599,090 (899,381) 1,699,709
BHIARE Amortised cost investments 53,378 - - - 53,378 3) 53,375
- F1B& -Stage | 53,378 - - - 53,378 3) 53,375
- -Stage - - - - - - -
- E3a - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
BRAEMEABERAH (HEE)  Loan commitrments and financial quarantee
contracts (Note i) 76,460,490 40,324,381 438,805 - 117,223,676 (142,460) 117,081,216
- -Stage | 76,460,490 | | 40,324,381 414372 - | (117,199,243 (141,026) | (117,058,217
- EBR -Stage 2 - - 24,433 - 24,433 (1,434) 22,999
- B3R -Stage 3 - - - - - - -
ag Total 284,183,968 120,241,649 11,181,792 2,599,090 418,206,499 (2371,183) 415,835,316
DAABETAEBZERE  Financial assets at fair value through other
SRAE comprehensive income
- BBES () - Debt securities (Note i) 101,789,179 2,045,153 - 13,247 103,847,579 (218,106)
-F1EG - Stage 101,789,179 | | 2,045,153 - - | [103,834332 (26,155)
-5Ik8 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
- E3kA - Stage 3 - - - 13,247 13,247 (191,951)
g Total 101,789,179 2,045,153 - 13,247 103,847,579 (218,106)
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(@ FERBEREZ) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
Vi) EMEEMEEEZE (&) (vii)  Credit quality of financial assets (continued)
2020
B/ 450%
Gross carrying/notional amount REEE

BiE BRER FESE
&% WE aRAR Credit g ECL Netcanying
Strong Satisfactory Higherrisk impaired Total allowances amount

E¥Tn RWTn EETn EBTn AMTn E%Tn B%Tn
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000

AR RREEONER Balances with banks and central banks
e el atamortised cost 30574369 - - - 30574369 (651) 3257718
-l -Stage | 30574369 - - -] 32574369 ROST) | | 32571718
- FE8 - Stage 2 - - - - - - -
- 3R - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
ESTNERRBITREEKA  Placements with and advances to banks
atamortised cost 28,689,080 291,719 - - 18980799 (10969) 28969830
-l -Stage | 28,689,080 291719 - - 1| 28980799 (10969) | | 28969830
- BIRR - Stage 2 - - - - - - -
- E3A -Stage 3 - - - - - - -
EFETREFTNELEE Loans and advances to customers and
RERA other accounts at amortised cost 140150613 74635210 10477689 388251 229145763 (2692314 226453449
- 1R - Stage | 139467671 | [ 73922436 1377781 - | [ 214767888 (589.755) | [ 214178133
L -Stage 682,042 712774 9099908 - 10495,624 (577,740) 9917884
- E3A -Stage3 - - - 3882251 3882251 (1524819) 235743
B ARE Amortised cost investments 48494 - - - 48,494 (1) 18493
- Z1RBR -Stage 1 48494 - - - 4849 1) 48493
- )R - Stage 2 - - - - - - -
- E3ka - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
EFAENSTHERAD (M) Loan commitments and financial quarantee
contracts (Note | 102279249 1400 - - 102280649 (126654 102,1539%
-21kE - Stage | 102,259,344 1400 - - [ 102260744 (125762 | [ 102,134982
- K8 - Stage 2 19905 - - - 19905 (892) 19013
- £3E8 - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
] Total 03741805 74928319 10477689 388251 393030074 (2832589 390,197,485
AR BEFALBREREN  Financial assets at fair value through other
SREE comprehensive income
- EBES (i) - Debt securiies (Note i) 82,647,079 2193721 - - 84840800 (158972)
-E1kE - Stage | 82647079 2198370 - - [ 84820800 (7m)
S -E - Stage 2 - - - - - -
- £ - Stage’3 - - - - - (116,259)
a5 Total 82647079 2,193,721 - - 84,840,800 (158972)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vii)  Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

Note:

0]

(if)

The notional amount of commitments and financial guarantee
contracts refer to those commitments and financial guarantees
which subject to impairment requirements under HKFRS 9.
Therefore, figures disclosed in the above do not agree with
the figures disclosed in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Debt securities measured at FVOCI are held at fair value. The
expected credit losses allowances in respect of debt securities
measured at FVOCI are held within reserves.

iy EEHENH (i) Classification of credit quality
REBEFHA T ABRRFREE The Group adopts the following internal risk ratings to determine
THEENEELE - the credit quality for financial assets.
B R AR
FEEEEFHH Credit quality description Internal ratings
B2y Strong G01-G12
mE Satisfactory G13-G16
B E R Higher risk G17-G21
ERE Credit impaired G22-G24

U R BEGABm AL BB
AR M2 ER a IEFE 52 M EE
MIEEEE
EREREBESNEE E&ﬁ'm%
%4&%%£M7 BEAHEER

FIEE ﬁ$5ﬁ¢%hﬁﬂ
&%@ Mm@% m&ﬁ%ﬁl
&ﬁ? TR BEAF#T

&ﬁ%ﬂA¥&%¢EZT
¥@ PEEHZE o T%EWE%%
BEEEFNRE ZEEEEDT

(viii)
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(viii) - Credit quality of financial assets at debt securities measured at

FVPL and FVOCI

For the application of credit rating to debt securities, primarily
the issue specific rating would be taken as reference for credit
risk rating assignment. Where this is not available, the issuer
rating would be adopted. When the issuer rating is not available,
the rating of the guarantor of that debt securities (if applicable)
would be adopted, otherwise it would be treated as unrated.
The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality
of investments in debt securities at the end of the reporting
period.
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(@) EEERRERE (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
iii) AR EEGF A Bz ML 7 B1EET (viii) Credit quality of financial assets at debt securities measured at
AE M2 E W e BT E 52 A E FVPL and FVOCI (continued)

MIEEEE (&)

2021

R REERTA BRmARE

RAREETA Hitt2EME - ER®ES

BENEREE HEeMEE Debt securities

- E%ES - E¥RS measured at
Debt securities Debt securities amortised cost okl
measured at FVPL  measured at FVOCI investments Total
BETT BT T BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa 352,867 10,054,893 - 10,407,760
Aa3E Aal Aa3 to Aal 1,741,481 33,675,076 53,375 35,469,932
AIEA] A3to Al 630,214 52,966,046 - 53,596,260
EAA3 Lower than A3 314,545 6,989,889 - 7,304,434
3,039,107 103,685,904 53,375 106,778,386
KT Unrated 67,168 161,675 - 228,843
ek Total 3,106,275 103,847,579 53,375 107,007,229

2020

PR EERA BEMRTRE

PR EERA Hip2Ela - EBESH

BN EREE ReMEE Debt securities

- BEEES - EKESR measured at
Debt securities Debt securities amortised cost 1BEe
measured at FVPL  measured at FYOCI investments Total
BT BRI BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Aaa Aaa - 4615014 - 4,615,014
Aa3E Aal Aa3 to Aal 558,314 22,225,056 48,493 22,831,863
A3IEA A3 to Al 1,258,890 49291171 - 50,550,061
ERA3 Lower than A3 627,756 8,003,915 - 8,631,671
2,444,960 84,135,156 48,493 86,628,609
Fan it Unrated 204,116 705,644 - 909,760
FEkE] Total 2,649,076 84,840,800 48,493 87,538,369
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk of loss caused by an adverse change in valuation
associated with holding either long or short market positions. The risk
arises as a result of market making, underwriting, principal position
taking and asset/liability management in interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity, credit and commodity markets and their associated
derivatives instruments. The Group manages its market risk exposures
mainly through its trading and treasury business. The trading business
is to facilitate customer activities, but as a result, takes on principal
positions. The treasury business performs asset/liability management
function including liquidity risk management, with securities positions
intended for liquidity management and investment purposes under
non-trading portfolio (debt securities measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income).

The objective of market risk management is to consistently measure
and monitor market risk on a timely and unbiased basis in order to
better manage the portfolios and, by doing so, optimise financial
performance. The business is responsible for managing market risks
to meet corporate performance objectives within the market risk limit
parameters. The Risk Management Group ("‘RMG") is responsible to
independently monitor and report all market risks.

Market risk framework

The Board of the Group allocates capital or risk appetite through
the limit process. The Board delegates Credit & Risk Management
Committee ("CRMC") to establish limits for the different businesses.
CRMC further delegates market risk limit establishment to the Market
Risk Committee ("“MRC") and then to RMG. RMG is responsible for
designing and drafting the market risk limits and framework and
reviewing and updating the limits on a regular basis. The market
risk limits are to be approved by MRC and endorsed by CRMC. In
addition, the Board also establishes a set of risk indicators under the
risk appetite statement ("RAS") in measuring different types of risks
including market risk.

RMG is an independent function reporting to the Chief Risk Officer
("CRO"). RMG uses both quantitative and qualitative measures in
analysing market risk. The analysis includes, but not limited to,
Value-at-Risk (“VaR"), stress testing, risk sensitivities, market events,
product liquidity and volatility, underlying quality, hedging strategy,
performance including profit and loss, accuracy of valuations and
balance sheet and capital consumptions. The results are regularly
reported to senior management and CRO and to MRC and CRMC.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model

Value-at-risk ("VaR")

VaR is a technique in estimating the potential losses that could
occur on market risk-taking positions due to market rates and prices
movement under normal market conditions over a specified time
horizon. The model is designed to capture different types of risk
including interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk,
equity risk, commodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR model used by the Group is based on the historical
simulation technique. The technique predicts the value at risk by
simulating or constructing position returns over time arise from the
historical changes in rates and prices in the interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity, credit and commodity markets.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value-at-risk ("VaR") (continued)
For the calculation of VaR, the Group uses the most recent two years
of historical market rates, prices and volatilities.

- For the trading positions, the VaR is calculated for one-day

holding period.

021 FHEAREBE -5 AREERRE
Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR in 2021

2020F B EBIBY - R ARESRARE
Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR in 2020

§ s 5%
E - A
o 40 A 540 [N
T
0 ﬂuMA | | M h T I N
L Ly i 1| W
£, J — J || B I A
. mman AN . IR
10 10 b
0 . 0 .
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5 & 7 8 9 10 1 12
A3 Month B Month
— HURABEFAHMEEKZMNE —  For the FVOCI debt securities and related positions, VaR is
BEE - RBRE250KMEE BRET calculated for 250-day holding period.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value-at-risk ("VaR") (continued)

- The Group back-tests the accuracy of its VaR model by
comparing the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR figures. For the period from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021, there were no exceptions in the
back-testing results (for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020, there were 3 exceptions), which corresponds
to the green zone specified by the HKMA and the international
Basel principles.

2021 FEEAFEBERENERKEREER
The Group's actual profit and loss backtesting model in 2021
50
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2020 F BRI FEBERNERKEREE
The Group's actual profit and loss backtesting model in 2020
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37

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
Value-at-risk ("VaR") (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the average daily
mark-to-market revenue from the Group's trading portfolio was a
gain of HKS$1,016,000 (31 December 2020: a gain of HK$638,000).
The standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$6,309,000
(31 December 2020: HK$7,165,000). The graphs below show the
histograms of the Group’s daily mark-to-market revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

HE2021F12A31 AL FERTEAERAZERSHE

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2020F 12831 B L FERTEFERAZERSHE

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020

@
3

u
S

LR oNGEES RS
Profit and Loss Frequency

L NI ONEES RS
Profit and Loss Frequency 20 41

IS
3

N
S

35

32 g 32
30

34
31

H# Number of Days
8 8

I
11 II

H# Number of Days
&

N
S
E—
©

5

5
- o
N
: — o
-
—

5
III4 - 31 !
il 5 :

15
7
5 6 5
4 4
11 12 32 III I II321 1 1
- -n_Anll | | I - -

o

o

WA (B EET)

Revenue (HK$ million)

172 H{ER1T (B BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

34 30 26 22 18 <14 10 -6 2 2 6 10 14 18 22 26 30 34

WA B EET)

Revenue (HK$ million)




BTSSR R M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) WHEERERE(Z) (b) Market risk management (continued)
5 B S iR 2 i 7 2 b e (48 Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
[RRE (&) Value-at-risk ("VaR") (continued)
TRETTRZBFEMEAR R BERA The tables below decomposes VaR by risk factors for the trading
Hiv 2 AW R E EE5E 58 B positions and the debt securities measured at FVOCI related positions.

B2 RBEGAHT -

REERE 1 XERE
1-day VaR for the trading positions

2021 2020
Rzt izt
Approximate Approximate
& =4 ¥4 BE12A31H & &I T BENANE
Maximum  Minimum Mean At31December  Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BT B%Tn BT BT BETr  B%Tr BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SNER R Foreign exchange risk 24,259 389 7,616 4,648 31,032 1678 9,807 5,136
MEER R Interest rate risk and
EEHZER credit spread risk 42,114 13,790 23,546 16,684 29,563 8,513 18,165 27398
RRERA Total VaR 53,296 14,460 25,029 17,623 46,682 7,744 21,440 29,447
DAREEF ARG ARENEREERERSERNGR - 250RARE
250-day VaR for the debt securities measured at FVOCI related position
2021 2020
st Azt
Approximate Approximate
RS =4 ¥ BZE12A31A S &I T HENANA
Maximum  Minimum Mean At31December  Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT BETT BT BRI  RB¥TT  BETT  BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
il Interest rate risk 850,233 623,917 773,273 623,917 1,188,548 752,505 1,076,732 814,616
EENZERER Credit spread risk 1,624,035 1,247,136 1,396,850 1,588,459 1381528 780,097 1,161,481 1259418
WOREBRELE  Total 250-day VaR 1,624,750 1,063,496 1,254,916 1,544,104 1,324,028 641417 1,042,057 1,064,716
JE& TR Stress testing
R RIE B E iR E R E R ERE A Stress testing is implemented as a compliment of the VaR model in
7 BEWERNREEREAREEENSH - order to capture remote, but plausible events. The Group uses both
REERKERBRENE L FERETTS sensitivity-based and historical-based scenarios for market risk stress
BB A - AFRERFTREREERE - testing. The results are reported to senior management, MRC and
misEAREZEENEEREREREEZESE CRMC.
HER -
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
currency securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions are
subject to exposure limits approved by the MRC. Methods adopted
to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
options). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's average
daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
gain of HK$488,000 (2020: a loss of HKS$1,796,000) with a standard
deviation of HK$8,087,000 (2020: HK$13,750,000).

Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:

2021 2020

¢ AR¥E  EfhE® k] % ARE  EE% k]
HERBET T Equivalent in HK$'000 usD RMB Others Total UsD RMB Others Total
REAE Spot assets 176,637,317 20,952,451 24,632,189 222,221,957 164369879 22409162 26,200,137 212979,178
REEE Spot liabilities (130,209,088) (29,602,304) (13,310,556)  (173,121,948) (120232212)  (20069718)  (14058439)  (154360,369)
REHEA Forward purchases 483,048,048 321,823,265 87,983,255 892,854,568 362454488 194205562  71,795914 628,455,964
BHEL Forward sales (529,582,904) (310,297,654) (99,330,676)  (939,211,234) (402,141228) (199,504,087)  (83411,374)  (685,056,689)
HEETE Net options position 699,927  (706,129) 56,740 50,538 (3634671) 4018861 (359,109) 25,081
REFH Net long position 593,300 2,169,629 30,952 2,793,881 81625 1,059,780 167,129 2,043,165
ERETE Net structural position 734,574 48,541 783,115 - 714898 48542 763,440

HIRFRR RS E R ENRA LA
ERAE
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The net option position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
which has been approved by the HKMA.
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37

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

(i) At 31 December 2021, if the HKD had weakened by 10%
against other currencies (other than the USD) with all other
variables held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year
would have been higher by HK$183,749,000 (2020: higher by
HK$102,447,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains
on the translation of non-HKD denominated financial assets
compensated by foreign exchange losses on the translation of
non-HKD denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against other
currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year would have
been lower by HK$183,749,000 (2020: lower by HK$102,447,000).

(i) The Group is exposed to currency risks arising from financial
instruments that are denominated in USD, excluding structural
foreign exchange positions of RMB600,000,000 and MOP
50,000,000. As the USD is pegged to the HKD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arise from its banking and trading book.
For the banking book, ALCO and RMG are responsible in overseeing
the interest rate exposure arised from its assets and liabilities
management. The function of central treasury units is responsible
in managing the interest rate risk using different financial products
including interest rate derivatives, under which hedge accounting
treatment is adopted. The interest rate risk includes repricing risks,
basis risks, yield curve risks and embedded option risks, and are
governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for the Banking
Book.

For the trading book, MRC and RMG are responsible in overseeing
the interest rate exposure from its trading portfolio. Global Markets
is responsible in managing the interest rate risk using different
financial products including derivatives, under which mark-to-market
treatment is adopted. The interest rate risk includes basis risks, yield
curve risks and embedded option risks, and are governed by the
Market Risk Policy.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's average daily
trading profit and loss related to interest rate and fixed income
trading strategy was a gain of HK$528,000 (31 December 2020: a
gain of HK$2,443,000), with a standard deviation of HK$7,945,000 (31
December 2020: HK$14,618,000).

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis of the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. The sensitivity analysis on the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings and economic
value are assessed based on the HKMA SPM IR-1 defined multi-sets
of new interest rate scenario and interest rate volatility scenario
requirements and the most stressed scenarios are selected below.
Certain comparatives have been revised in order to align with the
latest books and records and banking returns submitted to HKMA.

2021 2020
BT AR EYH BT AR ET
HEREBET T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usb
HARKI2EAREF]  Impact on earnings over the next
T2 12 months (1,421,459) (203,714) (185,206) (1,262,625 (266,451)  (52,891)
HEEBENTE Impact on economic value (2,184,056) (297,126) (237,894) (1,822,627) (213,554)  (202,316)

ENRGURE RKIRE E M A ERF R E R
MR M EERREREERR - BB
AT THRIBIA TMRERETT -

() BANERELEREENSENE
ESIIES Uy EL IR

) REEAREEMBL -

Rl b3S A S BRSO RSB (R

ENER S B R REE ST R T
R -
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This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

() The analysis is based on the requirements under HKMA SPM
IR-1 defined multi-sets of interest rate scenario and interest rate
volatility scenario.

(i) There are no other changes to the portfolio.
Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic

value resulting from the change in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following tables summarise the Group's exposures to interest

rate risks for the interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of

the reporting period as referred to earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

2021
AR
(BFERY) 3@ANL 180 L
3 months Z1E B5F R
or less Over Over SERE Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) to1year to5years 5 years bearing
BETT BETIr  BETx B¥Tr  B¥Tx  B%Tn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EE Assets
BEREFTRPRFET  Cashand balances with banks and central
AT banks 28,828,450 28,592,214 - - - 236,236
TESRTNERRBR Placements with and advances to banks 21,058,640 21,058,640 - - - -
AR BE AR Financial assets at fair value through profit
SREE or loss 3,106,275 1,152,017 105,081 366,093 1,483,084 -
T2 IA Derivative financial instruments 8,888,842 - - - - 8,888,842
EEERRBZREMERIE Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 249,416,421 225,339,974 13,593,253 1,396,618 44,729 9,041,847
DAABERAEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
hEnerEE other comprehensive income 103,926,448 47,820,027 24,964,533 30,835,585 223,434 82,869
R ARE Amortised cost investments 53,375 53,375 - - - -
FtBEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,193,584 - - - - 2,193,584
EEAR Total assets 417,472,035 324,016,247 38,662,867 32,598,296 1,751,247 20,443,378
2 Liabilities
BITREMEBMERNTR Deposits and balances of banks and
&= other financial institutions 13,584,427 11,347,838 1,388,042 - - 848,547
BPER Deposits from customers 327,768,033 251,833,552 54,074,315 2,547,253 - 19,312,913
AR A BlER ABER Financial liabilities at fair value through
*RAR profit or loss 768,006 6,162 20,211 212,162 529,471 -
fTHEeBMITA Derivative financial instruments 8,766,335 - - - - 8,766,335
BETEHE Certificates of deposit issued 1,481,389 389,839 - 1,091,550 - -
BHER Loan capital 3,883,863 - - 3,883,863 - -
E{ﬂl‘éﬁ Other liabilities 10,718,536 2,476,780 213,046 286,625 18,034 7,724,051
FitEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 714,870 - - - - 714,870
BEEE Total liabilities 367,685,459 266,054,171 55,695,614 8,021,453 547,505 37,366,716
FEGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 57,962,076 (17,032,747) 24,576,843 1,203,742
—B=—FH
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) TIEZEERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
FIE =z (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
2020
3{EAR
(RE@E) 3EANLE 1FNME
3 months 2 S FE R
or less Over Over SELLE Non-
% (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) tolyear  to5years 5 years bearing

ABTT  A%TT  BRTt ARt ABTT  B%T
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

EE Assets
Be RIEFTRAPRET  Cash and balances with banks and

ioFT e central banks 32783916 32,571,718 - - - 212,198
ESRTNER BT Placements with and advances to banks 28,969,830 28,969,330 - - - -
AR BES AR Financial assets at fair value through profit

SREE or loss 2,649,076 13,145 312,044 877,964 998,551 447372
THEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 14,378,601 - - - - 14378601
EPEFRETLEMIEE  Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 226,789,958 206014661 9,586,948 509,811 18099 10,660,439

WAABEGAEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through other

hEmerEE comprehensive income 84950868 37716914 17023195 29,843,774 252917 114,068
Byl ARE Amortised cost investments 48493 48493 - - - -
FitEEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,327,946 - - - - 2,327,946
BEAE Total assets 392898688 305334761 26922187 31231549 1269567 28,140,624
af Liabilities
BOIREML S BEEN Deposits and balances of banks and

BRRER other financial institutions 5326408  4382,785 705,323 238,300 - -
BPEX Deposits from customers 309877,016 267,897,342 26,371,061 797,045 - 14811568
AR EER ABZEN Financial liabilities at fair value through

SHARE profit or loss 290,185 - - 111,597 178588 -
THEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 15,160,283 - - - - 15,160,283
BRITENE Loan capital 3,855,374 - - 3855374 - -
BEBES Other liabilities 10078174 2,281,192 - - - 7796982
BREEAR Non-interest bearing liabilities 743454 - - - - 743454
BfE4E Total liabilities 345330894 274561319 27076384 5002316 178588 38512,287
FRGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 30,773,442 (154197) 26,229,233 1,090,979
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

()

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises from
the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages. Market liquidity risk is a risk that occurs when additional
costs are involved in disposing of a position in the market under
abnormal or stressed market conditions. Under these conditions, the
bid-ask spreads for the position are much wider than usual or there
could even be an extreme lack of buyers. As a result, the Bank will
incur extra costs to dispose of the position.

The liquidity risk management framework is as follows:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, concurred by the Asset and
Liability Committee ("ALCO") and the CRMC, and approved by
the Board of Directors.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group's liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO is established by the Chief Executive Officer and
ratified by the CRMC as the governing body responsible for
formulating and implementing policies, strategies, guidelines
and limit structures. It also identifies, measures and monitors
the Group's liquidity risk profile to ensure current and future
funding requirements are met. In addition, the ALCO monitors
a set of risk indicators for liquidity risk. Daily liquidity stress
testing, which includes market general, bank-specific and
combined (market general and bank-specific) stress scenarios,
is conducted by the Risk Management Group, and the stress
results are regularly reviewed by the ALCO to assess the current
risk tolerance level and the level of the liquidity cushion. A
Contingency Funding Plan is established which sets out the
strategies for addressing liquidity stress situations. The plan
contains a set of policies, procedures and action plans, with
clearly established lines of responsibility, as well as invocation
and escalation procedures. This plan is reviewed and approved
by the ALCO on a regular basis.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

()

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central
Treasury Unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is
supported by other functional departments including the
Financial Management Group and Risk Management Group,
which monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports
to the management, committees and local regulatory bodies.
Limits for net cash flow per different time bucket under stress
scenarios have been set to ensure that adequate funding and
liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover,
limits, triggers or alerts are set for other liquidity risk indicators
such as the statutory liquidity ratios, the loan-to-deposit ratio,
the currency mismatch ratio and the maturity mismatch ratio.
Both quantitative and qualitative measures are employed to
identify and measure market liquidity risk. Limits and alert levels
related to market and funding liquidity risk are monitored
and reported by the Financial Management Group or Risk
Management Group to the ALCO to review and approve on a
regular basis. The Audit Department performs periodic reviews
to ensure liquidity risk management functions are carried out
effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements, taking
into account their different liquidity risk characteristics. The liquidity
situation of overseas branches and subsidiaries falls under the
overall supervision of the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of
the funding support extended from the head office. The Group
expects all business units to contribute to the success of managing
liquidity under normal and contingency situations by maintaining a
rapport with depositors, customers, interbank counterparties, related
companies and the HKMA.
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37

()

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with the statutory liquidity requirements. To achieve
this, the following liquidity management processes are in place:

Projecting cash flows in normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement;

Factoring potential drawdown on irrevocable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk;

Monitoring the statutory liquidity ratios, the loan-to-deposit
ratio, the currency mismatch ratio and the maturity mismatch
ratio against internal and/or regulatory requirements;

Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure and the stability of the
deposit portfolio;

Projecting the statutory liquidity ratios regularly for the short to
medium term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and to
ensure the ratios are within statutory requirements and internal
triggers;

Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix;

Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product;

Maintaining High Quality Liquid Assets (“HQLA") comprising
cash and investment grade securities as a cushion against
unexpected funding needs. The amount of HQLA that the
Group maintains is determined with reference to the statutory
requirement and the results of the liquidity stress tests;

Maintaining access to the interbank money market;

Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis;
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()

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Monitoring the Group's collateral requirement. Periodically
assess and review the additional collateral required under
derivative contracts and credit downgrade events. Based on
the positions at 31 December 2021, in the event of a 2-notch
downgrade, the impact on the Group's additional collateral
requirement is minimal; and

- Maintaining a Contingency Funding Plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning indicators (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,
primarily from the retail and corporate customer deposits. At the same
time, it also participates in the wholesale funding market through the
issuance of certificates of deposit ("CDs") to secure another source of
term funding and to enable diversification of funding sources. Deposit
tenor mix and debt maturities are regularly monitored to ensure there
is an appropriate funding maturity mix.

Under the Banking (Liquidity) Rules, the Group being a Category 1
institution is required to maintain a Liquidity Coverage Ratio (‘LCR")
and Net Stable Funding Ratio (“NSFR") above the statutory minimum
requirements.

An appropriate level and currency mix of HOLA has been maintained
to ensure that the Group could handle sudden drains in market
liquidity due to adverse or unexpected economic events under the
HKMA's regulatory framework. Besides, the Group also monitors
and reports the LCR for each individual significant currency to ALCO
regularly to control the currency mismatch in the LCR. The changes
in average LCR in the second half of 2021 was mainly driven by the
changes in the cash outflow pressure and the size of HQLA holdings.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

INEESEE (FHE)
Weighted amount (average value)

20214 20214 20214 20215 20204
12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3A31H 12A31H
t2EE t2ZE 2 FEE T2 HEE E2=E

For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter

ended ended ended ended ended

31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March 31 December

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020

TERBUEBEL =R Average LCR 239% 280% 249% 225% 217%

AEERERERERENRBES MEE
SERTAREZENE
T RBUBELXRTEENEERBDE
EMRZHAREGRT OREM) RADE
B REE - TREJIRDUEBELXIE

MBEEIERY

REASEEREREEEMMAMN °

The Group always maintains sufficient cash and liquid positions as
well as a pool of HQLA as a liquidity cushion that can be liquidated in
stress scenarios. The majority of HQLA included in the LCR is Level 1
assets as defined in Banking (Liquidity) Rules. The below table shows
the composition of the Group's HQLA in the LCR framework:

InRESEE (FHE)

Weighted amount (average value)
20215 20215 20215 20215 20204
12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3A31H 12A31H
LE2ZEE EZ=EE b2 FE L2 =EE 2 =EE
For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March 31 December
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
BE¥T T BET T BT T BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—REE Level 1 assets 53,501,344 54,017,812 51,238,524 41,380,964 42,607,213
—REE Level 2 assets 13,977,535 12,626,988 13,300,794 11,251,335 10,836,099
#zE Total 67,478,879 66,644,800 64,539,318 52,632,299 53,443,312
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEARERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

ANEERR#EEHN ANEBEES UL The Group also maintains sufficient available stable funding in support
HEREENREREESFHELTEFTE of its longer-term assets to meet the statutory NSFR requirements. The
ke 2021 F T HFREE @ FFALLEAIE M increase in the NSFR in the second half of 2021 was mainly driven by
FEZEENEPFRIEIN - EHHEEPER the increases in the customer deposits, partly offset by the increases
EAAETEE - AEBWEBREBECRITE (R in the customer loans. There is no interdependent asset and liability as

) RADTEAERERENEEREE - defined in the Banking (Liquidity) Rules in the Group.
20214 20214 20214 20214 20204
12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3A31H 12A31H
LtZZEE tZZEE tZEE E2EE EZEE
Quarter ended  Quarter ended Quarterended Quarterended  Quarter ended
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March 31 December
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
BEEESFHELLE NSFR 125% 125% 122% 128% 128%
BIFCIRITE (BER) HE) - AEEHRA: For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
EREENEERZEERBEEEELREE information relating to the Group's liquidity are published by using
MEESHER - WA FEARTTRIAELE www. standard disclosure templates as specified by the HKMA and they
cncbinternational.com A [ B5E #E 5% | E019 i can be viewed in the Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's

78R - corporate website at www.cncbinternational.com.
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEARERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

() WRIEER T HIRIEL B ERE BT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
LTEBHASTEAEERESLDNT The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period
HRMS TR A% - at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual

maturity date.
MRS A EEME s/t EET As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or
HE  MEBFLTFREIAIEFER A 1RE deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,
WERTEE - Bt - 455 El Nid the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected
TREBANEESRRBESRENBE - dates of future cash flows.
2021
1MHANE  3ERUL 1500
£3f8R EE E5E
3 months 1year 5years
IBEE  1BRR or less o less orless  SEME s
@5 Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over RE®
Total  ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1 year Syears Undated™etl
BETT  AETn  AETn  BA%Tr  B%Tn  B%Tr  B%Tr B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERAERTRPRFET  Cashand balances with banks and
ipeyEd central banks 28,828,450 28,230,917 - - - - - 597,533
ERTNETREH Placements with and advances to banks 21,058,640 - 19846311 1212329 - - - -
IARBEABED  Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss 3,106,275 - 1,100,544 51,473 104,929 340,160 1,509,169 -
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments 8,888,842 - 1,366,350 1205499 2,364,082 3,334,211 618,700 -
ZEEZRBZREM  Loansand advances to customers and
FIE other accounts 249,416,421 1,447,871 22,476,793 18,772,956 77,665,066 91,467,331 30,523,052 7,063,352
WARBEFAZMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
WEHEREE other comprehensive income 103,926,448 - 17,797,235 18,734,389 30,742,205 36,346,316 227,434 78,869
BN ARE Amortised cost investments 53375 - 4,854 48,521 - - - -
MERRE Property and equipment 925,816 - - - - - - 925816
FREEE Right-of-use assets 559,103 - - - - - - 559,103
BYEE Intangible assets 539,779 - - - - - - 539,779
BRERBEE Deferred tax assets 168,386 - - - - - - 168,886
EEAE Total assets 417,472,035 29,678,788 62,592,087 40,025,167 110,876,282 131,488,018 32,878,355 9,933,338
af Liabilities
FOREMSEEESN  Deposits and balances of banks and
FERER other financial institutions 13,584,427 911,672 7,243,647 4,041,133 1,387,975 - - -
EPRH Deposits from customers 327,768,033 127,211,837 58,171,911 85762717 54074315 2,547,253 - -
IAAEBEFABES  Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHER profit orloss 768,006 - 6,162 - 20,211 212,162 529471 -
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 8,766,335 - 1570410  1,225317 2,196,188 3,044,581 729,839 -
BENERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,481,389 - 389,839 - 1,091,550 - - -
RERE Current taxation 120,708 - - - 120708 - - -
EnERE Other liabilities 10718536 402,965 3,627,835 2,533,088 994564 801,218 - 2,358,866
XEEEL Lease liabilties 592,621 - 25171 49745 213046 286,625 18,034 -
ERER Loan capital 3,883,863 - - - - 3,883,863 - -
EREHERR Deferred tax liabilities 1,541 - - - - - - 1,541
BEAE Total liabilities 367,685,459 128,526,474 71,034975 93,612,000 60,098,557 10,775,702 1,277,344 2,360,407
BE-BEER Asset-liability gap (98,847,686) (8,442,888) (53,586,833) 50,777,725 120,712,316 31,601,011
e
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEARERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RER THEELEEEREBESW () Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
(%) (continued)
2021

MEANE 3ERME  1EBE
Z3fiA E B5E

3 months 1year 5years
PEEE  1EAR or less or less orless  SEMLE i
B%  Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over A
Total  on demand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year Syears  Undated

ERTR  BMTR  R®Tn  E®Tn  EBTn ERTR BMTR B%Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

E: Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
—BHANRRBEFA - included in financial assets at fair value

A2 ENER through other comprehensive

TRHEE income 4,490,521 - 202641 1702641 2,168,781 416,458 - -
ERES Debt securities held
—~BHAURABEFA - included in financial assets at fair value

RENEREE through profit or loss 2,006,507 - 776 51473 104929 340,160 1,509,169 -
~BEAUAREBEIA - included in financial assets at fair value

A2 ENER through other comprehensive

THEE income 60,169,857 - 1505914 2892616 19614034 35929859 227434 -

62,176,364

1,506,690 2,944,089 19,718,963 36,270,019 1,736,603 -
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEARERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RER THREELEEEREBESWN () Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
(%) (continued)
2020
MEANE  EANME  1EME
E3(HR EYE ¥
3 months 1 year 5 years
ABEE  1EAR  orlessbut or less orless  SEBAE e
B Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over =1
Total  ondemand 1 month Imonth 3 months 1 year Syears  Undated®oe!
BRI B%Tr A%t A% AT E%Tr  BETr A¥Tn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKY000  HKS000
EE Assets
BERAERTRPRBET  Cashand balances with banks and
HER central banks 30783916 32178918 - - - - - 604998
ERTNETREH Placements with and advances to banks 28,969,830 - 8466136 503694 - - - -
WAABEFIABRES  Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 2649076 - 13145 20090 39204 1093636 1129963 -
fESBIA Derivative financial instruments 14378601 - 3018141 2772946 452545 3338373 723685 -
REETREBIR Loans and advances to customers and
Rt other accounts 206789958 1171785 24798400 17970865 70376044 77763961 25876401 8832502
WAABEHAEMZE  Financial assets at fair value through
YamnsniE other comprehensive income 84,950,868 - 7858746 16214941 22557650 37,952,546 256917 110068
B ARE Amortised cost investrents 48493 - - 48493 - - - -
ERFE Tax recoverable 55,449 - - - 55,449 - - -
NERZE Property and equipment 766,636 - - - - - - 766636
fPRELE Right-of-use assets 696,653 - - - - - - 696653
BREE Intangible assets 635,101 - - - - - - 63101
BREHEEE Deferred tax assets 174107 - - - - - - 174107
EENE Total assets 392808688 33350703 64154568 37531229 97906641 120148516 27986966 11,820,065
af Liabilities
POREBEBERES  Deposits and balances of banks and
BRR&ER other financial institutions 5306408 847661 1491891 2043233 7053% 238299 - -
XPEH Deposits from customers 309877016 100613550 78002580 103879111 26577924 803851 - -
IAAEBESABRE  Financial liabilities at fair value through
cRER profit or loss 290,185 - - - - 1,119 179,066 -
TEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 15,160,283 S 3T 20METT 4618205 3016940 901,246 -
i Current taxation 19,656 - - - 19,656 - - -
2B Other liabilites 10078174 406513 1976112 2315199 240554 - - 513979
HERRE Lease liabilites 722,89 - 21290 4872 223 438188 16321 -
BEAR Loan capital 3,855,374 - - - - 3855374 - -
BERERR Deferred tax liabilities 904 - - - - - - 904
BfEEE Total liabilities 345330894 101867724 85204094 111194086 32363886 8463771 1096633 5140700
EE-BfREE Asset-liability gap (68517,021)  (21,049526)  (73662857) 65542755 111684745 26890333
B
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37 2RIAKRERE(Z) 37 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEARERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RER THEELEEEREBESW () Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
(%) (continued)
2020

EAME  3EAME  1EME
23{HA E3k:3 B5E

3 months 1 year 5 years
AEEE  1EAA orlessbut orless orless  SERLE B
B Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over B
Total  ondemand 1 month Imonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Undated

AT ARTT A%t R¥Tn  R%Tn EMTr ERTr AR
HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

LGE Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
— B AARABEFA  -included in financial assets at fair value

A2 ENER through other comprehensive

TRHEE income 5,179,894 - 8080 1555254 3062850 313710 - -
ERES Debt securities held
-~ B AURABEFA - included in financial assets at fair value

RENEREE through profit or loss 2,351,288 - 13,144 20290 94255 1093636 1129963 -
- B ANARABESFA  -included in financial assets at fair value

2NN through other comprehensive

THEE income 56,157,194 - T483T11 2390078 14388252 37638836 256917 -

58,508,482 - 1496,255 2410368 14482507 38732472 1,386,880 -
T [ RPERRBREEMRE PG “Undated” assets included in “loans and advances to customers and
(BRI EEREE OB RE other accounts” were overdue and credit-impaired loans.

EERRENTEPERREK -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial

liabilities

The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted

cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities on the basis of

their earliest possible contractual maturity. The contractual

undiscounted cashflows for derivative financial instruments

only included interest rates derivatives with interest payments

computed using contractual rates.

2021
MEARLE  3EAME TERE
Z3f8A B B5%
3 months 1 year 5years
BeFEAE BEER AR orlessbut or less or less SENE
Gross Repayable Within over but over but over Over
cashflows  ondemand 1 month 1 month 3 months 1year 5years
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BINGERRER Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions 13,643,083 911,672 7,260,531 4,069,804 1,401,076 - -
EFREH Deposits from customers 328,576,670 127,211,841 58281571  85947,622 54,447,041 2,688,595 -
IAABEEABE  Financial liabilities at fair value
MemasE through profit or loss 936,343 - 8,206 6,879 37,906 286,069 597,283
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 7,236,502 - 188,866 443,237 1,810,721 4,085,941 707,737
BREIRHE Certificates of deposit issued 1,485,713 - 390,128 - 1,095,585 - -
EBER Loan capital 4,349,143 - - 90,150 90,150 4,168,843 -
356,227,454 128,123,513 66,129,302 90,557,692 58,882,479 11,229,448 1,305,020
2020
MEAKE  3fEAME 1ERE
Z3(8A R 25
3 months 1 year 5 years
Renses B (ER MEAR  orlessbut or less or less SENE
Gross Repayable Within over but over but over Over
cashflows  ondemand 1 month 1 month 3 months 1year 5 years
EETT EETT BETT BETT EETFT BETFT EETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ROTMERRER Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions 5401433 847,001 1,491,987 2,056,588 748778 256,419 -
EPREH Deposits from customers 310619467 100613550 78136565 104,167,003 26814388 887,961 -
AR EETABR  Financial liabilities at fair value
MeRaE through profit or loss 348,935 - 479 1961 10650 140,686 195,159
ITESBTA Derivative financial instruments 6,668,940 - 313,829 513,979 1877131 3,409,719 554,282
EBER Loan capital 4,503,601 - - 89,636 89,636 4324329 -
327,542,376 101,461,211 79,942,860 106,829,167 29,540,583 9,019,114 749,441
—E--FR
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37

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business; and

- tosafeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group as
a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated by its
local banking supervisor. The HKMA requires that the Group maintains
three prescribed minimum risk-weighted capital ratios: Common
Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and total capital
ratio. In accordance with the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules
2014 which came into effect on 1 January 2015, the Basel Il capital
buffers, namely capital conservation buffer (“CCB") which is designed
to ensure that banks build up capital outside periods of stress of 2.5%
of risk-weighted amounts and countercyclical capital buffer (“CCyB")
which is set on an individual country basis and is built up during
periods of excessive credit growth, came into operation. Both have
been fully implemented on 1 January 2019. On 16 March 2020, the
HKMA reduced the CCyB ratio for Hong Kong to 1.0% of risk-weighted
amounts. Basel Il framework also introduced a leverage ratio as
a non-risk-based backstop limit, to supplement risk-based capital
requirements. On 1 January 2018, the Banking (Capital) (Amendment)
Rules 2017 came into operation and prescribed the statutory
minimum leverage ratio of 3%.

The Group adopts the standardised approach of calculating market
risk in its trading portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. Banking operations
are categorised as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted
amounts are determined according to specified requirements
that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and
off-balance sheet exposures.
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37

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to comply with the risk-based
supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated by the HKMA,
the Group conducts the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process, which assesses the capital requirement for Pillar 2 risks and
hence the capital requirement for Pillar 1 and 2 is derived. Moreover,
as part of the capital management policy and to ensure capital
adequacy, the Group conducts capital planning annually, which takes
into account the strategic focus, future business growth, risk appetite
and regulatory requirement. The plan covers the issuance of capital
instruments, if required, to ensure the Group's capital ratios are well
above their respective internal monitoring levels and regulatory
requirement. Regular stress testing is performed to ensure that the
impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the risk profile and
capital position is considered. Stress testing also gives an insight into
the potential impact of significant adverse events and how these
could be mitigated.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio. There have been
no material changes in the Group's policy on the management of
capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2021 were computed on
the consolidated basis of the Group and some subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, and the Group's
capital ratios are well above the minimum required ratios set by the
HKMA.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

(f)

New Product Risk Governance

Definition of New Product Risk

New Product Risk comprise the risks associated with launch of new
products and services (including changes to existing products
and services), encompassing credit, market, interest rate, liquidity,
operational, reputation, strategic, legal and compliance risks.

Governance Framework

The Group has established an enhanced product governance
framework to instill more stringent and comprehensive assessment
and approval processes prior to launch. The framework is governed by
the New Product Approval Policy, which is approved by the Board and
under the oversight of the New Product Committee (“NPC") and the
CRMC. The effective implementation of the controls and monitoring
measures is driven by the dedicated New Product Governance team
under the Risk Management Group, with the support from other
risk management functions and subject matter experts on specific
risk areas, including the Controls & Compliance Group, Financial
Management Group, Operations Management Group, Information
Technology Group and CEO Office.

Operational risk management

Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

Governance framework

The Group has established an Operational Risk Governance Framework
("ORGF") to identify, assess, mitigate, control, monitor and report
operational risk. The ORGF encompasses every member within the
Group and is governed by policies and guidelines which define the
minimum requirements to ensure a consistent approach to manage
operational risks. The Operational Risk Management Committee
("ORMC") is established by the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and
ratified by the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC"),
which is a Board delegated Committee to oversee Operational Risk
Management ("ORM") and relevant matters. Implementation of ORM
plans and tools is driven by a Group-level ORM department with the
support from other key participants and subject matter experts in
ORM.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(f)

Operational risk management (continued)

Management of operational risk

To ensure effective management of operational risk across the Group,
the Governance Structure presents three lines of defense as depicted
below:

First Line of Defence — Day-to-day operational risk management lies
with our business units, support units and the Business Operational
Risk Officer ("BORQ") of each unit assists the respective unit heads in
this regard. Business and support units are responsible for identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring operational risks.

Second Line of Defence — ORM department assists management
in meeting their responsibility of understanding and managing
operational risk and ensures the development and consistent
application of operational risk policies, processes and procedures
throughout the Group. The ORM department works closely with the
first Line of Defence (1LOD) to strengthen the Group's operational risk
management by offering guidance and functional oversight support,
monitors the Group's overall operational risk exposures and ensures
that all material risks are promptly and appropriately escalated to
the ORMC, CRMC and senior management of the Group for their
attention.

Third Line of Defence — The Internal Audit Group examines and
evaluates the adequacy and control effectiveness of the ORGF on an

ongoing basis.

Risk assessments are conducted on all outsourced activities, new
products and large projects.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(f)

Operational risk management (continued)

Key tools and methodologies

The Group identifies, assesses, monitors and reports on operational
risk through the ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk & Control Self-Assessment (‘RCSA”) is a tool to
identify and assess the level of operational risk and effectiveness
of control. RCSA has been rolled out across the business and
support units under the guidance of the ORM department. RCSA
leaders are nominated by the management of each business
and support unit to conduct self-assessments and identify key
risk factors in their daily business and support functions. Each
key risk factor is assessed and quantified for financial impact,
in terms of the estimated loss impact of each occurrence and
estimated number of occurrences. In addition to the financial
impact assessment, non-financial impacts including customer,
regulatory and reputation impacts are also assessed taking
into considerations of both likelihood of risk materializing and
severity of impact.

- Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs") are statistical metrics that take various
risk factors into consideration and serve to provide early warning
signals for management’'s monitoring and action. Through
regular monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential operational
control weaknesses can be identified at an early stage and
addressed promptly. KRIs are developed at two levels, namely
the group and the unit level. Unit level KRIs are developed by
the respective units, and are monitored and tracked for progress
towards completion of applicable mitigation plans. Thresholds
are established for each business unit and support unit with
reference to the risk appetite of the Group or the acceptable risk
level for the unit under each risk factor.
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37

(f)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

Key tools and methodologies (continued)

- Operational risk incidents are reported into a centralized
operational loss database. The ORM department ensures all
material operational risk incidents are registered in the database,
and are properly investigated, with corrective and preventive
actions promptly executed according to agreed timelines. The
loss data serves as a centralized database to produce regular
reports for senior management, ORMC and CRMC review
on the impact of significant incidents and monitoring of the
operational risk loss trends. An escalation protocol is in place
to ensure that operational risk incidents with significant impact
are properly reported to the regulatory authorities, if deemed
necessary. Lower impact operational risk events are also
collected to assist trend analysis and provide a more forward
looking perspective of potential risk issues that warrant for
closer attention.

- Operational Risk Dashboard ("“ORD") provides management
with an overview of the key operational risk issues including
but not limited to the progress of the RCSA reviews and KRl
evaluation results. This information is submitted to the ORMC
and relevant summarized information is submitted to the
CRMC quarterly as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update
Report. The Group-wide Risk Status Update Report captures
the implementation status of ORM initiatives, contains analyses
on the trend of operational losses, highlights operational risk
incidents that have a material impact on the Group.

The Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational
risk governance framework to align with industrial developments
and best practices. A web-based learning programme on operational
risks is required for all new joiners and an annual refresher training on
ORGF is compulsory for all staff. Training workshops led by the ORM
team department are offered to business and support units with the
objectives to raise operational risk awareness among staff, familiarize
them with the ORM tools and enhance understanding of the ORGF
along with their roles, responsibilities and accountabilities. This is
further reinforced by strong management support which encourages
staff to embrace and pursue operational excellence.

The Group's long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible

and accountable culture on ORM, and achieve operational excellence
through robust and continuous operational risk management.
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(9)

(h)

Financial risk management (continued)

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, enhance its systems and processes, and
implement changes as necessary to meet the demands and create
awareness of such requirements. Regular reviews are conducted with
respect to the Group's policies and procedures to ensure the same
reflect the latest legal and regulatory requirements. Issuance of new or
substantially revised policies and procedures are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure
legal and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated.
Any significant matters that arise relating to such risks are reported
as appropriate by the Legal and Compliance function to the Group's
CRMC or senior management.

The Legal and Compliance Department has been one of the key
partners in the business, providing legal and compliance advice and
support to all parts of the Group and working with business and
support units to ensure relevant controls are in place. In 2021, the
Legal and Compliance Department had actively involved in new
product launches and new business initiatives, strategically important
transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing arrangements
as well as day-to-day matters arising from the Group's business. The
Legal and Compliance Department will remain heavily involved
in monitoring and ensuring compliance with changing regulatory
requirements in various areas impacting the Group, and will continue
to advise and support the Group in meeting the legal and regulatory
challenges that lay ahead.

Strategic and reputation risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputation risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity and
information about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.
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(h)

(i)

Financial risk management (continued)

Strategic and reputation risk management (continued)

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee the
Group's strategic and reputation risks. Senior management places
high priority on ensuring that the Group's business and operational
strategies are appropriately defined and are executed professionally
and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly to enable
the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating and
regulatory environment. Business priorities, set on a bank-wide basis,
as well as for individual business and functional units, are aligned to
support the Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned
to ensure execution excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the
Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This includes
ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of customer
satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory compliance,
public communication and issues management.

IBOR reform

Following the decision by global regulators to phase out IBORs and
replace them with alternative benchmark rates, the Group has set up
a project committee to manage the transition for all of its contracts
that could be affected. The project is led by senior representatives
from functions across the Group including the client facing teams,
Legal, Finance, Operations and Technology. During 2021, the Group
has successfully completed the transition of a significant portion of
its IBOR exposure to RFRs and has in place detailed plans, processes
and procedures to support the transition of the remainder. Following
the progress made during 2021, the Group is confident that it has
the operational capability to process the remaining transitions to the
RFRs for those interest rate benchmarks such as USD LIBOR that will
cease to be available after 30 June 2023. For other benchmark interest
rates such as EURIBOR that have been reformed and can therefore
continue, financial instruments referencing those rates will not need
to have a transition.
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0]

Financial risk management (continued)

IBOR reform (continued)

IBOR reform exposes the Group to various risks, which the project
committee is managing and monitoring closely and will implement
specific mitigating controls when required. These risks include but are
not limited to the following:

- Conduct risk arising from communications with clients and
market counterparties due to the amendments required to
existing contracts necessary to effect IBOR reform.

- Financial risk to the Group that markets are disrupted due to
IBOR reform giving rise to financial losses.

- Pricing risk from the potential lack of market information
if liquidity in IBORs reduces and RFRs are illiquid and
unobservable.

- Operational risk arising from changes to the Group's IT systems
and processes, also the risk of payments being disrupted when
an IBOR ceases to be available.

- Accounting risk arising from the unexpected volatility in
income statement due to the failure of the Group's hedging
relationships when the financial instruments transition from
IBORs to RFRs.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2, the amendments, address
issues affecting financial statements when changes are made to
contractual cash flows. Under these amendments, changes made to a
financial instrument measured at other than fair value through profit
or loss that are economically equivalent and required by interest rate
benchmark reform, do not result in the derecognition or a change in
the carrying amount of the financial instrument. Instead they require
the effective interest rate to be updated to reflect the change in the
interest rate benchmark.
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(i) IBOR reform (continued)
The table below shows the Group’s exposures at the year ended 31

December 2021 to significant IBORs subject to reform that have yet

to transition to RFRs. These exposures will remain outstanding until

the IBOR ceases and will therefore transition in future, i.e. it excludes

exposures to IBOR that will expire before transition is required.

2021128310
At 31 December 2021

FiTESR FiTEER

EEREE BEREE
Non-derivative Non-derivative fTETAZHEHE EXNREEREH
financial assets  financial liabilities Derivatives  Loan commitment

Notional amount

Notional amount

Nominal amount

Nominal amount

BET R BETR BETR BETR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ELRBEFTRERE USD Libor (a) 41,188,022 - 117,666,150 4,227,715
HERIBTRERS GBP Libor 116,369 - - 304,533
BUTRBIBTRERE EUR Libor 689 - - -
TS HRIR SGD SOR (b) or Sibor (¢)
FIRETRERE 1,778,473 - - 206,371
g Total 43,083,553 - 117,666,150 4,738,619

RITRIZEFR SN FEE AR EEN E @R E IR
@%EELX il o YEAEIRIBORKE FE
BEEN—HS  AEEFEEEEEHS

B HEENARBTE - HE2021FE - K
SEWAETENEHEARS o

(@)  London interbank offer rate

(b)  Swap offer rate

(c)  Singapore interbank offer rate

The effect of IBOR reform on the Group’s interest rate risk
management is described in the note above. The specific impact on
the Group's hedging activities is being carefully managed as part of

the overall project to achieve IBOR reform. During 2021, the Group did
not enter into any accounting hedge transaction.
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38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value

(i) Fairvalue hierarchy

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

o Bt —% 2 IEEE’J s AR BER of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
BRI AR BEBRE Fair value is determined according to the following fair value
hierarchy:
R2021512831 ANAREEE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2021 using
HREER TEf
ERTHRE EEE  FUBEENEE
ARER (E1ER) TREENYE (E3ER)
(#8%)  Quotedpricesin (B2E4) Significant
Fairvalueat  activemarketfor  Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
RERNEETE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
AAABEABENEHBEE  Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- &S - Debt securities 2,006,507 1,988,338 18,169 -
- BE# - Treasury bills 1,099,768 1,099,768 - -
3,106,275 3,088,106 18,169 -
fTESEIA Derivative financial instruments
~TETAMEAAEE - Positive fair value of derivatives 8,888,842 - 8,888,842 -
AR BEFAEMZERESN  Financial assets at fair value through other
SREE comprehensive income
-BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 4,490,521 737,266 3,753,255 -
-BEH - Treasury bills 39,187,201 39,187,201 - -
- ERES - Debt securities 60,169,857 53,630,266 6,535,591 4,000
- BaES - Equity securities 78,869 - - 78,869
103,926,448 93,554,733 10,288,846 82,869
115,921,565 96,642,839 19,195,857 82,869
af Liabilities
AR BB B Financial liabilities at fair value through
LHRER profit or loss
- EBEREE - Short sales of debt securities 768,006 768,006 - -
fTEEBIA Derivative financial instruments
—TEIEMARAER ~ Negative fair value of derivatives 8,766,335 30 8,766,305 -

200 A{EIRAT (EIRR) BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



BTSRRI R

Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

38 AREBETENERIA () 38
(@) UAARBEITENERMIA(E) (a)
()  EBRFAELAEE(E) (i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

R2020F 12831 BHAAE

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Bt

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2020 using

HREER TET
EEMHRE HEthx2E  FUBENHE
ST (B1ER) RERNEE (F3ER)
(&%) Quoted prices in (B2ER) Significant
Fair value at active market for Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level2) (Level3)
BT BETT BETT BETT
REMANEETE Recurring fair value measurements HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
EE Assets
AR EESTABENSHEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- EfES - Debt securities 2,351,288 2279919 71369 -
-HE% - Treasury bills 297,788 297,788 - -
2,649,076 2,577,707 71,369 -
(THEEBIA Derivative financial instruments
—ETIANEALEE - Positive fair value of derivatives 14,378,601 615 14,377,986 -
ARAABESAEMZERERN  Finandial assets at fair value through other
PREE comprehensive income
- BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 5,179,804 475947 4,703,947 -
- BEH - Treasury bills 23,503,712 23,503,712 - -
- EBES - Debt securities 56,157,194 48308026 7,845,168 4,000
- RRES - Equity securities 110,068 - - 110,068
84,950,868 72,287,685 12,549,115 114,068
101,978,545 74,866,007 26,998,470 114,068
af Liabilities
AARBEABEN Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRARE profit or loss
- EREFER - Short sales of debt securities 290,185 288627 1,558 -
ITEEBTA Derivative financial instruments
-TEIENALAER - Negative fair value of derivatives 15,160,283 1,034 15,159,249 -

HZE2021F K 2020512 A31 B EIR -

NRBERBRE

EEEIES

2B R 2

WRBEERNERITENER - UFE
3SERFTENBEAREHRIA N

a)(iii) P I FR -

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were

no significant transfers of financial instruments between level 1

and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For transfer in and out of

Level 3 measurements see the note 38(a)(iii) below.
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(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(if)

Determination of fair value
The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

Level 2 -
(i) Quoted market price for identical or similar instruments
that are not active;

(i) Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are
observable from market data. This category includes
financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets
for similar instruments; or quoted prices in markets that
are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation technigues using significant unobservable
inputs where the valuation techniques include one or more
significant inputs that are unobservable. This category includes
financial instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect the differences between
the instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, discounted
cash flow models and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters
used in estimating discount rates, bond price and foreign
currency exchange rates.
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38 AAREETENERIA(E) 38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
(@) HAAAEENENESRTIA (&) (@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i) A EEET () (i) Determination of fair value (continued)
AEERETemIANAREBEER The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
A&E RO ETENNEMEEE to determine the fair value of financial instruments are from
B ERAEMHEOABEEMSH interest rates and currency swaps, which are observable market
B AR E T IR E AR A B R A data with high reliability, and do not require the significant
e BRERMEKRAN G ASIER involvement of management's judgement and estimation.
BRI RRMISA Em e ESR KRG E Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the
% INEEBEMITETAMBERIS market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
INZSOTET BENFIEEE] o A - derivatives and simple over-the-counter (“OTC") derivatives
A S EF R B R M5 ER MNEa ABUR like interest rate swaps. However, the availability of observable
BUARTRMERMTSE YERE market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
BSE R EHN—RIBERA ™A TE markets, and is prone to changes based on specific events and
Bk - general conditions in the financial markets.
HeemTAENEEBRATE —EX Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
ZEFFAHEENETERARMIE - GL& valuation techniques where one or more significant market
SRTEBRBEBERE - flnigo inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these financial
RGEBUITETR - N —&REBF instruments are structured investments, OTC structured
BHENES ZEHMAXTEMmMIE derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active
AEENEENEEER  FEER market. For valuation models involving significant unobservable
BRANFE S A Ft R e BE EE M h inputs, a high degree of management judgement or estimation
BEER  TAGHENESRIERAEH is required to select the appropriate valuation model, determine
EHRNARRRERE KZIHFED the expected future cash flows on the financial instruments
MERHAE - UREREE T being valued, determine the probability of counterparty default
MEE o and prepayments, and select the appropriate discount rates.

(i)  FEIEBREIAABEGTEEN (iii)  Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

FABENBEMN
AREBEEIEZHBE
REERER FTEMFABRENEE Fair value measurement sensitivity

Valuation techniques

BensfmRER
Discounted
cash flow model

Significant unobservable inputs

TERTIR &7 R A R R B F) &
Forecasted cash flows and
estimated risk-free rate

to unobservable inputs

mERAREE A
SIBRENAREE
Significant increase in
the estimated risk-free rate would
result in a lower fair value

AR5 & 55

Debt securities

N

EE S

Equity securities

P18 AR
Dividend growth model

TEFT AR S AN F A f = fee 1) 2=
Forecasted dividend and
estimated risk-free rate

SE M5 38(a)(iv) P E BRI DT
Refer to sensitivity analysis in
note 38(a)(iv)
5T Note:

REIBRA A BEROEE RESE
S REEATHEEES - AWHNE

Both of debt and equity securities under level 3 fair value
measurements are generally classified as financial assets at fair value

BTISETESR - ARNREZXREROT
5 AR BENGBEELRARTSG
EREY

through other comprehensive income and are not traded in the active
market, accordingly, the fair value is estimated by reference to common
market valuation models.
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38 AAREETENERIA(E) 38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(@) UQXAEEENERIA(E)

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i)  FIBREI A BB EER () (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
Tﬁ,ﬁn,ﬂi\ﬁ%ﬁ&mﬂﬁ EEE R The following table shows a reconciliation between the
N EARERFER E BT, opening and the closing balance of fair value measurements in

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
URAEETA
A2 ERENSREE
Financial assets at fair value through ag
other comprehensive income Total
BRES BHES
Debt securities  Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT
EE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#202151818 At 1 January 2021 4,000 110,068 114,068
EA Purchases - 673 673
MmEIBREA Transfer from Level 1 23383 - 23383
RERRBRNE /(BX Gains/(losses) recognised in the income statement 121 (36) 85
REM2EYREREZE SE Losses recognised in other comprehensive income (23,504) (31,836) (55,340)
R2021%£128318 At 31 December 2021 4,000 78,869 82,869
REZBIIENEERFAL Total gains/(losses) for the year included in the income statement
Tﬁﬁﬁi#ﬁ&wﬁﬁﬁiﬁmﬁéﬁ for assets held at the end of the reporting period recorded in:
- BE)MEME /(B - Gains/(losses) from dealing i foreign currencies 121 (36) 85
REMZANETRANEXEE Total losses recognised in other comprehensive incorme (23,504) (31,836) (55,340)

PR EERA

At EkEH AR
Financial assets at fair value through B
other comprehensive income Total
EBES ExESH
Debt securities Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT
EE Assets HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
R2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 4,000 108336 112336
HEIBREA Transfer from level 2 40843 - 40843
RERRERNRE Gains recognised in the income statement - 4 4
REMPERETRERN (BL),/ W (Losses)/gains recognised in other comprehensive income (40,843) 1,686 (39,157)
20205127318 At 31 December 2020 4,000 110,068 114,068
REEBIRENEERERR Total gains for the year included in the income statement for
BRETREANYRES assets held at the end of the reporting period recorded in:
- BE)MEYE - Gains from dealing in foreign currencies - 46 46
REM2EREPRERS (BX)/ Total (losses)/gains recognised in other comprehensive income
etk (40,843) 1,686 (39,157)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(iv)

Sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions

For the level 3 financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity securities), its fair value
is measured by using a valuation model to incorporate
assumptions that are not based on observable market data.

’A/"CTJE.:T)\ ﬁﬂ%ﬁuﬁz*m** =ZF The following table shows the sensitivity of level 3 fair value
ARABENGRE - REEATHS measurements on the equity securities measured at fair value
FREREZET 10%H “@Jﬁﬁi NRfEE through other comprehensive income. The basis of 10% change
FFENAFFTF L in reasonably possible alternative assumptions on risk-free rate
will determine the favourable and unfavourable changes on the
fair value measurements.
20215128310
31 December 2021
REERPRB REM2ERERB®
Effect on income statement Effect on other comprehensive income
B (F7) B (7))
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETR BETT BETT BETT
EE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IAAABEFAEMZELRE  Financial assets at fair value through
NERAE other comprehensive income
- RRES - Equity securities - - 5,745 (4,696)
202046124318
31 December 2020
RUEERR R REMPERERE
Effect on income statement Effect on other comprehensive income
A () BH (7R #)
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
EE Assets HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
IAA BB AL2EMKE  Financial assets at fair value through
MeREE other comprehensive income
- RBaEh - Equity securities - - 8618 (7835)
—EZ-FR
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38

(b)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair values at 31 December 2021 and

2020 unless otherwise stated.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash; placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions;
loans and advances to customers; investments; and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair values of placements with banks, central banks and
other financial institutions are mainly priced at market interest
rates, and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying
values approximate the fair value.

The fair values of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which
are mainly repriced within 3 months, approximately equals their
carrying amount.
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38 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value

(continued)

(i) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at

amounts not materially different from their fair values at 31

December 2021 and 2020, except the following:

2021
RESEE AREE
Carrying Fair E1ER F2BR EIBR
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BET T BT T BET T BT T BET T
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=N Financial liabilities
BEBER Loan capital 3,883,863 4,162,542 - 4,162,542 -
2020
BRE& 58 “rfEE
Carrying Fair FIER F2RER EI3E R
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT BT IT AT IT BT I BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tRMmERE Financial liabilities
BEHER Loan capital 3,855,374 4,116,794 4,116,794 - -
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Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2021 2020
BETT T T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BEEFEERER Direct credit substitutes 391,928 482,575
B 5 HMMNNAIER Transaction-related contingencies 974,821 977,663
HE S BB EIAE Trade-related contingencies 6,446,078 5,871,861
EAIE HTE R Forward forward deposits placed 14,424 12,920,238
B EAE Other commitments:
— SRIT AT AR BB B — which are unconditionally cancellable or
EBRAREEMR R E automatically cancellable due to deterioration
FrAl B B EUH in the creditworthiness of the borrower 98,222,623 89,362,475
— REHBEIFLUAT — with an original maturity of not more than 1 year 2,443,195 4,017,915
—REHBREIFU L — with an original maturity of more than 1 year 13,632,064 4,511,472
122,125,133 118,144,199
= BB INEEEE Credit risk-weighted amounts 9,172,993 7,254,665

FEAENAERREERBENIA - 8215
EMEHER - EREMERREENERK
HRHE o 5i&mﬂﬁﬁ%$iéﬁiﬁ%ﬁh/ff?ﬂ
BMERSRNWEERRER - RHOSEIE
EENEBIRIRELERTPHRIMNHAER
BREEHEE - HNRE R BEERIHE RS
B MaHeRLIFRRRRRERE

R ETE = B R\ N S5 A9 2 B hAE /B
0%Z1 50%(2ozo$ D 0% 150%) TNE o
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Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward forward deposits placed, letters of credit,
guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved
is essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. The contractual amounts represent the
amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon and the
client default. As the facilities may expire without being drawn upon,
the contract amounts do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2020: 0% to 150%).
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BAEYE (b)
R2021F12A31H  TEEBARER RE
ABAERER T X AR TR R IR

BB ARRENT -

Notes to the Financial Statements

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
(continued)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments mainly for projects and the purchase of
equipment outstanding at 31 December 2021 not provided for in the
financial statements are as follows:

2021 2020

BET T BETIT

HKS$'000 HKS'000

ERENATA Authorised and contracted for 159,742 177,150

ERLERENSEARE (c)
72021 % 2020128318« AEBEWRE

BRI A e M BB E R EN
EREITE) ©

(ERAET ) 40
AEEBEEIZEARREMREAS

- RRMEBIAL ~ 157F - BIKEFIFHEI &
HitER AR ENEE - HRNGELEEY
FAKENEE  WELEERHEELNK
ANBREARRBEREA °

BESARARRAEZERR 41
BEEERE AEEMR2021F12A318H
ERGRRAEESFME NP EREE S
BIERAR AR - MASRERKRITRES BT
hEARKEMBEFMAZANFEFEEES

[RAF] -

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The Group was not involved in any legal action that would be
significant to the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2021, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which
is incorporated in Mainland China.
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42 N{TZEBBRRENEEZRE 42 Statement of financial position and reserve movement
of the Bank
(a) ZA{TEIFEARRE (a) Statement of financial position of the Bank
72021%E12H31H At 31 December 2021
(LA A BT ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2021 2020
B BT BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BE ASSETS
R RERTRPRIEITHLET  Cashand balances with banks and central banks 29,369,984 32,367,615
TEIRTTRF R B3R Placements with and advances to banks 21,058,640 28,596,665
IARBEGABZNSMEE  Finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,744,341 2,201,704
TEemITE Derivative financial instruments 8,842,512 14,368,120
REERRBRREMIRIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 232,325,270 212,048,355
UAREBEFAEMEEKERN  Finandial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
TREE income 102,176,567 83,990,154
G NG ¢ Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,678,253 7,717,699
MEBRARIEE Investments in subsidiaries 1,756,408 1,756,418
3 N Amortised cost investments 53,375 48,493
EY S Property and equipment
- REME - Investment properties 416,000 231,000
- E Y E L] — Other premises and equipment 447,527 478,517
HREEE Right-of-use assets 526,394 643,895
BVEE Intangible assets 534,331 629,446
EIEEL Tax recoverable - 40,426
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 148,529 143,782
BEELE Total assets 408,078,131 385,262,289
BERES LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
=R LIABILITIES
ROTREMSREENERRET  Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions 13,085,693 3,831,330
BEGER Deposits from customers 320,690,915 304,984,316
AR EEFABZNSMERE  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 768,006 290,185
eI A Derivative financial instruments 8,733,253 15,159,575
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,481,389 -
REARIIA Current tax liabilities 43,577 3,133
HiBE Other liabilities 9,505,857 9,387,650
HEBE Lease liabilities 560,143 666,593
FERTHIE A RIFRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,074,685 693,486
ABER Loan capital 3,883,863 3,855,374
BBEEE Total liabilities 359,827,381 338,871,642
& EQUITY
AR Share capital 31(a) 18,404,013 18,404,013
i Reserves 42(b) 21,291,920 20,216,222
RRERATE Total shareholders’ equity 39,695,933 38,620,235
HipiEm TH Other equity instruments 32 8,554,817 7,770,412
EREH Total Equity 48,250,750 46,390,647
ERRkEEAE Total Equity and Liabilities 408,078,131 385,262,289

AU BREER2022F3 A2 AR E ST SEWRARE
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Director on 22 March 2022.

28R

Bl Minggiang

HITEE  ITRFTHABEH

Executive Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
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HEE,
TANG Nai Pan
HITEEFRBITTHAEZ

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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42 AROTZEHBRRRREE#ESRE (&) 42 Statement of financial position and reserve movement
of the Bank (continued)
(b) ZA{THEERZAMIBHHIEH (b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank
RITHYE B RERS AR EZB 0 PN ) % S 4R 45 4 Details of the changes in the Bank’s individual components of equity
SEAIEEHNT between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
A7
The Bank
VIS k& AfBEIR
EftRE  EMRR (W&E32)
&k BARRHE  -REE  Popety Investment  RERA  HELE  Otherequity EREE
Share Capital General revaluation  revaluation  Retained Total instruments Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves (note 32) equity
BMTn AT BMTn  AWTR EBTR BMTn  ERTx L AW LA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2021E1 718 At 1 January 2021 18,404,013 2,903 100,000 134,931 587,743 19,390,645 20,216,222 7,770,412 46,390,647
BENENEZEH . Changes in equity for 2021:
TERRT Profit for the year - - - - - 1822502 1,822,502 - 1,822,502
TEREp2ENE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 159,602 (436,976) - (277,374) - (277,374)
REERENELAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 159,602 (436,976) 1,822,502 1,545,128 - 1,545,128
THABA—MRERES  Distribution payment for Additional
28 Tier 1 Capital Securities
(*AT1 Capital Securities’) - - - - - (441,432)  (441,432) - (441,432)
EAEO—RERES  Issue of ATI Capital Securities - - - - - - - 4647AB9 4647489
BOEN—{BRES  Redemption of ATT Capital Securities - - - - - (27998)  (27,99)  (3:863,084)  (3,891,082)
R021E128318 At 31 December 2021 18,404,013 2,903 100,000 294,533 150,767 20,743,717 21,291,920 8,554,817 48,250,750
R00F1A18 At 1 January 2020 18404013 2903 100,000 76,245 334670 18797023 19310841 7770412 45,485,266
HZNNERERES 0 Changes in equity for 2020
TERET Profit for the year - - - - - 033509 1033509 - 1,033,509
TERER2ENE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 58,686 253073 - 311,759 - 311,759
TEERANEES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 58,686 253073 1,033,509 1,345,268 - 1345268
SHBN—REAES  Distribution payment for ATI
28 Capital Securities - - - - - (439.887) (439887) - (439887)
R00F 128318 At 31 December 2020 18404013 2,903 100,000 134931 587743 19390645 2021622 7770412 46,390,647
43 BIEHMRBE 43 Approval of financial statements

ARG HERON20202F3 802 HEEEEH

HEVIRAETEAM -

1&® |

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
forissue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022.
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RISENZE T AR Unaudited Supplementary Finandial Information

(BR¥FRIFIBASN - BB R L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(A) RITHWLRENEERERR (A) Regulatory disclosure statements available on the

Bank'’s corporate website

AEBENEERBEEERAERR The Group's regulatory disclosure information is published by
ETHEEREERZMNEERER using standard disclosure templates as specified by the HKMA
=] EEBEBEAAEARTTAAEE www. (‘Regulatory Disclosure Statement’) and that can be viewed in the
cncbinternational.com A [ BSE # 58 | — &P Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's corporate website www.
BE - ATHEERBEBMRALFRPH cnchinternational.com. The Bank's Regulatory Disclosure Statement,
BEEESTEREMOGRITE (BE) R together with the disclosures in the annual report, contained all the
AN ERBMBERE - 87T B ERBEMG disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the
BARRRGEEERNMERE 5 - FLi HKMA. Certain comparatives have been revised in order to align with
BB B ACBIEE]T © the latest books and records and banking returns submitted to the
HKMA.

212 FREERAT (BIRR) BIR AR
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(i

EXRER

BXER
BAF R R

TREETHER
RABREDEIFEEER

[BEARIEITA]

ERESERBELMNGRITE
(BZA) RBI)HEE - ITQ@M%E*E‘J$
AMER A L AES
&m%ﬂ‘*
BIRBe INAEERE - M E IR f’EHM,\JT‘”

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital base

° 1T

Capital adequacy ratios (“CARs") are complied in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the HKMA. The CARs are computed
on a consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries
as required by the HKMA. The Bank has adopted the “standardised
approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount for credit risk

and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for calculating

operational risk.

2021 2020
BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
LERE-REXTERGE Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
instruments and reserves
EERTEERN L BRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
—RERTERBERDEE plus any related share premium 18,052,185 18,404,013
REBEF Retained earnings 22,119,639 20,416,204
WEREE Disclosed reserves 822,674 1,050,761
MBREERENSERE-RES CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 40,994,498 39,870,978
LZERE—RELR  EAERE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
EEFHIBEERECHIBEEETE Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities 168,886 174,107
HihE\PEE (BARLTHIBAE Other intangible assets (net of related deferred
E5m) tax liability) 539,779 635,101
ABES T i RN T E £ Cumulative fair value gains arising from
R A BEEMNOREE AR the revaluation of land and buildings
HEME) (own use and investment properties) 340,202 173,822
—MRRITE R B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 2,061,314 1,926,768
HEAE Valuation adjustments 22,638 26,117
BETETEAYNERESFEEFZE  Debt valuation adjustments in respect of derivative contracts 2,631 2,330
LERE-REXRNLTEREREE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 3,135,450 2,938,245
EBERE-REX CET1 capital 37,859,048 36,932,733
BH-RER Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”) capital
BIN—RER AT1 capital 8,556,000 7,772,060
—HEX Tier 1 capital 46,415,048 44,704,793
“REXTARRBE Tier 2 capital instruments and provisions
BERZMERRAERG RE Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any
related share premium 3,898,392 3,876,149
BENT W REENREES G Reserve attributable to fair value gains on revaluation of
FEE’J/"@F@MUM@EE&% holdings of land and buildings 153,091 78,220
BRERZFER-RBITRRES Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
HEEBREERE reserve for general banking risks eligible for
inclusion in Tier 2 capital 3,472,342 3,234,537
HIBREIERI M — R E Tier 2 capital base before deductions 7,523,825 7,188,906
“HREREERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
TR EREETERIE Regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital - -
—HRER Tier 2 capital 7,523,825 7,188,906
BAREEE Total capital 53,938,873 51,893,699
—E--FR
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(B)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

EXxZE (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
BB I RE B KR (i) Risk-weighted assets
2021 2020
BT T BB T
HK$'000 HK$'000
— EERER — Credit risk 284,298,587 271,035,616
— % Rk — Market risk 16,346,413 15,412,575
— HER R — Operational risk 14,920,038 15,048,263
315,565,038 301,496,454
EXFELER (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2021 2020
— LBERE—RERLLE — CET1 capital ratio 12.0% 12.2%
— —fREARLE —Tier 1 capital ratio 14.7% 14.8%
— BB AR E - Total capital ratio 17.1% 17.2%
BAXTH (iv) Capital instruments

AREBENEBERE-RER  BI-RER

BHFEN_MERTRBENT

Capital Securities and Tier 2 capital instruments.

The following is a summary of the Group's CET1, Additional Tier 1

2021 2020
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AOIBRTHNEERE-—RELTA CET1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
L Ordinary shares:
BEBITNAR L ®EA2,111,121,568 % 12,111,121,568 issued and fully paid ordinary shares 18,404,013 18,404,013
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BN —RMERFS Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
B 500,000,000 TR K BRI IERFETR  Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
BEARES (R2016F3ETT) securities with US$500 million (issued in 2016) - 3,863,084
MI{E500,000,000F LRI K BRI IERFER  Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
BERES (R2018F31T) securities with US$500 million (issued in 2018) 3,907,328 3,907,328
THI{E600,000,000E TR KERIERTEE  Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
BERF 7 (2021 F8#1T) securities with US$600 million (issued in 2021) 4,647,489 -
8,554,817 7,770,412

214 FRISERAT (BIRR) BIR AR
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(B)

(iv)

(v)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

EXxZE (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
BEARTE(E) (iv) Capital instruments (continued)
2021 2020
BET T PEEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—HREARTA Tier 2 capital instruments
RATEEAT Issued by the Bank
— F B K E4625% * E1E500,000,000 ~US$500 million Subordinated Fixed Rate
EILMEERE (FR2029F FIH]) Notes at 4.625% (due in 2029) 3,883,863 3,855,374
3,883,863 3,855,374

mEER

BREFRIZIBASN - AN R B 5 ¥ 5 B P B 75
BRAUR G S EAERER - 74
AWM estms BREEMSNEE N RIE
RAEBERATRATHENB AR - Mg
ERIRBEATEAITETHEBAR  #5
LI

RITEBBECRITE (BAR) HH)FE3C(1)
1§ TYINB ARG E AR EHAE
7N

(v) Basis of consolidation

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the

annual financial report is prepared according to the consolidation

basis for accounting purposes. The main difference between the

consolidation basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that

the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter

includes the Bank and only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which

are disclosed as follows:

The Bank is required under section 3C(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules

to calculate its total capital on a consolidated basis in respect of the

following subsidiaries:

2021124310
At 31 December 2021

EELER ERBE

Total assets Total equity

BETT BRI

MELRRHE Names of subsidiaries TEXK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEER A Carford International Limited -WERE - Property holding 42,807 19,810
HIZIRITEIRS (FRE) ARRAE  CITICBankInternational (China) Limited — -$877 - Banking 13,153,529 1,638,882
RERBREAR A CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited ~RiggL - Insurance broker 617,392 598,087
EREANMBERRA HKCB Finance Limited -HEREE - Consumer financing 6,251,643 702,544
FEHERMEERAR Ka Wah International Merchant -REEK - Inactive 2,142 2,142

Finance Limited

RERT(EF)BRAA The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited -EFEIR% - Trustee services 3,666 3,651
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(B) BEAXZE (&) (B)
HOERM (&)
HEREBARBONBLFIEHEE FITED
EEHEBHAERES MZSZELHR
GRITE (BA) BB REB GRITEEH)
M ARG B E N HERED 2 1§
FIRESE - #UE - IR GRITE CEA) R
F385 - BTG A B B H S AR
B REIEATHBEAR :

(v) (v)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

Capital adequacy (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory purposes
are mainly nominee services companies that are authorised and
supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory arrangements
regarding the maintenance of adequate capital to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for authorised institutions
under the Banking (Capital) Rules and the Banking Ordinance. The
following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank's capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

2021124318
At 31 December 2021

EELH ERAH
Total assets Total equity
BETT BETT
WELRRHE Names of subsidiaries TEXK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
BBEARIT(REA) The Hongkong Chinese Bank -REBARH ~ Nominee services 3 (1)
BRAA (Nominees) Limited
EERT(RE)BERAF The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited -2 ABRTE — Nominee services 3,852 -
Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited -REB AR ~ Nominee services - -
EHRBERRERRER AT CNCBI Investment Holdings Limited REER ~ Investment holding 585,819 446,147
EREREEERERDA CNCBI Asset Management Limited -BEERE - Asset management 17,829 16,321
ERERHBERERAR CNCBI Financial Consultant Limited -RRAREE - Not yet commenced 738 (6,048)
business
Prosperous Century Global Bond ~ Prosperous Century Global Bond Fund 1R EE% - Investment fund 252,418 250,854
Fund SP (#&#BProsperous SP (held through Prosperous
Century Global Investment Century Global Investment
Fund SPCHF ) Fund SPC)
Prosperous Century High Yield Prosperous Century High Yield Bond -REES - Investment fund 262,652 262,335

Bond Fund SP (&8 Prosperous
Century Global Investment
Fund SPCH )

Fund SP (held through Prosperous
Century Global Investment
Fund SPC)

HRAHNESANEEHBEANNETA
Al 120218 2020512 A31 Hi9{E A A
BEEFFE °

BN - REBRAEAMBARRBEER
EEMEMEABER - MARRESM
SHERAHER -

HZE2021F 12831 BILFE -
AR EBSERER AT -
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For all subsidiaries included in both the accounting and regulatory
scope of consolidation, the same consolidation methodology is
applied at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a subsidiary named
Sino-Allied Development Limited was disposed.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(C) Capital charge for operational risk

(D)

REFER - NEBRERAERIEEEER The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in

HEBIRIERBNERERS accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:

2021 2020

B¥TT BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

EBRERBHERT H Capital charge for operational risk 1,193,603 1,203,861

E—SOMEFERK

BEFERRBRRIZERS ARSI
BEERNBZERFELON - REBTEE
TTRDITERASE RAIRAND B NERD

KRB

(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and

i definitions used by the HKMA.
2021 2020
EEERH =Rzt
EFERR RPETR
BREE 2HEE
EFEXK ERES BFEFR BOX
ByeEm % of gross PRETE % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advancesto  and advances advances to
to customers customers to customers customers
BETT covered by BT covered by
HK$'000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
TEER Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER — Property development 8,951,242 64 11,268,407 70
- MERE ~ Property investment 15,064,324 98 13,460,635 97
- BRE - Financial concerns 14,866,601 10 12,698,994 31
- kREL - Stockbrokers 4,616,449 45 4,044,282 2%
- HERTEXE - Wholesale and retail trade 8,813,954 87 9,618,761 81
—BIER - Manufacturing 6,149,656 26 9,762,067 18
—BHLERRE —~ Transport and transport equipment 2,207,235 23 3326439 15
- REEE - Recreational activities 1,396,460 15 1,891,488 3
- BABE - Information technology 4,140,974 4 6,759,381 5
— Efth - Others 12,106,121 62 12,454,426 54
EA Individuals
-BE[EEBHEF S - Loansforthe purchase of flats under the
[(FAAZERBLEEER Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
g R HEBEEHE] Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
MEFER Scheme 18,734 100 25,360 100
-BEEMEEMEMET - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 22,708,364 100 21,168,747 100
— ERREH - Credit card advances 634,385 - 434,591 -
—Efth - Others 19,463,914 93 16,152,868 94
TEEBFERNERRETEE  Gross loans and advances for use in Hong Kong 121,138,413 68 123,066,446 64
BHEE Trade finance 6,628,733 22 5,441,544 30
EEBUIMEBNEZT LB Gross loans and advances for use outside
] Hong Kong 114,899,885 19 91,588,444 25
BEFERRBHMAE Gross loans and advances to customers 242,667,031 44 220,096,434 47
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the

RERAESENREZTPERRBRS T individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of
s the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
2021
ERERER
BENEA
FERARR
Expected credit
nEzEFE REEF F1KE ELEEE EX] losses on
ERRBR  EEREX BHREE BHRE RBEE income
Overdue loans  Impaired loans BAEE BAER BREfE statement
andadvances  and advances Stage 1ECL Stage 2ECL Stage 3ECL during the
to customers  to customers allowances allowances allowances year
BRI BRI ERTR BRI BRI ERTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBLMERD Gross loans and advances for
ERRETEE use outside Hong Kong 883,981 1,086,034 936,744 58,840 258,475 1,450,584
2020
ERERER
BEnES
EERXER
BHEP REZP EANEES ENIELS E3JEB  Expected credit
EFREH ERRBH EHEE EHEE BHEE losses on
Overdue loans ~ Impaired loans BRER BXAER BREE income
andadvances  and advances Stage 1 ECL Stage 2 ECL Stage 3 ECL statement
to customers to customers allowances allowances allowances  during the year
BETT BETTL ok S BRI BETR AR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EERIME AN Gross loans and advances for
ERREzEs use outside Hong Kong 2,687,898 2679495 382,154 429,761 981,748 1,804,363
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(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)
& ith&E 5 A7 By geographical areas
2021
EFEX BYEF HEEF F1RE EPLAS, E3RE
REX ERRBH ERRER BHEE BEEE BHEER
Loansand  Overdueloans  Impaired loans BREf BRER BRER
advancesto  andadvances  and advances Stage 1 ECL Stage 2 ECL Stage 3 ECL
customers to customers  to customers allowances allowances allowances
BETT BETR BT BETT BETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Hong Kong 164,317,771 1,408,801 1,954,280 653,299 71,670 554,531
E N, Mainland China 51,062,202 287,812 294,102 331,139 88,604 -
EE United States 9,380,688 - - 27,962 - -
;Mg Singapore 5,425,256 - - 50,734 - -
Eftr Others 12,481,114 5,858 5,858 79,214 8,693 -
242,667,031 1,702,471 2,254,240 1,142,348 174,967 554,531
2020

SRR MERF WESF  BIER 2ER R
k&% ERRBH ERREH EHEE BHEE RHiEE
loansand  Overdueloans  Impaired loans BREE BREE BRER
advancesto  andadvances  and advances Stage T ECL Stage 2 ECL Stage 3ECL
customers to customers to customers allowances allowances allowances
BETT BB BB BETT BETT BB
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BiE Hong Kong 134,288,116 3153773 3,207,087 252,699 62,140 1,047,332
HE R Mainland China 49,681,995 - - 193,368 515,386 -
e United States 9,276,279 - - 26,765 - -
st Singapore 4,693,656 - - 28675 5 -
Eftr Others 22,156,388 363489 363489 87465 209 26412
220,096,434 3,517,262 3,631,176 588,972 577,740 1,273,744

bt R AN EIRRSEF RS D -
WEEBRKRER - HELXS5HFRERTF
BRM— T ELEROEERRGEEER
TTHBERARIAS -

BHER LB R REE3EANERK -

BEER R BT ERE R EELIREZER
BEREMH ERIFHEHER -

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for
more than three months.

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
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RCEZH T BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() BHEE (E) Overdue assets
BHEFERRER Overdue loans and advances to customers
2021 2020
HEFER EEPER
RBREE &b ek
AR % BAX
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
B¥TT  advancesto BRI advances to
HK$'000 customers HK$'000 customers
SRR BREE The gross amount of loans and advances has been
S EE - overdue for periods of:
-3@AA EZ6fEA ~ 6 months or less but over 3 months 489,887 0.20 66,950 0.03
-6ERANEE1HF ~ 1 year or less but over 6 months 167,255 0.07 2,610,339 119
- 1FEMNE —over 1 year 1,045,329 0.43 839,973 038
1,702,471 0.70 3,517,262 1.60
BB EAER NMEE Secured overdue loans and advances 1,620,537 2,729,091
EMFEHERNZEI Unsecured overdue loans and advances 81,934 788,171
1,702,471 3,517,262
BEBEFBmEIEF N  Market value of collateral held against the
BRzEAmME secured overdue loans and advances 3,765,237 2,995,913
TEER = BB R EHE Expected credit losses allowances 383,981 1,244,814
ERBERBCERRBR - HEERS LA Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as
ER@H  WRELEBINRER - BIZIE overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
BERIE o AREIE 2 B - BERBRA at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
FERETIBA - BERANARRERER either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
K/ S ERE B E R AR AR &R borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
88 - MU BRI ERR D e HEARR - 781 demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
TEBEARRIE o outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.
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RCEZH T BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() BHMEE (&) (E) Overdue assets (continued)
BHEFERRBN(E) Overdue loans and advances to customers (continued)
HRBPEREBR - ATRENERES Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
KRR EEBREEENE - a%HERME advances, is 'Eligible Physical Collateral’ which mainly comprises real
FFE Ty estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:
@ HEEMTEAAEREXASE (@)  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
iEENRBE o reasonably established and verified.
(b) ZEEFRMBEERE _FMi5A (b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
BRI RZEELE o secondary market for disposal of the asset.
© AITHBABAEEERRNERL TIRE (©  The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
BITREREIEEMER - without impediment.
d) FITEEBERRHZEETERIE (d) The Bank s able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
o
F2021F 202012 A31H » AEEIE There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
B HARAE 3 (E A BRI T R B S BB EAK o which were overdue for over three months at 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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RCEZH T BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(F) KREHER (F) Rescheduled loans

2021 2020
EEFER HRFER
RBREE e ek
ERES ERaES
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BETT advances to BETT advances to
HK$'000 customers HK$'000 customers
REBEER Rescheduled loans 5,545 0.002 4,903 0.002
KERERZIEERARA R N Z kL Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
NHER M S AR ENEHEREE or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
HIEAER - B LS TR B SR A E E of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
FWIH—BEEGKR - RPEHEERE K repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
Higm BB B3 E A W E MK E) ERME non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
HR#AZR o stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue

for over three months and are reported as overdue advances in note

(E).

R2021F K 2020512 A31H » REBITE There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
BEAMRITREM S BB - which were rescheduled at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
(G) MEEE (G) Repossessed assets
2021 2020
BT T BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS'000
B ARFERMBR KL Included in loans and advances to customers and
E b ERIAS other accounts 259,517 54,166
DA EEEEA2021 5 K2 2020412 A 31 HEXLE The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
BEMNMHTTISEE - assets at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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(H) BERRERE

B ERIEFTA B 2 BREEN AN 2 5
KERNBENT2REECRHEERAR
BIERIRTT RIS MR IEE N AR E -
RERBSEERBRAZTHNERIFHF
PR B 5K Bl 3 & 70 2R e LB A SRS 1R (5 B
BRAGRELTRT D 7010%8H) B 2R it & 53 B 40
T

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) International claims

International claim refers to the sum of cross-border claims in all

currencies and local claims in foreign currencies determined as based

on the calculation methodology specified in the HKMA's Return of

International Banking Statistics. International claims are on-balance

sheet exposures of counterparties which attributable to the country or

segment, after taking into account risk recognised transfer, constitute

to not less than 10% of the aggregate claims are disclosed as follows.

2021
FRITRAAKSE
Non-bank private sector
FR1T
CRIKE Fem
Non-bank FAKE
BT BH#E financial Non-financial HME
Banks Official Sector institutions private sector Total
BETT BETRT BETRT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEREK Developed countries 21,186,925 7,849,066 1,622,973 4,787,610 35,446,574
B Offshore centres 6,561,287 241,614 20,994,467 57,679,765 85,477,133
HpHAB of which Hong Kong 5,140,660 241,196 17,747,075 48,919,329 72,048,260
BRP DA Developing Asia-Pacific 32,156,750 7,602,966 8,363,208 52,596,772 100,719,696
H A g A of which Mainland China 27,717,481 7,590,329 8,363,208 49,390,308 93,061,326
2020
FEIRITRLAMESE
Non-bank private sector
FERTT
SR Fea
Non-bank FLAKERE
R1T EWL 1 financial  Non-financial ik
Banks  Official Sector institutions  private sector Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERER Developed countries 39,453,287 12,547 1,881,172 9,299,523 50,646,529
Bl AR Offshore centres 6,601,830 57,092 12,705,306 51,303,818 70,668,046
HpFE of which Hong Kong 2,299,845 56,694 11,951,907 35,930,168 50,238,614
BRP DA Developing Asia-Pacific 31,866,827 6,025,006 9,943,862 52,293,741 100,129,436
HA g A of which Mainland China 27,800,973 6,012,021 9421396 49,363,211 92,597,601
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

()  Mainland Activities

Mainland Activities are Mainland China exposures to non-bank

counterparties and their categories and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA's Return of Mainland Activities.

2021
BBRRERA BR AR RSN
R R i B BRI
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial
position position HmE
exposure exposure Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
() RREBF - PREFHERS (1) Central government, central government-owned
B R E B AR entities and their subsidiaries and
BRELE joint ventures ("JVs") 55,320,541 2,625,640 57,946,181
() AR « 5 BT R (2) Local governments, local government-owned
B R E B AR entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
REL¥ 17,293,195 1,163,475 18,456,670
Q) FEAFEAREEFBEAM  (3) PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
B B E A B % entities incorporated in Mainland China and
HWBRARMAERE their subsidiaries and Vs 45,781,229 4,303,479 50,084,708
(4) NS s 1 I (4) Other entities of central government not reported
Hith REFT#E in item 1 above 3,972,313 327,232 4,299,545
(5) MEIE LI E IR (5) Other entities of local governments not reported
H i3 77 BT 8 in item 2 above 1,122,896 332,200 1,455,096
6) EEBARFEALA (6) PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
BN R R I entities incorporated outside Mainland China where
R BUR SN L R the credit is granted for use in Mainland China 30,613,592 1,427,781 32,041,373
(7) B i R RIS IR R (7) Other counterparties where the exposures are
BRI IERITR 5 considered by the reporting institution to be
HF 2 R non-bank Mainland China exposures 11,144,223 252,301 11,396,524
Fok] Total 165,247,989 10,432,108 175,680,097
EHNRERENEELE Total assets after provision 392,314,798
EERBRARARAE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
HBREEBDE total assets 42.1%
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Wit R () (I)  Mainland Activities (continued)
2020
FBIMAERA BRI
[a B £ [ B A
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial
position position k|
exposure exposure Total
AETT AT AT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
(1) RREF - hREFHERS (1) Central government, central government-owned
BERAWB RN entities and their subsidiaries and joint ventures
SEDE ("IVs") 47,675,097 1,574,677 49,249,774
Q) BT T BFRAE)  (2) Local governments, local government-owned entities
KR LRENB QRN and their subsidiaries and JVs
RERE 13,129,549 1,109,794 14,239,343
3) BAF B AR H A (3) PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
A7 B EC A B I entities incorporated in Mainland China and their
HB ARG ERE subsidiaries and JVs 51,600,070 6,217,222 57,817,292
(4) MBI LI E 18K (4) Other entities of central government not reported
Hot R R RE in item 1 above 6,283,211 93,004 6,376,215
BIE L2185 (5) Other entities of local governments not reported
H ity 77 BT e in item 2 above 1,183,277 426,200 1,609,477
FEEARPE AT (6) PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
o lENE ) entities incorporated outside Mainland China where
BB INK L B the credit is granted for use in Mainland China 23,983,087 1,820,144 25,803,231
7) R R pER A (7) Other counterparties where the exposures are
BRI IERITR 5 considered by the reporting institution to be
HF 2 EBAHRE non-bank Mainland China exposures 12,186,046 77,093 12,263,139
ik Total 156,040,337 11,318,134 167,358,471
EMRERECNEESSE Total assets after provision 379,702,621
BEABERARMAE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
HEEERNE total assets 41.1%
TEER (J) Corporate governance

REBBAONRESEEEAKTE - EXF
EAREMBEENEE LHRECERE
MHREEEBOR F MM [ At s MR AT SR
EES | R[BRFMNGERES ] FEaR
F o ATTEFEERIUNTEZESBERZ
ZEB®  ZEMEREBEZE®  REZE
eRFMEES - ZFEE BRI
HEHERCEEAREMER T EE
TEAREE 2 ENRIARRER o

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
the modules on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions’ and ‘Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System’ issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors of the Bank has
established a number of committees including the Audit Committee,
the Credit & Risk Management Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Their composition
and functions are explained in detail in “Corporate Information”
and “Corporate Governance and Other Information”, which will be
included in the printed version of the Group’s annual report.
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FPEERNMEMMER Corporate Governance and
Other Information
REBESNRERFREEEGKT BERFER The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has
MEMBEEZMNSHELATE2ERBEMHNES complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the modules on
BEFMATREEMRAIRBOLEER IR “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions” and
[ R EEr BN I E 15 5| | PRENEVARTE o “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.
EEZEE Board Committees
RTEEEERINTEES The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following
committees:
() HWIEEE (i)  Audit Committee
B ZEERBUKE  WHESSBE LR The Audit Committee, being an independent bodly, assists the Board
51 N BE SRR TT Y B S B 7 R K PR BB ) o of Directors of the Bank in providing independent review of, and
EH AR monitoring, the effectiveness of the Bank'’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems.
ZEZESHNREZEHEK ERARENE It comprises four members, majority of whom (including the
B(BRZESEF) REUIERTES - chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
ZERBNENHAREER I MEEMH biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
NIEER ° “Biographies of Directors”.
BTZEeNEEERLBR—REH - I Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held not less than once
LAZEIAD - ARITITIRAR ﬁﬁf?ﬂ!?ﬂ Hat in each quarter. Representatives of the external auditor and senior
BE - RRERAENMGHLREEEESS management including Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
BEAE  2RBBHFEZESE - BiE2021 Chief Auditor, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Compliance and Operations
F12A3BLEFE BFZESHEHAM Officer of the Bank are invited to attend these meetings. During the
KB ° year ended 31 December 2021, a total of four meetings of the Audit

Committee were held.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(ii)

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The Credit & Risk Management Committee oversees and manages
the Bank’s risk related matters including, but not limited to, the
risk strategy, appetite/tolerance, profile, policies (including key risk
procedures), fair value practices, capital adequacy and risk cultural,
systems and various risk-related initiatives and projects. It has to
ensure that the risk management function and the compliance
function of the Bank have adequate authority, stature, independence,
management support and resources to perform its duties. The risks
concerned primarily include credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, operational risk (including fraud risk), reputation risk, legal
risk, compliance risk, financial crime compliance risk, strategic risk and
any risks associated with entering new markets, new areas of business,
or dealing in new products or services. It is also responsible for
approving matters relating to Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP), the Reverse Stress Testing (RST) methodology
and results, and endorsing the recovery planning document
before reporting to the Board for approval on an annual basis.
The committee carries out its oversight function on the Bank’s risk
management through various committees at the Bank's management
level, including the Credit Committee, the Non-Performing Loans
Committee, the Investment Review Committee, the Market Risk
Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee, the Operational Risk
Management Committee, the Compliance and AML Committee, the
New Product Committee and the Management Committee.

It comprises five members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Credit & Risk Management Committee shall be held
not less than once in each quarter. Chief Risk Officer, Chief Compliance
and Operations Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Human Resources
Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief Auditor, Head of Personal &
Business Banking Group and Head of Wholesale Banking Group and
Treasury & Global Markets Group of the Bank are invited to attend
these meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of
five meetings of the Credit & Risk Management Committee were held.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee assists the Board of Directors of the Bank
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and of
the committees at the Board's level, and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes if necessary. It also assists in identifying
suitable candidates qualified to become Directors, Chief Executive
Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Alternate Chief Executive
Officer, and making recommendations to the Board on succession
planning for Directors, Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank.

It comprises five members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held not less than
once in each year. Chief Human Resources Officer of the Bank is
invited to attend these meetings. Three meetings were held during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving the remuneration-related policies and structure of
the Bank, and also the bonus pool proposed pursuant to the
prevailing variable compensation schemes. It is also responsible for
approving the remuneration packages of the Chairman of the Board,
senior management and key personnel as defined in the Master
Remuneration Policy, and compensation arrangements relating to
the dismissal or removal of Directors. The committee has to ensure
that an annual review of the Bank's remuneration system and its
operations, which includes an assessment of consistency with the
relevant regulatory rules or guidelines, is conducted independently of
management.

It comprises five members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not less
than once in each year. Chief Human Resources Officer of the Bank is
invited to attend these meetings. Four meetings were held during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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